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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report contains forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. You can identify these statements 

by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “project,” “target,” “estimate,” 

“intend,” “continue” or “believe” or the negatives of, or other variations on, these terms or comparable terminology. You should read 

statements that contain these words carefully because they discuss our plans, strategies, prospects and expectations concerning our 

business, operating results, financial condition and other similar matters. We believe that it is important to communicate our future 

expectations to our investors. Our forward-looking statements include information in this report regarding general domestic and global 

economic conditions, our future financing plans, our ability to operate as a business development company (“BDC”) and the expected 

performance of, and the yield on, our portfolio companies. There may be events in the future, however, that we are not able to predict 

accurately or control. The factors listed under “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 

2017, as well as any cautionary language in this report, provide examples of risks, uncertainties and events that may cause our actual 

results to differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-looking statements. The occurrence of the events described 

in these risk factors and elsewhere in this report could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial 

position. Any forward-looking statement made by us in this report speaks only as of the date of this report. Factors or events that could 

cause our actual results to differ from our forward-looking statements may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to 

predict all of them. You are advised to consult any additional disclosures that we may make directly to you or through reports that we in 

the future may file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including annual reports on Form 10-K, 

registration statements on Form N-2, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K. Under Section 21E(b)(2)(B) of 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation 

Reform Act of 1995 do not apply to statements made in periodic reports we file under the Exchange Act, such as this quarterly report on 

Form 10-Q. 

The following factors are among those that may cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements: 

• our future operating results; 

• changes in political, economic or industry conditions, the interest rate environment or conditions affecting the 

financial and capital markets; 

• uncertainty surrounding the financial and political stability of the U.S., the United Kingdom, the European Union and 

China; 

• our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio companies; 

• the impact of investments that we expect to make; 

• the impact of increased competition; 

• our contractual arrangements and relationships with third parties; 

• the dependence of our future success on the general economy and its impact on the industries in which we invest; 

• the ability of our current and prospective portfolio companies to achieve their objectives; 

• the relative and absolute performance of our investment adviser; 

• our expected financings and investments; 

• the use of borrowed money to finance a portion of our investments; 

• our ability to make distributions; 

• the adequacy of our cash resources and working capital; 

• the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operations of our portfolio companies; 

• the impact of future acquisitions and divestitures; 

• the effect of changes in tax laws and regulations and interpretations thereof; 

• our ability to maintain our status as a BDC and a regulated investment company (“RIC”) under Subchapter M of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); 

• actual and potential conflicts of interest with Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P. and its affiliates; 

• general price and volume fluctuations in the stock market; 

• the ability of our investment adviser to attract and retain highly talented professionals; 

• the impact on our business from new or amended legislation or regulations; and 

• the availability of credit and/or our ability to access the equity and capital markets. 
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

March 31, 2018

(Unaudited)

December 31,

2017

Assets

Investments, at fair value

Non-controlled/non-affiliated investments (cost of $1,037,572 and $1,053,226, respectively) $ 1,034,222 $ 1,050,179

Non-controlled affiliated investments (cost of $123,289 and $109,528, respectively) 108,244 95,468

Controlled affiliated investments (cost of $116,684 and $114,911, respectively) 114,214 112,666

Investments in affiliated money market fund (cost of $2 and $11,539, respectively) 2 11,539

Cash 6,929 11,606

Receivable for investments sold 4,000 –

Interest and dividends receivable from non-controlled/affiliated investments and non-controlled/non-affiliated investments 9,017 8,302

Dividend receivable from controlled affiliated investments 2,800 2,400

Other income receivable from controlled affiliated investments – 1,308

Deferred financing costs 6,332 4,847

Deferred offering costs 275 275

Other assets 194 2

Total assets $ 1,286,229 $ 1,298,592

Liabilities

Debt (net of debt issuance costs of $3,507 and $3,724, respectively) $ 526,493 $ 542,526

Interest and other debt expenses payable 2,931 1,688

Management fees payable 4,803 4,647

Incentive fees payable 4,684 3,180

Payable for investments purchased 89 –

Distribution payable 18,070 18,059

Directors’ fees payable 100 –

Accrued offering costs 206 289

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,142 2,373

Total liabilities $ 559,518 $ 572,762

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)

Net Assets

Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share (1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding) $ – $ –

Common stock, par value $0.001 per share (200,000,000 shares authorized, 40,154,489 and 40,130,665 shares issued and 

outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively) 40 40

Paid-in capital in excess of par 800,436 799,936

Accumulated net realized gain (loss) (84,222) (85,451) 

Accumulated undistributed net investment income 32,743 32,078

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments (20,865) (19,352) 

Allocated income tax expense (1,421) (1,421) 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 726,711 $ 725,830

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,286,229 $ 1,298,592

Net asset value per share $ 18.10 $ 18.09

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

(Unaudited) 

For the three

months ended

March 31, 2018

For the three

months ended

March 31, 2017

Investment Income:

From non-controlled/non-affiliated investments:

Interest income $ 29,790 $ 26,966

Other income 236 535

Total investment income from non-controlled/non-affiliated investments 30,026 27,501

From non-controlled affiliated investments:

Payment-in-kind 1,941 1,672

Interest income 388 540

Dividend income 7 23

Other income 6 6

Total investment income from non-controlled affiliated investments 2,342 2,241

From controlled affiliated investments:

Payment-in-kind 373 –

Dividend income 2,800 2,450

Total investment income from controlled affiliated investments 3,173 2,450

Total investment income $ 35,541 $ 32,192

Expenses:

Interest and other debt expenses $ 5,723 $ 4,512

Management fees 4,803 4,461

Incentive fees 4,684 3,733

Professional fees 670 461

Administration, custodian and transfer agent fees 231 194

Directors’ fees 101 173

Other expenses 309 338

Total expenses $ 16,521 $ 13,872

NET INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES $ 19,020 $ 18,320

Excise Tax $ 285 $ 365

NET INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS) AFTER TAXES $ 18,735 $ 17,955

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investment transactions:

Net realized gain (loss) from:

Non-controlled/non-affiliated investments $ 1,667 $ (168) 

Non-controlled affiliated investments 9 –

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) from:

Non controlled/non-affiliated investments (303) (787) 

Non-controlled affiliated investments (985) (2,864) 

Controlled affiliated investments (225) 429

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) $ 163 $ (3,390) 

Provision for taxes on realized gain on investments $ (447) $ –

NET INCREASE IN NET ASSETS RESULTING FROM OPERATIONS $ 18,451 $ 14,565

Net investment income (loss) per share (basic and diluted) $ 0.47 $ 0.49

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) $ 0.46 $ 0.40

Weighted average shares outstanding 40,150,518 36,340,808

Distributions declared per share $ 0.45 $ 0.45

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

(Unaudited) 

For the three

months ended

March 31, 2018

For the three

months ended

March 31, 2017

Increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations:

Net investment income $ 18,735 $ 17,955

Net realized gain (loss) on investments 1,676 (168) 

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments (1,513) (3,222) 

Provision for taxes on realized gain on investments (447) –

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations $ 18,451 $ 14,565

Distributions to stockholders from:

Net investment income $ (18,070) $ (16,354) 

Total distributions to stockholders $ (18,070) $ (16,354) 

Capital transactions:

Reinvestment of stockholder distributions (23,824 and 11,124 shares, respectively) $ 500 $ 252

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from capital transactions $ 500 $ 252

TOTAL INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS $ 881 $ (1,537) 

Net assets at beginning of period $ 725,830 $ 665,137

Net assets at end of period $ 726,711 $ 663,600

Accumulated undistributed net investment income $ 32,743 $ 27,225

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 

6 



Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

(Unaudited) 

For the three

months ended

March 31, 2018

For the three

months ended

March 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations: $ 18,451 $ 14,565

Adjustments to reconcile net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations to net cash provided by 

(used for) operating activities:

Purchases of investments (72,778) (107,459) 

Payment-in-kind interest (2,113) (1,594) 

Investments in affiliated money market fund, net 11,537 (1) 

Proceeds from sales of investments and principal repayments 78,714 110,298

Net realized (gain) loss on investments (1,676) 168

Net change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on investments 1,513 3,222

Amortization of premium and accretion of discount, net (2,027) (1,387) 

Amortization of deferred financing and debt issuance costs 500 489

Amortization of original issue discount on convertible notes 32 30

Increase (decrease) in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in receivable for investments sold (4,000) –

(Increase) decrease in interest and dividends receivable (1,115) (49) 

(Increase) decrease in other income receivable 1,308 2,212

(Increase) decrease in other assets (192) (5,265) 

Increase (decrease) in interest and other debt expenses payable 1,243 1,284

Increase (decrease) in management fees payable 156 55

Increase (decrease) in incentive fees payable 1,504 2,259

Increase (decrease) in investments purchased payable 89 81

Increase (decrease) in directors’ fees payable 100 172

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities (231) (1,218) 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 31,015 $ 17,862

Cash flows from financing activities:

Offering costs paid $ (83) $ (625) 

Distributions paid (17,559) (16,097) 

Deferred financing and debt issuance costs paid (1,800) (21) 

Borrowings on debt 58,500 98,250

Repayments of debt (74,750) (95,000) 

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities $ (35,692) $ (13,493) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (4,677) 4,369

Cash, beginning of period 11,606 4,565

Cash, end of period $ 6,929 $ 8,934

Supplemental and non-cash financing activities

Interest expense paid $ 3,714 $ 2,470

Accrued but unpaid excise tax expense $ 529 $ 328

Accrued but unpaid deferred financing and debt issuance costs $ – $ 40

Accrued but unpaid offering costs $ 206 $ 26

Accrued but unpaid distributions $ 18,070 $ 16,354

Reinvestment of stockholder distributions $ 500 $ 252

Non-cash purchases of investments $ (640) $ –

Non-cash sales of investments $ 640 $ –

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of March 31, 2018 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

(Unaudited) 

Portfolio Company Industry

Interest Rate

(+)

Reference Rate and

Spread (++) Maturity Par Amount Cost Fair Value

Investments at Fair Value – 172.93% #

Corporate Debt (1) – 155.20%

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt – 57.82%

Artesyn Embedded Technologies, 

Inc.(2)

Electronic Equipment, 

Instruments & 

Components 9.75% 10/15/2020 $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 19,500

Collaborative Imaging, LLC^^^ (3) Health Care Providers & 

Services 8.39% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/28/2025 8,900 8,767 8,677

Continuum Managed Services 

LLC(3) (4)

IT Services

10.64% L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor 06/08/2023 21,498 20,966 21,014

Continuum Managed Services 

LLC(3) (4) (5) (6)

IT Services

L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor 06/08/2023 1,800 (42) (41) 

Continuum Managed Services 

LLC(3) (4) (5) (6)

IT Services

L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor 06/08/2022 2,220 (51) (50) 

Dade Paper & Bag, LLC(3) (4) Distributors 9.29% L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 06/10/2024 11,017 10,815 10,851

Dade Paper & Bag, LLC(3) (4) Distributors 8.89% L + 7.00%; 1.00% Floor 06/10/2024 1,405 1,391 1,352

Datto, Inc.(3) (4) IT Services 9.72% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/07/2022 35,750 35,072 35,035

Datto, Inc.(3) (4) (5) (6) IT Services L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/07/2022 2,406 (45) (48) 

Elemica, Inc.(4) Software 9.89% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 07/07/2021 41,756 41,003 41,026

Elemica, Inc.(4) (5) (6) Software L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 07/07/2021 6,000 (103) (105) 

Heligear Acquisition Co.(2) (4) Aerospace & Defense 10.25% 10/15/2019 17,500 17,382 17,500

Infinity Sales Group(4) Media 12.81% L + 10.50%; 1.00% Floor 11/21/2018 28,051 27,950 27,210

Iracore International Holdings, 

Inc.^ (4)

Energy Equipment & 

Services 10.88% L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor 04/12/2021 3,389 3,389 3,389

Kawa Solar Holdings

Limited^ (4) (7)

Construction & 

Engineering 9.66%PIK L + 8.00% 07/02/2018 9,227 9,147 9,227

Kawa Solar Holdings

Limited^ (4) (7) (8)

Construction & 

Engineering 07/02/2018 4,869 2,351 —

Legacy Buyer Corp.(4) Health Care Providers & 

Services 10.31% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/24/2019 24,301 24,112 23,937

Legacy Buyer Corp.(4) (5) (6) Health Care Providers & 

Services L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/24/2019 2,500 (19) (38) 

Lithium Technologies,

Inc.(3) (4)

Internet Software & 

Services 9.79% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/03/2022 21,100 20,661 20,678

Lithium Technologies,

Inc.(3) (4) (5) (6)

Internet Software & 

Services L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/03/2022 1,544 (31) (31) 

Madison-Kipp Corporation(4) Machinery 10.89% L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor 05/26/2020 33,355 33,018 33,271

Netvoyage Corporation(3) (4) Software 11.38% L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/24/2022 8,666 8,518 8,514

Netvoyage Corporation(3) (4) (5) (6) Software L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/24/2022 654 (10) (11) 

Real Industry, Inc.(3) Capital Markets 11.00% 11/17/2018 702 682 676

SF Home Décor, LLC(3) (4) Household Products 11.81% L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor 07/13/2022 20,598 20,045 20,186

The Merit Distribution Group, 

LLC(4)

Distributors

13.56% L + 11.25%; 0.50% Floor 04/08/2021 23,500 23,092 23,500

US Med Acquisition, Inc.(4) Health Care Equipment & 

Supplies 11.31% L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor 08/13/2021 30,186 29,797 27,847

Vexos, Inc.(4) Electronic Equipment, 

Instruments & 

Components 11.20% L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor 10/09/2019 37,172 36,886 36,057

Xactly Corporation(3) (4) Internet Software & 

Services 9.14% L + 7.25%; 1.00% Floor 07/29/2022 22,860 22,442 22,403

Xactly Corporation(3) (4) (5) (6) Internet Software & 

Services L + 7.25%; 1.00% Floor 07/29/2022 1,697 (30) (34) 

Yasso, Inc.(3) (4) Food Products 9.64% L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor 03/23/2022 9,009 8,859 8,649

Total 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt 426,014 420,141

1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche (9) – 32.72%

Associations, Inc.(4) Real Estate 

Management & 

Development 9.30% L + 7.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/23/2019 57,398 56,938 57,255

Avenue Stores, LLC(4) Specialty Retail 9.88% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 09/19/2019 30,000 29,737 29,100

Bolttech Mannings, Inc.^^ (4) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 10.30%PIK L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/22/2022 15,751 15,751 15,751



Bolttech Mannings, Inc.^^ (4) (5) Commercial Services & 

Supplies L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/21/2018 1,500 — —

Intelligent Document Solutions, 

Inc.(3) (4)

Diversified Financial 

Services 8.30% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 02/28/2024 11,900 11,516 11,513

Mervin Manufacturing, Inc.(4) Leisure Equipment & 

Products 9.23% L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 10/10/2019 11,165 11,079 10,327

NTS Communications, Inc.^ (4) Diversified 

Telecommunication 

Services 11.31%PIK L + 9.00%; 1.25% Floor 06/06/2019 59,979 57,792 53,082

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc.

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of March 31, 2018 (continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

Portfolio Company Industry

Interest Rate

(+)

Reference Rate and

Spread (++) Maturity Par Amount Cost Fair Value

Smarsh, Inc.(3) (4) Software 9.76% L + 7.88%; 1.00% Floor 03/31/2021 $ 17,711 $ 17,455 $ 17,445

The Service Companies Inc.(4) Professional Services 12.13% L + 10.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/26/2019 43,810 43,588 43,263

Total 1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 243,856 237,736

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt – 63.91%

American Dental Partners,

Inc.(3) (4)

Health Care

Providers & Services 10.80% L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor 09/25/2023 8,500 8,312 8,309

ASC Acquisition Holdings,

LLC(4)

Distributors

14.70% L + 13.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/15/2022 30,000 29,300 29,700

ASC Acquisition Holdings,

LLC(4)

Distributors

15.02% L + 13.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/15/2022 24,600 24,108 24,354

Country Fresh Holdings,

LLC(3) (4)

Food Products

10.49% L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor 10/02/2023 9,400 9,228 9,024

DiscoverOrg, LLC(4) Software 10.39% L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor 02/23/2024 59,500 58,436 59,054

DuBois Chemicals, Inc.(3) (4) Chemicals 9.82% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 03/15/2025 20,700 20,276 20,493

ERC Finance, LLC(3) (4) Health Care

Providers & Services 9.96% L + 8.22%; 1.00% Floor 09/21/2025 19,800 19,374 19,404

Global Tel*Link

Corporation(10)

Diversified

Telecommunication

Services 10.55% L + 8.25%; 1.25% Floor 11/23/2020 11,000 10,899 10,986

ICP Industrial, Inc.(3) (4) Chemicals 9.94% L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor 05/03/2024 16,600 16,205 16,185

ICP Industrial, Inc.(3) (4) Chemicals 10.10% L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor 05/03/2024 3,800 3,710 3,705

IHS Intermediate Inc.(4) Health Care

Providers & Services 10.00% L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor 07/20/2022 10,000 9,860 9,650

Institutional Shareholder 

Services Inc.(3)

Diversified Financial

Services 9.47% L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor 10/16/2025 5,100 5,076 5,126

Market Track, LLC(3) (4) Internet Catalog &

Retail 9.49% L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor 06/05/2025 22,200 21,582 21,534

MedPlast Holdings, Inc.(4) Health Care

Equipment &

Supplies 10.43% L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor 06/06/2023 46,500 45,489 45,453

MPI Products LLC(4) Auto Components 10.77% L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor 01/30/2020 20,000 19,875 19,900

National Spine and Pain 

Centers, LLC(3) (4)

Health Care

Providers & Services 10.56% L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor 12/02/2024 19,100 18,571 18,575

Oasis Outsourcing Holdings,

Inc.(3) (4)

Diversified Financial

Services 9.14% L + 7.25%; 1.00% Floor 07/01/2024 22,760 22,445 22,475

Odyssey Logistics & 

Technology Corporation(3)

Road & Rail

9.88% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/12/2025 13,500 13,175 13,534

P2 Upstream Acquisition Co. Software 9.80% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 04/30/2021 4,500 4,477 4,193

Pathway Partners Vet 

Management Company, LLC

Health Care

Providers & Services 9.88% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/10/2025 13,889 13,756 13,750

Pathway Partners Vet 

Management Company, LLC(5)

Health Care

Providers & Services 9.88% L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/10/2025 6,111 1,688 1,684

SMB Shipping Logistics,

LLC(3) (4)

Air Freight &

Logistics 10.72% L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor 02/03/2025 25,000 24,663 24,687

Spectrum Plastics Group, Inc.(3) Containers &

Packaging 8.88% L + 7.00%; 1.00% Floor 01/31/2026 6,248 6,217 6,279

SW Holdings, LLC(4) Media 11.05% L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor 12/30/2021 18,161 17,897 17,888

Young Innovations, Inc.(3) (4) Health Care

Equipment &

Supplies 10.05% L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor 11/07/2025 15,300 14,857 14,841

Zep Inc.(3) Chemicals 10.02% L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor 08/11/2025 23,800 23,233 23,681

Total 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 462,709 464,464

Unsecured Debt – 0.75%

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc.^ (4) Aerospace &

Defense 12.00%PIK 12/15/2019 3,499 3,499 3,499

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc.^ Aerospace &

Defense 12.00%PIK 03/05/2021 1,558 1,558 1,558

Conergy Asia & ME Pte.

LTD.^ (4) (7)

Construction &

Engineering 10.00% 06/30/2018 400 400 400

Total Unsecured Debt 5,457 5,457

Total Corporate Debt 1,138,036 1,127,798

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc.

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of March 31, 2018 (continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

Portfolio Company Industry Coupon Shares Cost Fair Value

Preferred Stock (1) – 1.72%

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc.^ (4) (8) Aerospace & Defense 1,108,333 $ 10,185 $ 11,915

Conergy Asia Holdings, Ltd.^ (4) (7) (8) Construction & Engineering 600,000 600 600

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited^ (4) (7) (11) Construction & Engineering 8.00% PIK 55,060 778 —

NTS Communications, Inc.^ (4) (8) Diversified Telecommunication 

Services 263 187 —

Total Preferred Stock 11,750 12,515

Common Stock (1) – 3.20%

Bolttech Mannings, Inc.^^ (4) (8) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 8,000 $ 6,591 $ 5,363

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc.^ (4) (8) Aerospace & Defense 453,383 2,393 3,482

Collaborative Imaging Holdco, LLC – Class B^^^ (3) (8) Health Care Providers & 

Services 8,464 1,141 1,141

Collaborative Imaging Holdco, LLC – Class C^^^ (3) (7) (8) Health Care Providers & 

Services 7,988 159 159

Conergy Asia Holdings, Ltd.^ (4) (7) (8) Construction & Engineering 2,000 4,700 3,704

Continuum Managed Services LLC – Class A(3) (4) (8) IT Services 733 733 788

Continuum Managed Services LLC – Class B(3) (4) (8) IT Services 496,698 7 238

Iracore International Holdings, Inc.^ (4) (8) Energy Equipment & Services 28,898 7,003 6,213

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited^ (4) (7) (8) Construction & Engineering 1,399,556 — —

National Spine and Pain Centers, LLC(3) (4) (8) Health Care Providers & 

Services 600 600 510

NTS Communications, Inc.^ (4) (8) Diversified Telecommunication 

Services 595,215 3 —

Prairie Provident Resources, Inc.^^^ (7) (8) Oil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 3,579,988 9,237 1,198

Yasso, Inc.(3) (4) (8) Food Products 850 850 471

Total Common Stock 33,417 23,267

Portfolio Company LLC Interest Cost Fair Value

Investment Funds & Vehicles (1) – 12.81%

Senior Credit Fund, LLC^^ (7) $94,342 $ 94,342 $ 93,100

Total Investment Funds & Vehicles 94,342 93,100

Yield Shares Cost Fair Value

Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund (1) – 0.00% #

Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund – Institutional Shares^^^ 1.61%(12) 2,279 $ 2 $ 2

Total Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund 2 2

TOTAL INVESTMENTS – 172.93% $1,277,547 $1,256,682

LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER ASSETS – (72.93%) $ (529,971) 

NET ASSETS – 100.00% $ 726,711

(+) The terms in the Consolidated Schedule of Investments disclose the actual interest rate for partially or fully funded debt in effect as of the reporting date. For 

investments with multiple interest rate contracts, the interest rate shown is the weighted average interest rate in effect at March 31, 2018. 

(++) Variable rate loans bear interest at a rate that may be determined by reference to either LIBOR (“L”) or alternate base rate (commonly based on the Prime Rate 

(“P”)), at the borrower’s option. L loans are typically indexed to 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month or 1 week L rates. As of March 31, 2018, rates for 

the 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month and 1 week L are 2.66%, 2.45%, 2.31%, 2.00%, 1.88% and 1.75%, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, P was 

4.75%. 

# Percentages are based on net assets. 

^ As defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, the investment is deemed to be an “affiliated person” of the Company because the Company owns, either 

directly or indirectly, 5% or more of the portfolio company’s outstanding voting securities. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related Party Transactions”. 

^^ As defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, the investment is deemed to be a “controlled affiliated person” of the Company because the Company owns, 

either directly or indirectly, 25% or more of the portfolio company’s outstanding voting securities or has the power to exercise control over management or policies 

of such portfolio company. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related Party Transactions”. 

^^^ As defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, the Company is deemed to be an “Affiliated Person” of the portfolio company because it owns 5% or more of 

such portfolio company’s outstanding voting securities or it has the power to exercise control over the management or policies of such portfolio company 

(including through a management agreement). 

(1) Assets are pledged as collateral for the Revolving Credit Facility. See Note 6 “Debt”. 

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of March 31, 2018 (continued) 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

(Unaudited) 

(2) Security exempt from registration pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933. These securities may be sold in certain transactions (normally to 

qualified institutional buyers) and remain exempt from registration. As of March 31, 2018, the aggregate fair value of these securities is $37,000 or 5.09% of the 

Company’s net assets. 

(3) Represent co-investments made with the Company’s affiliates in accordance with the terms of the exemptive relief that the Company received from the U.S. 

Securities and Exchange Commission. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related Party Transactions”. 

(4) The fair value of the investment was determined using significant unobservable inputs. See Note 5 “Fair Value Measurement”. 

(5) Position or portion thereof is an unfunded loan commitment, and no interest is being earned on the unfunded portion. The unfunded loan commitment may be 

subject to a commitment termination date that may expire prior to the maturity date stated. See Note 7 “Commitments and Contingencies”. 

(6) The negative cost is the result of the capitalized discount being greater than the principal amount outstanding on the loan. The negative fair value is the result of the 

capitalized discount on the loan. 

(7) The investment is not a qualifying asset under Section 55(a) of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The Company may not acquire any non-qualifying asset 

unless, at the time of acquisition, qualifying assets represent at least 70% of the Company’s total assets. As of March 31, 2018 the aggregate fair value of these 

securities is $108,388 or 8.43% of the Company’s total assets. 

(8) Non-income producing security. 

(9) In exchange for the greater risk of loss, the “last-out” portion of the Company’s unitranche loan investment generally earns a higher interest rate than the “first-out” 

portions. 

(10) Position or portion thereof unsettled as of March 31, 2018. 

(11) The investment is on non-accrual status as of March 31, 2018. 

(12) The rate shown is the annualized seven-day yield as of March 31, 2018. 

PIK – Payment-In-Kind 

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2017 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

Portfolio Company Industry Interest(+) Maturity Par Amount Cost Fair Value

Investments at Fair Value – 173.36% #

Corporate Debt (1) – 155.62%

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt – 56.08%

Artesyn Embedded Technologies, Inc.(2) Electronic Equipment, 

Instruments & Components 9.75% 10/15/2020 $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 19,600

Continuum Managed Services LLC(3)(4) IT Services 10.32% (L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor) 06/08/2023 21,552 20,999 21,013

Continuum Managed Services LLC(3)(4)(5)(6) IT Services (L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor) 06/08/2023 1,800 (44) (45) 

Continuum Managed Services LLC(3)(4)(5)(6) IT Services (L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor) 06/08/2022 2,220 (54) (56) 

Dade Paper & Bag, LLC(3)(4) Distributors 8.93% (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 06/10/2024 11,045 10,836 10,851

Datto, Inc.(3) IT Services 9.41% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/07/2022 35,750 35,044 35,035

Datto, Inc.(3)(5)(6) IT Services (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/07/2022 2,406 (48) (48) 

Elemica, Inc.(4) Software 9.57% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 07/07/2021 41,863 41,059 41,130

Elemica, Inc.(4)(5)(6) Software (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 07/07/2021 6,000 (111) (105) 

Heligear Acquisition Co.(2)(4) Aerospace & Defense 10.25% 10/15/2019 17,500 17,365 17,719

Infinity Sales Group(4) Media 12.20% (L + 10.50%; 1.00% Floor) 11/21/2018 28,277 28,137 27,146

Iracore International Holdings, Inc.^(4) Energy Equipment & 

Services 10.63% (L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor) 04/12/2021 3,389 3,389 3,389

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited^(4)(7) Construction & Engineering 9.69% PIK (L + 8.00%) 07/02/2018 9,720 9,624 8,918

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited^(4)(7)(8) Construction & Engineering 07/02/2018 4,229 1,711 —

Legacy Buyer Corp.(4) Health Care Providers & 

Services 9.70% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/24/2019 24,495 24,276 24,127

Legacy Buyer Corp.(4)(5)(6) Health Care Providers & 

Services (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/24/2019 2,500 (22) (37) 

Lithium Technologies, Inc.(3) Internet Software & Services 9.39% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/03/2022 21,100 20,642 20,625

Lithium Technologies, Inc.(3)(5)(6) Internet Software & Services (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/03/2022 1,544 (33) (35) 

Madison-Kipp Corporation(4) Machinery 10.57% (L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor) 05/26/2020 33,447 33,075 33,280

Netvoyage Corporation(3)(4) Software 11.07% (L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/24/2022 7,849 7,710 7,711

Netvoyage Corporation(3)(4)(5)(6) Software (L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/24/2022 654 (11) (11) 

SF Home Décor, LLC(3)(4) Household Products 11.20% (L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor) 07/13/2022 20,865 20,281 20,239

The Merit Distribution Group, LLC(4) Distributors 12.95% (L + 11.25%; 0.50% Floor) 04/08/2021 23,875 23,433 23,875

US Med Acquisition, Inc.(4) Health Care Equipment & 

Supplies 10.69% (L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/13/2021 30,264 29,850 28,448

Vexos, Inc.(4) Electronic Equipment, 

Instruments & Components 10.84% (L + 9.50%; 1.00% Floor) 10/09/2019 37,485 37,153 36,173

Xactly Corporation(3)(4) Internet Software & Services 8.82% (L + 7.25%; 1.00% Floor) 07/29/2022 19,800 19,430 19,404

Xactly Corporation(3)(4)(5)(6) Internet Software & Services (L + 7.25%; 1.00% Floor) 07/29/2022 1,697 (31) (34) 

Yasso, Inc.(3)(4) Food Products 9.44% (L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor) 03/23/2022 9,032 8,874 8,761

Total 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt 412,534 407,073

1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche (9) – 37.75%

Associations, Inc.(4) Real Estate Management & 

Development 8.69% (L + 7.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/23/2019 57,541 57,019 57,253

Avenue Stores, LLC(4) Specialty Retail 11.50% (P + 7.00%) 09/19/2019 30,000 29,696 29,550

Bolttech Mannings, Inc.^^(4) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 9.66% PIK (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/22/2022 8,087 8,087 8,087

Bolttech Mannings, Inc.^^ Commercial Services & 

Supplies 9.66% PIK (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/22/2022 5,891 5,891 5,891

Bolttech Mannings, Inc.^^(5) Commercial Services & 

Supplies (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/21/2018 1,500 — —

Intelligent Document Solutions, Inc.(3)(4) Diversified Financial 

Services 9.95% (L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor) 08/31/2022 11,900 11,618 11,722

Mervin Manufacturing, Inc.(4) Leisure Equipment & 

Products 8.86% (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 10/10/2019 11,165 11,066 10,327

myON, LLC(3)(4) Internet Software & Services 10.07% (L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor) 02/17/2022 7,100 6,977 6,976

NTS Communications, Inc.^(4) Diversified 

Telecommunication Services 10.70% PIK (L + 9.00%; 1.25% Floor) 06/06/2019 58,400 55,818 51,538

Pro-Pet, LLC(4) Household Products 8.88% (L + 7.25%; 0.75% Floor) 11/21/2019 31,600 31,253 31,284

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2017 (continued) 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

Portfolio Company Industry Interest(+) Maturity Par Amount Cost Fair Value

Smarsh, Inc.(3) (4) Software 9.45% (L + 7.88%; 1.00% Floor) 03/31/2021 $ 17,711 $ 17,437 $ 17,445

The Service Companies Inc.(4) Professional Services 11.95% (L + 10.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/26/2019 44,448 44,169 43,892

Total 1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 279,031 273,965

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt – 61.25%

American Dental Partners, Inc.(3)(4) Health Care Providers & 

Services 10.19% (L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor) 09/25/2023 8,500 8,306 8,309

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC(4) Distributors 14.34% (L + 13.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/15/2022 30,000 29,275 29,700

Country Fresh Holdings, LLC(3)(4) Food Products 10.11% (L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor) 10/02/2023 9,400 9,222 9,118

DiscoverOrg, LLC(4) Software 10.07% (L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor) 02/23/2024 59,500 58,404 58,905

DuBois Chemicals, Inc.(3)(4) Chemicals 9.49% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 03/15/2025 20,700 20,265 20,493

ERC Finance, LLC(3)(4) Health Care Providers & 

Services 9.58% (L + 8.22%; 1.00% Floor) 09/21/2025 19,800 19,365 19,354

Global Tel*Link Corporation Diversified 

Telecommunication Services 9.94% (L + 8.25%; 1.25% Floor) 11/23/2020 23,000 22,778 22,971

ICP Industrial, Inc.(3) Chemicals 9.62% (L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor) 05/03/2024 16,600 16,193 16,185

ICP Industrial, Inc.(3)(5)(6) Chemicals (L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor) 05/03/2024 3,800 (93) (95) 

IHS Intermediate Inc.(4) Health Care Providers & 

Services 9.62% (L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor) 07/20/2022 10,000 9,853 9,550

Institutional Shareholder Services Inc.(3) Diversified Financial 

Services 9.11% (L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor) 10/16/2025 5,100 5,075 5,113

Market Track, LLC(3)(4) Internet Catalog & Retail 9.10% (L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor) 06/05/2025 22,200 21,567 21,534

MedPlast Holdings, Inc.(4) Health Care Equipment & 

Supplies 10.23% (L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor) 06/06/2023 46,500 45,452 45,453

MPI Products LLC(4) Auto Components 10.38% (L + 9.00%; 1.00% Floor) 01/30/2020 20,000 19,860 19,900

National Spine and Pain Centers, LLC(3)(4) Health Care Providers & 

Services 9.94% (L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor) 12/02/2024 19,100 18,558 18,575

Oasis Outsourcing Holdings, Inc.(3)(4) Diversified Financial 

Services 8.82% (L + 7.25%; 1.00% Floor) 07/01/2024 22,760 22,436 22,419

Odyssey Logistics & Technology 

Corporation(3)

Road & Rail

9.57% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/12/2025 13,500 13,168 13,433

P2 Upstream Acquisition Co. Software 9.40% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 04/30/2021 5,000 4,973 4,550

Pathway Partners Vet Management 

Company, LLC

Health Care Providers & 

Services 9.57% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/10/2025 13,889 13,753 13,750

Pathway Partners Vet Management 

Company, LLC(5)(6)

Health Care Providers & 

Services (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/10/2025 6,111 (60) (61) 

PPC Industries Inc.(3) Containers & Packaging 9.33% (L + 8.00%; 1.00% Floor) 05/08/2025 8,330 8,252 8,309

SMB Shipping Logistics, LLC(3)(4) Air Freight & Logistics 10.20% (L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor) 02/03/2025 25,000 24,655 24,625

SW Holdings, LLC(4) Media 10.44% (L + 8.75%; 1.00% Floor) 12/30/2021 14,265 14,067 14,051

Young Innovations, Inc.(3) Health Care Equipment & 

Supplies 9.44% (L + 7.75%; 1.00% Floor) 11/07/2025 15,300 14,847 14,841

Zep Inc.(3) Chemicals 9.63% (L + 8.25%; 1.00% Floor) 08/11/2025 23,800 23,220 23,621

Total 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 443,391 444,603

Unsecured Debt – 0.54%

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc.^(4) Aerospace & Defense 12.00% PIK 12/15/2019 3,500 3,500 3,500

Conergy Asia & ME Pte. LTD.^(7) Construction & Engineering 10.00% 06/30/2018 400 400 400

Total Unsecured Debt 3,900 3,900

Total Corporate Debt 1,138,856 1,129,541

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2017 (continued) 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

Portfolio Company Industry Coupon Shares Cost Fair Value

Preferred Stock (1) – 1.77%

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc.^(4)(8) Aerospace & Defense 1,108,333 $10,185 $ 12,236

Conergy Asia Holdings, Ltd.^(4)(7)(8) Construction & Engineering 600,000 600 600

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited^(4)(7)(10) Construction & Engineering 8.00% PIK 53,968 778 —

NTS Communications, Inc.^(4)(8) Diversified Telecommunication 

Services 263 187 —

Total Preferred Stock 11,750 12,836

Common Stock (1) – 3.28%

Bolttech Mannings, Inc.^^(4)(8) Commercial Services & Supplies 8,000 6,591 6,591

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc.^(4)(8) Aerospace & Defense 453,383 2,393 3,609

Conergy Asia Holdings, Ltd.^(4)(7)(8) Construction & Engineering 2,000 4,700 3,832

Continuum Managed Services LLC – Class A(3)(4)(8) IT Services 733 733 733

Continuum Managed Services LLC – Class B(3)(4)(8) IT Services 496,698 7 7

Iracore International Holdings, Inc.^(4)(8) Energy Equipment & Services 28,898 7,003 6,213

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2017 (continued) 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

Portfolio Company Industry Coupon Shares Cost Fair Value

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited^ (4) (7) (8) Construction & Engineering 1,399,556 $ — $ —

myON, LLC(3) (4) (8) Internet Software & Services 16,087 600 600

National Spine and Pain Centers, LLC(3) (4) (8) Health Care Providers & 

Services 600 600 510

NTS Communications, Inc.^ (4) (8) Diversified Telecommunication 

Services 595,215 3 —

Prairie Provident Resources, Inc.^^^ (7) (8) Oil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 3,579,988 9,237 1,233

Yasso, Inc.(3) (4) (8) Food Products 850 850 511

Total Common Stock 32,717 23,839

Portfolio Company LLC Interest Cost Fair Value

Investment Funds & Vehicles (1) – 12.69%

Senior Credit Fund, LLC^^ (7) $94,342 $ 94,342 $ 92,097

Total Investment Funds & Vehicles 94,342 92,097

Yield Shares Cost Fair Value

Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund (1) – 1.59% #

Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund – Institutional Shares 1.21%(11) 11,539,321 $ 11,539 $ 11,539

Total Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund 11,539 11,539

TOTAL INVESTMENTS – 174.95% $1,289,204 $ 1,269,852

LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER ASSETS – (74.95%) $ (544,022) 

NET ASSETS – 100.00% $ 725,830

(+) Variable rate loans bear interest at a rate that may be determined by reference to either LIBOR (“L”) or alternate base rate (commonly based on the Prime Rate 

(“P”)), at the borrower’s option. L loans are typically indexed to 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month or 1 week L rates. The terms in the Schedule of 

Investments disclose the actual interest rate in effect as of the reporting date. For investments with multiple interest rate contracts, the interest rate shown is the 

weighted average interest rate in effect at December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, rates for the 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month and 1 week 

L were 2.11%, 1.84%, 1.69%, 1.62%, 1.56% and 1.48%, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, P was 4.50%. 

# Percentages are based on net assets. 

^ As defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, the investment is deemed to be an “affiliated person” of the Company because the Company owns, either 

directly or indirectly, 5% or more of the portfolio company’s outstanding voting securities. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related Party Transactions”. 

^^ As defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, the investment is deemed to be a “controlled affiliated person” of the Company because the Company owns, 

either directly or indirectly, 25% or more of the portfolio company’s outstanding voting securities or has the power to exercise control over management or policies 

of such portfolio company. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related Party Transactions”. 

^^^ The investment is deemed to be an “affiliated person” of the Company because it falls under the definition of “affiliated person” in the Investment Company Act of 

1940 with respect to the Company. 

(1) Assets are pledged as collateral for the Revolving Credit Facility. See Note 6 “Debt”. 

(2) Security exempt from registration pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933. These securities may be sold in certain transactions (normally to 

qualified institutional buyers) and remain exempt from registration. As of December 31, 2017, the aggregate fair value of these securities is $37,319 or 5.14% of 

the Company’s net assets. 

(3) Represent co-investments made with the Company’s affiliates in accordance with the terms of the exemptive relief that the Company received from the U.S. 

Securities and Exchange Commission. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related Party Transactions”. 

(4) The fair value of the investment was determined using significant unobservable inputs. See Note 5 “Fair Value Measurement”. 

(5) Position or portion thereof is an unfunded loan commitment, and no interest is being earned on the unfunded portion. The unfunded loan commitment may be 

subject to a commitment termination date that may expire prior to the maturity date stated. See Note 7 “Commitments and Contingencies”. 

(6) The negative cost is the result of the capitalized discount being greater than the principal amount outstanding on the loan. The negative fair value is the result of the 

capitalized discount on the loan. 

(7) The investment is not a qualifying asset under Section 55(a) of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The Company may not acquire any non-qualifying asset 

unless, at the time of acquisition, qualifying assets represent at least 70% of the Company’s total assets. As of December 31, 2017 the aggregate fair value of 

non-qualifying assets was $107,080 or 8.25% of the Company’s total assets. 

(8) Non-income producing security. 

(9) In exchange for the greater risk of loss, the “last-out” portion of the Company’s unitranche loan investment generally earns a higher interest rate than the “first-out” 

portions. 

(10) The investment was on non-accrual status as of December 31, 2017. 

(11) The rate shown is the annualized seven-day yield as of December 31, 2017. 

PIK – Payment-In-Kind 

The accompanying notes are part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements. 
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Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

(Unaudited) 

1. ORGANIZATION 

Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. (the “Company,” which term refers to either Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. or Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. 

together with its consolidated subsidiaries, as the context may require) was initially established as Goldman Sachs Liberty Harbor 

Capital, LLC, a single member Delaware limited liability company (“SMLLC”), on September 26, 2012 and commenced operations on 

November 15, 2012 with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (“Group Inc.”) as its sole member. On March 29, 2013, the Company elected 

to be regulated as a business development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment 

Company Act”). Effective April 1, 2013, the Company converted from a SMLLC to a Delaware corporation. In addition, the Company 

has elected to be treated as a regulated investment company (“RIC”) under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended (the “Code”), commencing with its taxable year ended December 31, 2013. 

The Company’s investment objective is to generate current income and, to a lesser extent, capital appreciation primarily through direct 

originations of secured debt, including first lien, unitranche, including last-out portions of such loans, and second lien debt, and 

unsecured debt, including mezzanine debt, as well as through select equity investments. 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P. (“GSAM”), a Delaware limited partnership and an affiliate of Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC 

(including its predecessors, “GS & Co.”), is the investment adviser (the “Investment Adviser”) of the Company. The term “Goldman 

Sachs” refers to Group Inc., together with GS & Co., GSAM and its other subsidiaries. 

On March 23, 2015, the Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO”) and the Company’s common stock began trading on the 

New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “GSBD”. 

The Company has formed wholly owned subsidiaries, which are structured as Delaware limited liability companies, to hold certain 

equity or equity-like investments in portfolio companies. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The Company’s functional currency is U.S. dollars and these consolidated financial statements have been prepared in that currency. The 

accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America (“GAAP”) and pursuant to Regulation S-X. This requires the Company to make certain estimates and 

assumptions that may affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. These consolidated 

financial statements reflect adjustments that in the opinion of the Company are necessary for the fair statement of the results for the 

periods presented. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions included in the consolidated financial statements. 

Certain financial information that is included in annual consolidated financial statements, including certain financial statement 

disclosures, prepared in accordance with GAAP, is not required for interim reporting purposes and has been condensed or omitted 

herein. These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial 

statements and notes related thereto for the year ended December 31, 2017, included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, 

which was filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on February 22, 2018. The results for the three months 

ended March 31, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full fiscal year, any other interim period or any 

future year or period. 

Certain prior period information has been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. The reclassification has no effect on 

the Company’s consolidated financial position or the consolidated results of operations as previously reported. 

As an investment company, the Company applies the accounting and reporting guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 

Topic 946, Financial Services – Investment Companies (“ASC 946”) issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). 

Basis of Consolidation 

As provided under ASC 946, the Company will not consolidate its investment in a company other than an investment company 

subsidiary or a controlled operating company whose business consists of providing services to the Company. Accordingly, the 

Company consolidated the financial position and results of operations of its wholly owned subsidiary, BDC Blocker I, LLC, formerly 

known as My-On BDC Blocker, LLC. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. 
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The Company does not consolidate its equity interest in Senior Credit Fund, LLC (the “Senior Credit Fund”). For further description of 

the Company’s investment in the Senior Credit Fund, see Note 4 “Investments”. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company records its investment transactions on a trade date basis. Realized gains and losses are based on the specific identification 

method. 

Interest income, adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount, is recorded on an accrual basis. Discounts and 

premiums to par value on investments purchased are accreted and amortized, respectively, into interest income over the life of the 

respective investment using the effective interest method. Loan origination fees, original issue discount (“OID”) and market discounts 

or premiums are capitalized and amortized into interest income using the effective interest method or straight-line method, as 

applicable. Upon prepayment of a loan or debt security, any prepayment premiums, unamortized upfront loan origination fees and 

unamortized discounts are recorded as interest income. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company earned 

$476 and $1,331, respectively, in prepayment premiums and $833 and $287, respectively, in accelerated accretion of upfront loan 

origination fees and unamortized discounts. 

Fees received from portfolio companies (directors’ fees, consulting fees, administrative fees, tax advisory fees and other similar 

compensation) are paid to the Company, unless, to the extent required by applicable law or exemptive relief, if any, therefrom, the 

Company only receives its allocable portion of such fees when invested in the same portfolio company as another account managed by 

the Investment Adviser. 

Dividend income on preferred equity investments is recorded on an accrual basis to the extent that such amounts are payable by the 

portfolio company and are expected to be collected. Dividend income on common equity investments is recorded on the record date for 

private portfolio companies and on the ex-dividend date for publicly traded portfolio companies. Interest and dividend income are 

presented net of withholding tax, if any. 

Certain investments may have contractual payment-in-kind (“PIK”) interest or dividends. PIK represents accrued interest or 

accumulated dividends that are added to the principal amount or shares (if equity) of the investment on the respective interest or 

dividend payment dates rather than being paid in cash and generally becomes due at maturity or upon the investment being called by the 

issuer. PIK is recorded as interest or dividend income, as applicable. If at any point the Company believes PIK is not expected to be 

realized, the investment generating PIK will be placed on non-accrual status. When a PIK investment is placed on non-accrual status, 

the accrued, uncapitalized interest or dividends are generally reversed through interest or dividend income, respectively. 

Certain structuring fees, amendment fees and syndication fees are recorded as other income when earned. Administrative agent fees 

received by the Company are recorded as other income when the services are rendered over time. 

Non-Accrual Investments 

Loans or debt securities are placed on non-accrual status when it is probable that principal or interest will not be collected according to 

the contractual terms. Accrued interest generally is reversed when a loan or debt security is placed on non-accrual status. Interest 

payments received on non-accrual loans or debt securities may be recognized as income or applied to principal depending upon 

management’s judgment. Non-accrual loans and debt securities are restored to accrual status when past due principal and interest are 

paid and, in management’s judgment, principal and interest payments are likely to remain current. The Company may make exceptions 

to this treatment if a loan or debt security has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of collection. As of March 31, 2018, the 

Company had one investment on non-accrual status, which represented 0.1% and 0.0% of the total investments (excluding an 

investment in a money market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc. of $2) at amortized cost and at fair value, respectively. As of 

December 31, 2017, the Company had one investment on non-accrual status, which represented 0.1% and 0.0% of the total investments 

(excluding an investment in a money market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc. of $11,539) at amortized cost and at fair value, 

respectively. 

Investments 

The Company carries its investments in accordance with ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”), 

issued by the FASB, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair value 

measurements. Fair value is generally based on quoted market prices provided by independent pricing services, broker or dealer 

quotations or alternative price sources. In the absence of quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations or alternative price sources, 

investments are measured at fair value as determined by the board of directors (the “Board of Directors”) within the meaning of the 

Investment Company Act. 
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Due to the inherent uncertainties of valuation, certain estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have 

been realized had a ready market for these investments existed, and these differences could be material. See Note 5 “Fair Value 

Measurement.” 

The Company generally invests in illiquid securities, including debt and equity investments, of middle-market companies. The Board of 

Directors has delegated to the Investment Adviser day-to-day responsibility for implementing and maintaining internal controls and 

procedures related to the valuation of the Company’s portfolio investments. Under valuation procedures adopted by the Board of 

Directors, market quotations are generally used to assess the value of the investments for which market quotations are readily available. 

The Investment Adviser obtains these market quotations from independent pricing services or at the bid prices obtained from at least 

two brokers or dealers, if available; otherwise from a principal market maker or a primary market dealer. To assess the continuing 

appropriateness of pricing sources and methodologies, the Investment Adviser regularly performs price verification procedures and 

issues challenges as necessary to independent pricing services or brokers, and any differences are reviewed in accordance with the 

valuation procedures. If the Board of Directors or Investment Adviser has a bona fide reason to believe any such market quotation does 

not reflect the fair value of an investment, it may independently value such investment in accordance with valuation procedures for 

investments for which market quotations are not readily available. 

With respect to investments for which market quotations are not readily available, or for which market quotations are deemed not 

reflective of the fair value, the valuation procedures adopted by the Board of Directors contemplate a multi-step valuation process each 

quarter, as described below: 

(1) The quarterly valuation process begins with each portfolio company or investment being initially valued by the investment 

professionals of the Investment Adviser responsible for the portfolio investment; 

(2) The Board of Directors also engages independent valuation firms (the “Independent Valuation Advisors”) to provide 

independent valuations of the investments for which market quotations are not readily available, or are readily available 

but deemed not reflective of the fair value of an investment. The Independent Valuation Advisors independently value 

such investments using quantitative and qualitative information provided by the investment professionals of the 

Investment Adviser and the portfolio companies as well as any market quotations obtained from independent pricing 

services, brokers, dealers or market dealers. The Independent Valuation Advisors also provide analyses to support their 

valuation methodology and calculations. The Independent Valuation Advisors provide an opinion on a final range of 

values on such investments to the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee. The Independent Valuation Advisors define 

fair value in accordance with ASC 820 and utilize valuation approaches including the market approach, the income 

approach or both. A portion of the portfolio is reviewed on a quarterly basis, and all investments in the portfolio for which 

market quotations are not readily available, or are readily available, but deemed not reflective of the fair value of an 

investment, are reviewed at least annually by an Independent Valuation Advisor; 

(3) The Independent Valuation Advisors’ preliminary valuations are reviewed by the Investment Adviser and the Valuation 

Oversight Group (“VOG”), a team that is part of the Controllers Department within the Finance Division of Goldman 

Sachs. The Independent Valuation Advisors’ valuation ranges are compared to the Investment Adviser’s valuations to 

ensure the Investment Adviser’s valuations are reasonable. VOG presents the valuations to the Private Investment 

Valuation and Side Pocket Sub-Committee of the Investment Management Division Valuation Committee, which is 

comprised of representatives from GSAM who are independent of the investment decision making process; 

(4) The Investment Management Division Valuation Committee ratifies fair valuations and makes recommendations to the 

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors; 

(5) The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews valuation information provided by the Investment Management 

Division Valuation Committee, the Investment Adviser and the Independent Valuation Advisors. The Audit Committee 

then assesses such valuation recommendations; and 

(6) The Board of Directors discusses the valuations and, within the meaning of the Investment Company Act, determines the 

fair value of the investments in good faith, based on the inputs of the Investment Adviser, the Independent Valuation 

Advisors and the Audit Committee. 

Money Market Funds 

Investments in money market funds are valued at net asset value (“NAV”) per share. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related 

Party Transactions.” 

18 



Cash 

Cash consists of deposits held at a custodian bank. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company held $6,929 and 

$11,606, respectively, in cash. 

Foreign Currency Translation 

Amounts denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars on the following basis: (i) investments and other assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars based upon currency exchange rates effective on the date of 

valuation; and (ii) purchases and sales of investments and income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated 

into U.S. dollars based upon currency exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. 

The Company does not isolate the portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on investments 

from fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included within the net realized and 

unrealized gains or losses on investment transactions. 

Income Taxes 

The Company recognizes tax positions in its consolidated financial statements only when it is more likely than not that the position will 

be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. A position that meets this 

standard is measured at the largest amount of benefit that will more likely than not be realized upon settlement. The Company reports 

any interest expense related to income tax matters in income tax expense, and any income tax penalties under expenses in the 

Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

The Company’s tax positions have been reviewed based on applicable statutes of limitation for tax assessments, which may vary by 

jurisdiction, and based on such review, the Company has concluded that no additional provision for income tax is required in the 

consolidated financial statements. The Company is subject to potential examination by certain taxing authorities in various jurisdictions. 

The Company’s tax positions are subject to ongoing interpretation of laws and regulations by taxing authorities. 

The Company has elected to be treated as a RIC commencing with its taxable year ended December 31, 2013. So long as the Company 

maintains its status as a RIC, it will generally not be subject to corporate-level U.S. federal income tax on any ordinary income or 

capital gains that it distributes at least annually to its stockholders as dividends. As a result, any U.S. federal income tax liability related 

to income earned and distributed by the Company represents obligations of the Company’s stockholders and will not be reflected in the 

consolidated financial statements of the Company. 

To maintain its status as a RIC, the Company must meet specified source-of-income and asset diversification requirements and timely 

distribute to its stockholders for each taxable year at least 90% of its investment company taxable income (generally, its net ordinary 

income plus the excess of its realized net short-term capital gains over realized net long-term capital losses, determined without regard 

to the dividends paid deduction). In order for the Company not to be subject to U.S. federal excise taxes, it must distribute annually an 

amount at least equal to the sum of (i) 98% of its net ordinary income (taking into account certain deferrals and elections) for the 

calendar year, (ii) 98.2% of its capital gains in excess of capital losses for the one-year period ending on October 31 of the calendar year 

and (iii) any net ordinary income and capital gains in excess of capital losses for preceding years that were not distributed during such 

years. The Company, at its discretion, may carry forward taxable income in excess of calendar year dividends and pay a 4% 

nondeductible U.S. federal excise tax on this income. If the Company chooses to do so, this generally would increase expenses and 

reduce the amount available to be distributed to stockholders. The Company will accrue excise tax on estimated undistributed taxable 

income as required. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company accrued excise taxes of $285 and $365, 

respectively. As of March 31, 2018, $529 of accrued excise taxes remained payable. 

Certain of the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal and state corporate-level income taxes. For the three 

months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company accrued income taxes of $447 and $0, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, $447 

of income taxes remained payable. 

Distributions 

Distributions from net investment income and net realized capital gains are determined in accordance with U.S. federal income tax 

regulations, which may differ from those amounts determined in accordance with GAAP. The Company may pay distributions in excess 

of its taxable net investment income. This excess would be a tax-free return of capital in the period and reduce the stockholder’s tax 

basis in its shares. These book/tax differences are either temporary or permanent in nature. To the extent these differences are 

permanent they are charged or credited to paid-in capital in excess of par, accumulated undistributed net investment income or 

accumulated net realized gain (loss), as appropriate, in the period that the differences arise. Temporary and permanent differences are 

primarily attributable to differences in the tax treatment of certain loans and the tax characterization of income and non-deductible 



expenses. These differences are generally determined in conjunction with the preparation of the Company’s annual RIC tax return. 

Distributions to common stockholders are recorded on the ex-dividend date. The amount to be paid out as a distribution is determined 

by the Board of Directors each quarter and is generally based upon the earnings estimated by the Investment Adviser. The Company 

may pay distributions to its stockholders in a year in excess of its net ordinary income and capital gains for that year and, accordingly, a 

portion of such distributions may constitute a return of capital for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The Company intends to timely 

distribute to its stockholders substantially all of its annual taxable income for each year, except that the Company may retain certain net 

capital gains for reinvestment and, depending upon the level of the Company’s taxable income earned in a year, the Company may 

choose to carry forward taxable income for distribution in the following year and pay any applicable U.S. federal excise tax. The 

specific tax characteristics of the Company’s distributions will be reported to stockholders after the end of the calendar year. All 

distributions will be subject to available funds, and no assurance can be given that the Company will be able to declare such 

distributions in future periods. 
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The Company has adopted a dividend reinvestment plan that provides for reinvestment of all cash distributions declared by the Board of 

Directors unless a stockholder elects to “opt out” of the plan. As a result, if the Board of Directors declares a cash distribution, then the 

stockholders who have not “opted out” of the dividend reinvestment plan will have their cash distributions automatically reinvested in 

additional shares of common stock, rather than receiving the cash distribution. Stockholders who receive distributions in the form of 

shares of common stock will generally be subject to the same U.S. federal, state and local tax consequences as if they received cash 

distributions and, for this purpose, stockholders receiving distributions in the form of stock will generally be treated as receiving 

distributions equal to the fair market value of the stock received through the plan; however, since their cash distributions will be 

reinvested, those stockholders will not receive cash with which to pay any applicable taxes. Due to regulatory considerations, Group 

Inc. has opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan, and GS & Co. has opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan in respect of shares 

of the Company’s common stock acquired through its 10b5-1 plan. See Note 3 “Significant Agreements and Related Party 

Transactions”. 

Deferred Financing and Debt Issuance Costs 

Deferred financing and debt issuance costs consist of fees and expenses paid in connection with the closing of and amendments to the 

Company’s senior secured revolving credit agreement (as amended, the “Revolving Credit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank, as 

administrative agent, and Bank of America, N.A., as syndication agent, and the offering of the Company’s 4.50% Convertible Notes 

due 2022 (the “Convertible Notes”). These costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the respective term of the Revolving 

Credit Facility and Convertible Notes. Deferred financing costs related to the Revolving Credit Facility are presented separately as an 

asset on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities. Deferred debt issuance costs related to the Convertible Notes 

are presented net against the outstanding debt balance on the Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities. 

Deferred Offering Costs 

The Company records expenses related to registration statement filings and applicable offering costs as deferred offering costs. To the 

extent such expenses relate to equity offerings, these expenses are charged as a reduction of paid-in-capital upon each such offering. 

3. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Investment Management Agreement 

The Company has entered into an investment management agreement (as amended and restated as of January 1, 2015, the “Investment 

Management Agreement”) with the Investment Adviser, pursuant to which the Investment Adviser manages the Company’s investment 

program and related activities. 

Management Fee 

The Company pays the Investment Adviser a management fee (the “Management Fee”), accrued and payable quarterly in arrears. The 

Management Fee is calculated at an annual rate of 1.50% (0.375% per quarter) of the average value of the Company’s gross assets 

(excluding cash or cash equivalents (such as investments in money market funds), but including assets purchased with borrowed 

amounts) at the end of each of the two most recently completed calendar quarters (and, in the case of our first quarter, our gross assets 

as of such quarter-end). The Management Fee for any partial quarter will be appropriately prorated. 

For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, Management Fees amounted to $4,803 and $4,461, respectively. As of 

March 31, 2018, $4,803 remained payable. 

Incentive Fee 

The incentive fee (the “Incentive Fee”) consists of two components that are determined independent of each other, with the result that 

one component may be payable even if the other is not. Effective as of January 1, 2015, the Incentive Fee is calculated as follows: 

A portion of the Incentive Fee is based on income and a portion is based on capital gains, each as described below. The Investment 

Adviser is entitled to receive the Incentive Fee based on income if Ordinary Income (as defined below) exceeds a quarterly “hurdle 

rate” of 1.75%. For this purpose, the hurdle is computed by reference to the Company’s NAV and does not take into account changes in 

the market price of the Company’s common stock. 

Beginning with the calendar quarter that commenced on January 1, 2015, the Incentive Fee based on income is determined and paid 

quarterly in arrears at the end of each calendar quarter by reference to the Company’s aggregate net investment income, as adjusted as 

described below, from the calendar quarter then ending and the eleven preceding calendar quarters (or if shorter, the number of quarters 

that have occurred since January 1, 2015) (such period the “Trailing Twelve Quarters”). The Incentive Fee based on capital gains is 

determined and paid annually in arrears at the end of each calendar year by reference to an “Annual Period,” which means the period 



beginning on January 1 of each calendar year and ending on December 31 of such calendar year or, in the case of the first and last year, 

the appropriate portion thereof. 
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The hurdle amount for the Incentive Fee based on income is determined on a quarterly basis and is equal to 1.75% multiplied by the 

Company’s NAV at the beginning of each applicable calendar quarter comprising the relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters. The hurdle 

amount is calculated after making appropriate adjustments for subscriptions (which includes all of the Company’s issuances of shares of 

its common stock, including issuances pursuant to its dividend reinvestment plan) and distributions that occurred during the relevant 

Trailing Twelve Quarters. The Incentive Fee for any partial period will be appropriately prorated. 

i. Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on Income 

For the portion of the Incentive Fee based on income, the Company pays the Investment Adviser a quarterly Incentive Fee based on the 

amount by which (A) aggregate net investment income (“Ordinary Income”) in respect of the relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters 

exceeds (B) the hurdle amount for such Trailing Twelve Quarters. The amount of the excess of (A) over (B) described in this paragraph 

for such Trailing Twelve Quarters is referred to as the “Excess Income Amount”. Ordinary Income is net of all fees and expenses, 

including the Management Fee but excluding any Incentive Fee. 

The Incentive Fee based on income for each quarter is determined as follows: 

• No Incentive Fee based on income is payable to the Investment Adviser for any calendar quarter for which there is no Excess 

Income Amount; 

• 100% of the Ordinary Income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle amount, but is less than or equal to an amount, referred to as the 

“Catch-up Amount,” determined as the sum of 2.1875% multiplied by the Company’s NAV at the beginning of each applicable 

calendar quarter comprising the relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters is included in the calculation of the Incentive Fee based on 

income; and 

• 20% of the Ordinary Income that exceeds the Catch-up Amount is included in the calculation of the Incentive Fee based on 

income. 

The amount of the Incentive Fee based on income that is paid to the Investment Adviser for a particular quarter equals the excess of the 

Incentive Fee so calculated minus the aggregate Incentive Fees based on income that were paid in respect of the first eleven calendar 

quarters (or the portion thereof) included in the relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters but not in excess of the Incentive Fee Cap (as 

described below). 

The Incentive Fee based on income that is paid to the Investment Adviser for a particular quarter is subject to a cap (the “Incentive Fee 

Cap”). The Incentive Fee Cap for any quarter is an amount equal to (a) 20% of the Cumulative Net Return (as defined below) during the 

relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters minus (b) the aggregate Incentive Fees based on income that were paid in respect of the first eleven 

calendar quarters (or the portion thereof) included in the relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters. 

“Cumulative Net Return” means (x) the Ordinary Income in respect of the relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters minus (y) any Net Capital 

Loss, if any, in respect of the relevant Trailing Twelve Quarters. If, in any quarter, the Incentive Fee Cap is zero or a negative value, the 

Company pays no Incentive Fee based on income to the Investment Adviser for such quarter. If, in any quarter, the Incentive Fee Cap 

for such quarter is a positive value but is less than the Incentive Fee based on income that is payable to the Investment Adviser for such 

quarter (before giving effect to the Incentive Fee Cap) calculated as described above, the Company pays an Incentive Fee based on 

income to the Investment Adviser equal to the Incentive Fee Cap for such quarter. If, in any quarter, the Incentive Fee Cap for such 

quarter is equal to or greater than the Incentive Fee based on income that is payable to the Investment Adviser for such quarter (before 

giving effect to the Incentive Fee Cap) calculated as described above, the Company pays an Incentive Fee based on income to the 

Investment Adviser equal to the Incentive Fee calculated as described above for such quarter without regard to the Incentive Fee Cap. 

“Net Capital Loss” in respect of a particular period means the difference, if positive, between (i) aggregate capital losses, whether 

realized or unrealized, in such period and (ii) aggregate capital gains, whether realized or unrealized, in such period. 

ii. Annual Incentive Fee Based on Capital Gains. 

The portion of the Incentive Fee based on capital gains is calculated on an annual basis. For each Annual Period, the Company pays the 

Investment Adviser an amount equal to (A) 20% of the difference, if positive, of the sum of the Company’s aggregate realized capital 

gains, if any, computed net of the Company’s aggregate realized capital losses, if any, and the Company’s aggregate unrealized capital 

depreciation, in each case from April 1, 2013 until the end of such Annual Period minus (B) the cumulative amount of Incentive Fees 

based on capital gains previously paid to the Investment Adviser from April 1, 2013. For the avoidance of doubt, unrealized capital 

appreciation is excluded from the calculation in clause (A) above. 
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The Company accrues, but does not pay, a portion of the Incentive Fee based on capital gains with respect to net unrealized 

appreciation. Under GAAP, the Company is required to accrue an Incentive Fee based on capital gains that includes net realized capital 

gains and losses and net unrealized capital appreciation and depreciation on investments held at the end of each period. In calculating 

the accrual for the Incentive Fee based on capital gains, the Company considers the cumulative aggregate unrealized capital 

appreciation in the calculation, since an Incentive Fee based on capital gains would be payable if such unrealized capital appreciation 

were realized, even though such unrealized capital appreciation is not permitted to be considered in calculating the fee payable under 

the Investment Management Agreement. This accrual is calculated using the aggregate cumulative realized capital gains and losses and 

aggregate cumulative unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation. If such amount is positive at the end of a period, then the 

Company records a capital gains incentive fee equal to 20% of such amount, minus the aggregate amount of actual Incentive Fees based 

on capital gains paid in all prior periods. If such amount is negative, then there is no accrual for such period. There can be no assurance 

that such unrealized capital appreciation will be realized in the future. 

For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company incurred Incentive Fees based on income of $4,684 and $3,733, 

respectively. As of March 31, 2018, $4,684 remained payable. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company did 

not accrue or pay any Incentive Fees based on capital gains. 

Administration and Custodian Fees 

The Company has entered into an administration agreement with State Street Bank and Trust Company (the “Administrator”) under 

which the Administrator provides various accounting and administrative services to the Company. The Company pays the 

Administrator fees for its services as it determines to be commercially reasonable in its sole discretion. The Company also reimburses 

the Administrator for all reasonable expenses. To the extent that the Administrator outsources any of its functions, the Administrator 

pays any compensation associated with such functions. The Administrator also serves as the Company’s custodian (the “Custodian”). 

For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company incurred expenses for services provided by the Administrator and 

the Custodian of $227 and $190, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, $152 remained payable. 

Transfer Agent Fees 

Effective May 2, 2016, the Company entered into a transfer agency and services agreement pursuant to which Computershare Trust 

Company, N.A. serves as the Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”), dividend agent and registrar. From the IPO to May 1, 

2016, State Street Bank and Trust Company served as the Transfer Agent and dividend agent. Prior to the IPO, GS & Co. was the 

Transfer Agent. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company incurred expenses for services provided by the 

Transfer Agent of $4 and $4, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, $1 remained payable. 

Common Stock Repurchase Plan 

In February 2016, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $25,000 of the Company’s common stock if the 

stock trades below the most recently announced NAV per share (including any updates, corrections or adjustments publicly announced 

by the Company to any previously announced NAV per share), from March 18, 2016 to March 18, 2017, subject to certain limitations. 

In February 2017, the Company’s Board of Directors renewed its authorization of the stock repurchase plan to extend the expiration to 

March 18, 2018 and, in February 2018, again renewed its authorization of the stock repurchase plan to extend the expiration to 

March 18, 2019. 

In connection with this authorization, the Company entered into a 10b5-1 plan (the “Company 10b5-1 Plan”). The Company 10b5-1 

Plan provides that purchases will be conducted on the open market on a programmatic basis in accordance with Rules 10b5-1 and 

10b-18 under the Exchange Act and will otherwise be subject to applicable law, including Regulation M, which may prohibit purchases 

under certain circumstances. No purchases will be effected pursuant to the Company 10b5-1 Plan if such purchase would (i) cause the 

aggregate ownership of the Company’s outstanding common stock by Group Inc. and GS & Co. to equal or exceed 25.0% (due to the 

reduction in outstanding shares of stock as a result of such purchase) or (ii) cause the Company’s debt/equity ratio to exceed 0.75. The 

Company 10b5-1 Plan initially took effect on March 18, 2016 (with any purchases to commence after the opening of NYSE trading on 

March 21, 2016), was subsequently renewed and expired on March 18, 2018. As noted above, the Company’s Board of Directors 

approved the renewal of the Company 10b5-1 Plan. Once the Company enters into the agreement for the Company 10b5-1 Plan, the 

Company expects the Company 10b5-1 Plan will be in effect through March 18, 2019. Further, no purchases will be effected during the 

applicable restricted period under Regulation M as a result of an offering of securities by the Company or for a period of 60 days after 

the expiration of any overallotment option included in any common equity offering. 

The Company’s repurchase of its common stock under the Company 10b5-1 Plan or otherwise may result in the price of the Company’s 

common stock being higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 

and 2017, the Company did not repurchase any of its common stock pursuant to the Company 10b5-1 Plan or otherwise. 
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Co-investment Activity 

In certain circumstances, negotiated co-investments by the Company and other funds managed by the Investment Adviser may be made only pursuant to an 
order from the SEC permitting the Company to do so. On January 4, 2017, the SEC granted GSAM, Goldman Sachs Private Middle Market Credit LLC (“GS 
PMMC”), Goldman Sachs Middle Market Lending Corp. (“GS MMLC”) and the Company exemptive relief (“Exemptive Relief”) that permits the Company 
to co-invest with GS PMMC, GS MMLC and certain other funds that may be managed by GSAM, including the GSAM Credit Alternatives Team, in the 
future, subject to certain terms and conditions in the Exemptive Relief. The GSAM Credit Alternatives Team is comprised of investment professionals 
dedicated to the Company’s investment strategy and other funds that share a similar investment strategy with the Company, who are responsible for 
identifying investment opportunities, conducting research and due diligence on prospective investments, negotiating and structuring the Company’s 
investments and monitoring and servicing the Company’s investments, together with investment professionals who are primarily focused on investment 
strategies in syndicated, liquid credit. Under the terms of the Exemptive Relief, a “required majority” (as defined in Section 57(o) of the Investment Company 
Act) of the Company’s independent directors must make certain conclusions in connection with a co-investment transaction, including that (1) the terms of the 
proposed transaction are reasonable and fair to the Company and the Company’s stockholders and do not involve overreaching in respect of the Company or 
its stockholders on the part of any person concerned, and (2) the transaction is consistent with the interests of the Company’s stockholders and is consistent 
with the then-current investment objectives and strategies of the Company. As a result of the Exemptive Relief, there could be significant overlap in the 
Company’s investment portfolio and the investment portfolios of GS PMMC, GS MMLC and/or other funds established by the GSAM Credit Alternatives 
Team that could avail themselves of the Exemptive Relief. 

Due to Affiliates 

The Investment Adviser paid certain general and administrative expenses on behalf of the Company in the ordinary course of business. As of March 31, 2018 
and December 31, 2017, there were $383 and $39, respectively, included within Accrued expenses and other liabilities paid by the Investment Adviser and its 
affiliates on behalf of the Company. 

Affiliates 

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, Group Inc. owned 16.15% and 16.16%, respectively, of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common 
stock. 

The Company’s investments in affiliates for the three months ended March 31, 2018 were as follows: 

Fair Value as of

December 31,

2017

Gross

Additions(3)

Gross

Reductions(4)

Net Realized

Gains/(Losses)

Change in

Unrealized

Gains/(Losses)

Fair Value as of

March 31,

2018

Dividend,

Interest and

PIK Income

Other

Income

Controlled Affiliates

Bolttech Mannings, Inc. $ 20,569 $ 1,773 $ – $ – $ (1,228) $ 21,114 $ 373 $ –
Senior Credit Fund, LLC(1) 92,097 – – – 1,003 93,100 2,800 –
Total Controlled Affiliates $ 112,666 $ 1,773 $ – $ – $ (225) $ 114,214 $ 3,173 $ –
Non-Controlled Affiliates

Goldman Sachs Financial Square 
Government Fund (2) $ 11,539 $ 39,754 $ (51,291) $ – $ – $ 2 $ 7 $ –
CB-HDT Holdings, Inc. 19,345 1,557 – – (448) 20,454 117 –
Collaborative Imaging Holdco, LLC – 10,067 – – (90) 9,977 2 –
Conergy Asia Holdings, Ltd 4,832 – – – (128) 4,704 10 –
Iracore International Holdings, Ltd 9,602 – – – – 9,602 90 –
Kawa Solar Holdings Limited 8,918 154 – 9 146 9,227 153 –
NTS Communications, Inc. 51,538 1,974 – – (430) 53,082 1,957 6
Prairie Provident Resources, Inc. 1,233 – – – (35) 1,198 – –
Total Non-Controlled Affiliates $ 107,007 $ 53,506 $ (51,291) $ 9 $ (985) $ 108,246 $ 2,336 $ 6
Total Affiliates $ 219,673 $ 55,279 $ (51,291) $ 9 $ (1,210) $ 222,460 $ 5,509 $ 6
(1)  Together with The Regents of the University of California (“Cal Regents”, and collectively with the Company, the “Members”), the Company invests through the Senior Credit Fund. Although 

the Company owns more than 25% of the voting securities of the Senior Credit Fund, the Company does not believe that it has control over the Senior Credit Fund (other than for purposes of the 
Investment Company Act). See Note 4 “Investments”.

(2)  Fund advised by an affiliate of Goldman Sachs.
(3)  Gross additions may include increases in the cost basis of investments resulting from new portfolio investments, PIK interest or dividends, the accretion of discounts, the exchange of one or 

more existing securities for one or more new securities and the movement of an existing portfolio company into this category from a different category.
(4)  Gross reductions may include decreases in the cost basis of investments resulting from principal collections related to investment repayments or sales, the exchange of one or more existing 

securities for one or more new securities and the movement of an existing portfolio company out of this category into a different category.

The Company’s investments in affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2017 were as follows:

Fair Value as of

December 31,

2016

Gross

Additions(3)

Gross

Reductions(4)

Net Realized

Gains/(Losses)

Change in

Unrealized

Gains/(Losses)

Fair Value as of

December 31,

2017

Dividend,

Interest and

PIK Income

Other

Income

Controlled Affiliates

Bolttech Mannings, Inc. $ – $ 20,569 $ – $ – $ – $ 20,569 $ 37 $ –
Senior Credit Fund, LLC(1) 78,394 16,750 – – (3,047) 92,097 9,650 1,308
Total Controlled Affiliates $ 78,394 $ 37,319 $ – $ – $ (3,047) $ 112,666 $ 9,687 $ 1,308
Non-Controlled Affiliates

Goldman Sachs Financial Square 
Government
Fund(2) $ 1 $ 302,380 $ (290,842) $ – $ – $ 11,539 $ 27 $ –
CB-HDT Holdings, Inc. 18,510 384 – – 451 19,345 384 –
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Fair Value as of

December 31,

2016

Gross

Additions(3)

Gross

Reductions(4)

Net Realized

Gains/(Losses)

Change in

Unrealized

Gains/(Losses)

Fair Value as of

December 31,

2017

Dividend,

Interest and

PIK Income

Other

Income

Conergy Asia Holdings, Ltd – 5,700 – – (868) 4,832 1 –

Iracore International Holdings, Ltd – 10,392 – – (790) 9,602 253 –

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited 15,917 4,161 (5,425) (2,492) (3,243) 8,918 1,307 –

NTS Communications, Inc. 47,498 7,093 – – (3,053) 51,538 7,114 25

Prairie Provident Resources, Inc. 2,178 – – – (945) 1,233 – –

Total Non-Controlled Affiliates $ 84,104 $ 330,110 $ (296,267) $ (2,492) $ (8,448) $ 107,007 $ 9,086 $ 25

Total Affiliates $ 162,498 $ 367,429 $ (296,267) $ (2,492) $ (11,495) $ 219,673 $ 18,773 $ 1,333

(1) Together with Cal Regents, the Company invests through the Senior Credit Fund. Although the Company owns more than 25% of the voting securities of the 

Senior Credit Fund, the Company does not believe that it has control over the Senior Credit Fund (other than for purposes of the Investment Company Act). See 

Note 4 “Investments”. 

(2) Fund advised by an affiliate of Goldman Sachs. 

(3) Gross additions may include increases in the cost basis of investments resulting from new portfolio investments, PIK interest or dividends, the accretion of 

discounts, the exchange of one or more existing securities for one or more new securities and the movement of an existing portfolio company into this category 

from a different category. 

(4) Gross reductions may include decreases in the cost basis of investments resulting from principal collections related to investment repayments or sales, the 

exchange of one or more existing securities for one or more new securities and the movement of an existing portfolio company out of this category into a different 

category. 

4. INVESTMENTS 

As of the dates indicated, the Company’s investments (excluding an investment in a money market fund managed by an affiliate of 

Group Inc. of $2 and $11,539, respectively) consisted of the following: 

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Investment Type Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt $ 426,014 $ 420,141 $ 412,534 $ 407,073

1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 243,856 237,736 279,031 273,965

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 462,709 464,464 443,391 444,603

Unsecured Debt 5,457 5,457 3,900 3,900

Preferred Stock 11,750 12,515 11,750 12,836

Common Stock 33,417 23,267 32,717 23,839

Investment Funds & Vehicles(1) 94,342 93,100 94,342 92,097

Total Investments $1,277,545 $1,256,680 $1,277,665 $1,258,313

(1) Includes equity investment in the Senior Credit Fund. 

As of the dates indicated, the industry composition of the Company’s portfolio at fair value and net assets was as follows: 

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Industry Fair Value Net Assets Fair Value Net Assets

Software 10.4% 17.9% 10.3% 17.9% 

Health Care Providers & Services 8.4 14.6 7.5 13.0

Investment Funds & Vehicles 7.4 12.8 7.3 12.7

Distributors 7.1 12.4 5.1 8.9

Health Care Equipment & Supplies 7.0 12.1 7.1 12.2

Chemicals 5.1 8.8 4.8 8.3

Diversified Telecommunication Services 5.1 8.8 5.9 10.3

Real Estate Management & Development 4.6 7.9 4.5 7.9

IT Services 4.5 7.8 4.5 7.8

Electronic Equipment, Instruments & Components 4.4 7.6 4.4 7.7

Media 3.6 6.2 3.3 5.7

Internet Software & Services 3.4 5.9 3.8 6.5

Professional Services 3.4 6.0 3.5 6.0

Diversified Financial Services 3.1 5.4 3.1 5.4

Aerospace & Defense 3.0 5.2 2.9 5.1

Machinery 2.7 4.6 2.6 4.6

Specialty Retail 2.3 4.0 2.3 4.1

Air Freight & Logistics 2.0 3.4 2.0 3.4

Commercial Services & Supplies 1.7 2.9 1.6 2.8

Internet Catalog & Retail 1.7 3.0 1.7 3.0

Auto Components 1.6 2.7 1.6 2.7

Household Products 1.6 2.8 4.1 7.1

Food Products 1.4 2.5 1.5 2.5

Construction & Engineering 1.1 1.9 1.1 1.9

Road & Rail 1.1 1.9 1.1 1.9

Energy Equipment & Services 0.8 1.3 0.8 1.3

Leisure Equipment & Products 0.8 1.4 0.8 1.4



Containers & Packaging 0.5 0.9 0.7 1.1

Capital Markets 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

Oil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2

Total 100.0% 173.0% 100.0% 173.4% 
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As of the dates indicated, the geographic composition of the Company’s portfolio at fair value was as follows: 

Geographic March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

United States 98.8% 98.8% 

Germany 0.7 0.7

Singapore 0.4 0.4

Canada 0.1 0.1

Total 100.0% 100.0% 

Senior Credit Fund, LLC 

The Senior Credit Fund, an unconsolidated Delaware limited liability company, was formed on May 7, 2014 and commenced 

operations on October 1, 2014. The Company invests together with Cal Regents through the Senior Credit Fund. The Senior Credit 

Fund’s principal purpose is to make investments, either directly or indirectly through its wholly owned subsidiary, Senior Credit Fund 

SPV I, LLC (“SPV I”), primarily in senior secured loans to middle-market companies. Each of the Company and Cal Regents are 

responsible for sourcing the Senior Credit Fund’s investments. Each of the Company and Cal Regents has a 50% economic ownership 

in the Senior Credit Fund and each has subscribed to fund $100,000. Except under certain circumstances, contributions to the Senior 

Credit Fund cannot be redeemed. The Senior Credit Fund is managed by a six member board of managers, on which the Company and 

Cal Regents have equal representation. Investment decisions generally must be unanimously approved by a quorum of the board of 

managers. On March 2, 2018, the Company and Cal Regents, as the Members of the Senior Credit Fund, entered into an amendment to 

the amended and restated limited liability company agreement of the Senior Credit Fund to extend the investment period to 

September 3, 2018. 

On December 19, 2016, SPV I entered into an amended and restated credit facility (as amended, the “Asset Based Facility”), which 

consists of a revolving credit facility (the “SPV I Revolving Credit Facility”), a term loan facility (the “SPV I Term Loan Facility”) and 

a Class B loan facility (the “SPV I Class B Facility”), with various lenders. For the Asset Based Facility, Natixis, New York Branch 

(“Natixis”) serves as the facility agent, and State Street Bank and Trust Company serves as the collateral agent. The Asset Based 

Facility includes a maximum borrowing capacity of $400,000. The SPV I Revolving Credit Facility provided for borrowings in an 

aggregate amount up to $120,000 on a committed basis as of March 31, 2018. Borrowings under the SPV I Revolving Credit Facility 

bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.30%. As of March 31, 2018, the SPV I Term Loan Facility consisted of a $240,000 fully drawn term loan 

and the SPV I Class B Facility consisted of a $40,000 fully drawn Class B loan. Borrowings under the SPV I Term Loan Facility and 

SPV I Class B Facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.30% and LIBOR plus 3.50%, respectively. Any amounts borrowed under the 

Asset Based Facility will mature, and all accrued and unpaid interest will be due and payable, on December 19, 2025. As of March 31, 

2018 and December 31, 2017, the SPV I’s outstanding borrowings under the Asset Based Facility were $283,000 and $294,000, 

respectively. 

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company and Cal Regents had subscribed to fund and contributed the following to 

the Senior Credit Fund: 

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Member

Subscribed

to fund Contributed

Subscribed

to fund Contributed

Company $ 100,000 $ 94,342 $ 100,000 $ 94,342

Cal Regents 100,000 94,342 100,000 94,342

Total $ 200,000 $ 188,684 $ 200,000 $ 188,684
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As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Senior Credit Fund had total investments in senior secured debt at fair value of 
$448,799 and $467,071, respectively. As of each of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Senior Credit Fund had no 
investments on non-accrual status. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Senior Credit Fund had an investment in a money 
market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc. with a total fair value of $6,563 and $5,840, respectively. In addition, as of 
March 31, 2018, the Senior Credit Fund had nine portfolio companies with unfunded commitments totaling $17,981, and as of 
December 31, 2017, the Senior Credit Fund had eight portfolio companies with unfunded commitments totaling $17,138. 

Below is a summary of the Senior Credit Fund’s portfolio, excluding an investment in a money market fund managed by an affiliate of 
Group Inc., followed by a listing of the individual loans in the Senior Credit Fund’s portfolio as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 
2017: 

As of

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Total senior secured debt(1) $ 477,444 $ 496,582
Weighted average current interest rate on senior secured debt(2) 7.4% 7.3%
Number of borrowers in the Senior Credit Fund 32 34
Largest loan to a single borrower(1) $ 28,977 $ 29,041
(1)  At par amount, including fully unfunded commitments.
(2)  Computed as (a) the annual stated interest rate on accruing senior secured debt, divided by (b) total senior secured debt at par amount, excluding fully unfunded 

commitments.

Senior Credit Fund Portfolio as of March 31, 2018 

Portfolio Company Industry

Interest

Rate (+)

Reference Rate and

Spread (++) Maturity Par Amount Cost Fair Value

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt

3SI Security Systems, Inc. Commercial Services & 
Supplies 7.87% L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor 06/16/2023 $ 14,925 $14,725 $ 14,776

A Place For Mom, Inc.(1) Diversified Consumer 
Services 5.88% L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor 08/10/2024 17,966 17,947 17,943

Ansira Partners, Inc. Media 8.80% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/20/2022 8,618 8,546 8,554
Ansira Partners, Inc.(2) Media 8.80% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/20/2022 1,267 690 691
ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC(3) Distributors 9.28% L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/15/2021 8,063 7,999 7,942
ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC(2) 
(3) (4)

Distributors
L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/15/2021 3,750 (38) (56) 

ATX Networks Corp. Communications 
Equipment

9.31%
(8.31%

Cash and
1.00% PIK)

L + 7.00% (Incl. 1.00% PIK);
1.00% Floor 06/11/2021 16,310 16,192 14,679

Badger Sportswear, Inc. Textiles, Apparel & 
Luxury Goods 6.80% L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor 09/11/2023 14,774 14,654 14,479

Barbri, Inc. Media 5.91% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 12/01/2023 14,000 13,933 13,965
CST Buyer Company Diversified Consumer 

Services 7.45% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 03/01/2023 19,608 19,147 19,216
CST Buyer Company(2) (4) Diversified Consumer 

Services L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 03/01/2023 1,800 (41) (36) 
DBRS Limited Capital Markets 7.23% L + 5.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/04/2022 11,640 11,568 11,713
DiscoverOrg, LLC(3) Software 6.38% L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor 08/25/2023 7,960 7,923 7,920
FWR Holding Corporation Hotels, Restaurants & 

Leisure 7.66% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 08/21/2023 9,080 8,871 8,876
FWR Holding Corporation(2) Hotels, Restaurants & 

Leisure 7.62% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 08/21/2023 2,936 1,078 1,079
FWR Holding Corporation(2) Hotels, Restaurants & 

Leisure 9.24% P + 5.00% 08/21/2023 1,175 502 502
GH Holding Company Real Estate 

Management & 
Development 6.48% L + 4.50% 02/28/2023 15,000 14,926 14,925

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 8.30% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 01/20/2021 17,415 17,352 15,412
HC Group Holdings III, Inc. Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.88% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 04/07/2022 8,775 8,747 8,874
Hygiena Borrower LLC Life Sciences Tools & 

Services 7.05% L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor 08/26/2022 15,840 15,708 15,523
Hygiena Borrower LLC(2) (4) Life Sciences Tools & 

Services L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor 08/26/2022 1,667 (20) (33) 
Jill Acquisition LLC Textiles, Apparel & 

Luxury Goods 6.78% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 05/08/2022 13,957 13,879 13,434
Lattice Semiconductor Corporation Semiconductors & 

Semiconductor 
Equipment 5.95% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/10/2021 10,714 10,588 10,795



Liquidnet Holdings, Inc. Capital Markets 5.63% L + 3.75%; 1.00% Floor 07/15/2024 9,625 9,537 9,649
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Portfolio Company Industry

Interest

Rate (+)

Reference Rate and

Spread (++) Maturity Par Amount Cost

Fair

Value

Netsmart Technologies, Inc. Health Care Technology 6.38% L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor 04/19/2023 $ 18,700 $ 18,651 $ 18,886

Output Services Group, Inc.(1) Diversified Consumer 

Services 6.56% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/27/2024 4,974 4,949 4,987

Output Services Group, Inc.(1) (2) Diversified Consumer 

Services L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/27/2024 1,026 – 3

Pathway Partners Vet Management 

Company, LLC(3)

Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.13% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 10/10/2024 6,945 6,913 6,945

Pathway Partners Vet Management 

Company, LLC(2) (3)

Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.13% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 10/10/2024 3,020 1,863 1,877

Pomeroy Group LLC IT Services 7.88% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 11/30/2021 15,719 15,370 15,620

Professional Physical Therapy Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.70% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/16/2022 10,369 10,284 9,358

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.59% L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor 12/04/2023 13,864 13,730 13,846

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC

(2)

Health Care Providers & 

Services 8.05% L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor 12/04/2023 6,106 2,005 2,057

RealD, Inc. Media 9.29% L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/22/2021 16,575 16,461 16,368

SciQuest, Inc. Internet Software & 

Services 5.88% L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/28/2024 20,000 19,903 20,000

SMS Systems Maintenance 

Services, Inc. IT Services 6.88% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/30/2023 14,813 14,749 13,578

Stackpath, LLC Internet Software & 

Services 6.79% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 02/03/2023 16,830 16,687 16,662

Tronair Parent Inc. Air Freight & Logistics 6.56% L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor 09/08/2023 13,790 13,680 13,514

U.S. Acute Care Solutions, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.30% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 05/14/2021 12,838 12,740 12,709

VRC Companies, LLC Commercial Services & 

Supplies 8.38% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/31/2023 26,854 26,406 26,585

VRC Companies, LLC(2) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 8.38% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/31/2022 1,412 546 558

VRC Companies, LLC(2) (4) Commercial Services & 

Supplies L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/31/2023 711 (8) (7) 

Total 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt 429,342 424,368

1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche

Infogix, Inc. Software 7.30% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/31/2021 9,533 9,468 9,510

Total 1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche 9,468 9,510

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt

DiscoverOrg, LLC(3) Software 10.39% L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor 02/23/2024 10,500 10,356 10,421

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 12.55% L + 10.25%; 1.00% Floor 01/20/2022 6,000 5,922 4,500

Total 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 16,278 14,921

Total Corporate Debt 455,088 448,799

Yield Shares Cost

Fair

Value

Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund

Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund – Institutional Shares^^^ 1.61%(5) 6,563,175 $ 6,563 $ 6,563

Total Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund 6,563 6,563

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $461,651 $455,362

(+) The terms in the Consolidated Schedule of Investments disclose the actual interest rate for partially or fully funded debt in effect as of the reporting date. For 

investments with multiple interest rate contracts, the interest rate shown is the weighted average interest rate in effect at March 31, 2018. 

(++) Variable rate loans bear interest at a rate that may be determined by reference to either LIBOR (“L”) or alternate base rate (commonly based on the Prime Rate 

(“P”)), at the borrower’s option. L loans are typically indexed to 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month or 1 week L rates. As of March 31, 2018, rates for 

the 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month and 1 week L are 2.66%, 2.45%, 2.31%, 2.00%, 1.88% and 1.75%, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, P was 

4.75%. 

^^^ The investment is otherwise deemed to be an “affiliated person” of the Company under the Investment Company Act. 

(1) Position or portion thereof unsettled as of March 31, 2018. 

(2) Position or portion thereof is an unfunded loan commitment, and no interest is being earned on the unfunded portion. The unfunded loan commitment may be 

subject to a commitment termination date that may expire prior to the maturity date stated. 

(3) The Company also holds a portion of the 2nd lien/senior secured debt in this portfolio company. 

(4) The negative cost is the result of the capitalized discount being greater than the principal amount outstanding on the loan. The negative fair value is the result of the 

capitalized discount on the loan. 

(5) The rate shown is the annualized seven-day yield as of March 31, 2018. 
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Senior Credit Fund Portfolio as of December 31, 2017 

Portfolio Company Industry Interest (+) Maturity

Par

Amount Cost

Fair

Value

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt

3SI Security Systems, Inc. Commercial Services & 

Supplies 7.87% (L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor) 06/16/2023 $ 14,963 $ 14,754 $ 14,738

A Place For Mom, Inc. Diversified Consumer Services 5.69% (L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/10/2024 3,990 3,971 3,985

Ansira Partners, Inc. Media 8.19% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/20/2022 8,640 8,564 8,575

Ansira Partners, Inc. (1) Media 8.19% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/20/2022 1,269 692 693

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC (2) Distributors 8.89% (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/15/2021 10,688 10,599 10,474

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC (1) (2) (3) Distributors (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/15/2021 3,750 (37) (75) 

ATX Networks Corp.

Communications Equipment

8.69% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor)

(7.69% Cash and 1.00% PIK) 06/11/2021 16,426 16,299 16,179

Badger Sportswear, Inc. Textiles, Apparel & Luxury 

Goods 6.07% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 09/11/2023 14,812 14,687 14,535

Barbri, Inc. Media 5.73% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 12/01/2023 14,000 13,931 13,965

Crowne Group, LLC Auto Components 10.73% (L + 9.25%; 1.00% Floor) 05/26/2021 16,363 16,239 16,526

CST Buyer Company Diversified Consumer Services 7.75% (L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/01/2023 19,658 19,176 19,265

CST Buyer Company (1) (3) Diversified Consumer Services (L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/01/2023 1,800 (43) (36) 

DBRS Limited Capital Markets 6.73% (L + 5.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/04/2022 11,670 11,593 11,670

DiscoverOrg, LLC (2) Software 6.07% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 08/25/2023 7,980 7,942 7,900

FWR Holding Corporation Hotels, Restaurants & Leisure 7.66% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/21/2023 9,080 8,863 8,853

FWR Holding Corporation(1) Hotels, Restaurants & Leisure 7.60% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/21/2023 2,936 400 396

FWR Holding Corporation (1) Hotels, Restaurants & Leisure 7.57% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/21/2023 1,175 119 118

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 7.69% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 01/20/2021 17,460 17,392 13,628

HC Group Holdings III, Inc. Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.57% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 04/07/2022 8,798 8,768 8,875

Help/Systems, LLC Software 6.19% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 10/08/2021 17,721 17,300 17,765

Hygiena Borrower LLC Life Sciences Tools & 

Services 6.44% (L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor) 08/26/2022 15,880 15,741 15,562

Hygiena Borrower LLC (1) (3) Life Sciences Tools & 

Services (L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor) 08/26/2022 1,667 (21) (33) 

Jill Acquisition LLC Textiles, Apparel & Luxury 

Goods 6.38% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 05/08/2022 13,997 13,914 13,183

Lattice Semiconductor Corporation Semiconductors & 

Semiconductor Equipment 5.65% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/10/2021 10,745 10,608 10,852

Liquidnet Holdings, Inc. Capital Markets 5.82% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 07/15/2024 $ 9,750 $ 9,658 $ 9,774

MB Aerospace Holdings Inc. Aerospace & Defense 7.13% (L + 5.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/15/2022 15,689 15,568 15,649

Netsmart Technologies, Inc. Health Care Technology 6.19% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 04/19/2023 18,747 18,696 18,935

Pathway Partners Vet Management Company, LLC(2) Health Care Providers & 

Services 5.82% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 10/10/2024 6,963 6,929 6,963

Pathway Partners Vet Management Company, LLC(1)(2) Health Care Providers & 

Services 5.82% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 10/10/2024 3,020 277 291

Pomeroy Group LLC IT Services 7.51% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 11/30/2021 15,759 15,390 15,404

Professional Physical Therapy Health Care Providers & 

Services 9.50% (P + 5.00%) 12/16/2022 10,395 10,306 10,187

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.59% (L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor) 12/04/2023 7,710 7,634 7,710

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC (1) Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.59% (L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor) 12/04/2023 2,290 1,389 1,412

RealD, Inc. Media 8.98% (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/22/2021 16,639 16,516 16,431

SciQuest, Inc.(4) Internet Software & Services 5.56% (L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/28/2024 20,000 19,900 19,900

Smarte Carte, Inc. Air Freight & Logistics 7.20% (L + 5.50%; 1.00% Floor) 08/30/2021 10,558 10,477 10,479

SMS Systems Maintenance Services, Inc. IT Services 6.57% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/30/2023 14,850 14,784 12,474

Stackpath, LLC Internet Software & Services 6.38% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 02/03/2023 16,915 16,765 16,746

Tronair Parent Inc. Air Freight & Logistics 6.16% (L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor) 09/08/2023 13,825 13,710 13,652

U.S. Acute Care Solutions, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.69% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 05/14/2021 12,870 12,765 12,741

VRC Companies, LLC Commercial Services & 

Supplies 8.12% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/31/2023 19,906 19,501 19,657

VRC Companies, LLC Commercial Services & 

Supplies 7.85% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/31/2023 3,523 3,452 3,480

VRC Companies, LLC (1) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 7.97% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/31/2023 4,200 2,179 2,177

VRC Companies, LLC (1) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 10.00% (P + 5.50%) 03/31/2022 1,412 1,102 1,112

Total 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt 448,449 442,767

1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche

Infogix, Inc. Software 6.69% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/31/2021 9,593 9,524 9,569



Total 1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche 9,524 9,569

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt

DiscoverOrg, LLC(2) Software 10.07% (L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor) 02/23/2024 10,500 10,350 10,395
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Portfolio Company Industry Interest (+) Maturity

Par

Amount Cost

Fair

Value

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 11.94% (L + 10.25%; 1.00% Floor) 01/20/2022 6,000 5,918 4,340

Total 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 16,268 14,735

Total Corporate Debt 474,241 467,071

Yield Shares Cost

Fair

Value

Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund

Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund – Institutional Shares 1.21%(5) 5,839,827 $ 5,840 $ 5,840

Total Investments in Affiliated Money Market Fund 5,840 5,840

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $480,081 $472,911

(+) Variable rate loans bear interest at a rate that may be determined by reference to either LIBOR (“L”) or alternate base rate (commonly based on the Prime Rate 

(“P”)), at the borrower’s option. L loans are typically indexed to 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month or 1 week L rates. The terms in the Schedule of 

Investments disclose the actual interest rate in effect as of the reporting date. For investments with multiple interest rate contracts, the interest rate shown is the 

weighted average interest rate in effect at December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, rates for the 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month and 1 week 

LIBOR were 2.11%, 1.84%, 1.69%, 1.62%, 1.56% and 1.48%, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, P was 4.50%. 

(1) Position or portion thereof is an unfunded loan commitment, and no interest is being earned on the unfunded portion. The unfunded loan commitment may be 

subject to a commitment termination date that may expire prior to the maturity date stated. 

(2) The Company also holds a portion of the 2nd lien/senior secured debt in this portfolio company. 

(3) The negative cost is the result of the capitalized discount being greater than the principal amount outstanding on the loan. The negative fair value is the result of the 

capitalized discount on the loan. 

(4) Position or portion thereof unsettled as of December 31, 2017. 

(5) The rate shown is the annualized seven-day yield as of December 31, 2017. 
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Below is selected balance sheet information for the Senior Credit Fund as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017: 

As of

March 31, 2018

As of

December 31, 2017

Selected Balance Sheet Information

Total investments, at fair value $ 455,362 $ 472,911

Cash and other assets 39,072 31,826

Total assets $ 494,434 $ 504,737

Debt (1) $ 280,591 $ 291,515

Other liabilities 27,644 29,028

Total liabilities $ 308,235 $ 320,543

Members’ equity 186,199 184,194

Total liabilities and members’ equity $ 494,434 $ 504,737

(1) Net of deferred financing costs for the SPV I Term Loan Facility, which were in the amount of $2,409 and $2,485 as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, 

respectively. 

Below is selected statements of operations information for the Senior Credit Fund for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017: 

For the

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

Selected Statements of Operations Information:

Total investment income $ 10,331 $ 8,426

Expenses

Interest and other debt expense 3,376 3,099

Professional fees 114 179

Administration and custodian fees 97 95

Other expenses 20 33

Total expenses 3,607 3,406

Total net income 6,724 5,020

Net realized gain (loss) on investments – 77

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments 881 661

Net increase (decrease) in members’ equity $ 7,605 $ 5,758

Loan Origination and Structuring Fees 

If the loan origination and structuring fees earned by the Senior Credit Fund (including directly or indirectly through SPV I or another 

vehicle) during a period exceed the Senior Credit Fund’s expenses (excluding interest and other debt expenses), such excess is paid as a 

fee to the Member(s) responsible for the origination of the loans pro rata in accordance with the total loan origination and structuring 

fees earned by the Senior Credit Fund with respect to the loans originated by such Member. The loan origination and structuring fee is 

accrued quarterly and included in other income from controlled affiliated investments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and 

paid annually. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company did not accrue income based on loan origination and 

structuring fees. 

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or would be paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e., the exit price). 

The fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives 

the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest 

priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The levels used for classifying investments are not necessarily an indication of 

the risk associated with investing in these securities. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

Basis of Fair Value Measurement 

Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active markets for identical instruments as of the reporting 

date. The types of financial instruments included in Level 1 include unrestricted securities, including equities and derivatives, listed in 

active markets. 
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Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly 
observable as of the reporting date. The types of financial instruments in this category include less liquid and restricted securities listed 
in active markets, securities traded in other than active markets, government and agency securities and certain over-the-counter 
derivatives where the fair value is based on observable inputs. 

Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to overall fair value measurement. The inputs into the 
determination of fair value require significant management judgment or estimation. Financial instruments that are included in this 
category include investments in privately held entities and certain over-the-counter derivatives where the fair value is based on 
unobservable inputs. 

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement. Note 2 “Significant Accounting Policies” should be read in conjunction with the information outlined below. 

The table below presents the valuation techniques and the nature of significant inputs generally used in determining the fair value of 
Level 2 Instruments. 

Level 2 Instruments Valuation Techniques and Significant Inputs

Equity and Fixed 

Income

The types of instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on 
quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price 
transparency include commercial paper, most government agency obligations, most corporate debt securities, 
certain mortgage-backed securities, certain bank loans, less liquid publicly listed equities, certain state and 
municipal obligations, certain money market instruments and certain loan commitments.

Valuations of Level 2 Equity and Fixed Income instruments can be verified to quoted prices, broker or dealer 
quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Consideration is given 
to the nature of the quotations (e.g. indicative or firm) and the relationship of recent market activity to the 
prices provided from alternative pricing sources.

The table below presents the valuation techniques and the nature of significant inputs generally used in determining the fair value of 
Level 3 Instruments. 

Level 3 Instruments Valuation Techniques and Significant Inputs

Bank Loans, 

Corporate Debt,

and Other Debt

Obligations

Valuations are generally based on discounted cash flow techniques, for which the significant inputs are the 
amount and timing of expected future cash flows, market yields and recovery assumptions. The significant 
inputs are generally determined based on relative value analyses, which incorporate comparisons both to 
credit default swaps that reference the same underlying credit risk and to other debt instruments for the same 
issuer for which observable prices or broker quotes are available. Other valuation methodologies are used as 
appropriate including market comparables, transactions in similar instruments and recovery/liquidation 
analysis.

Equity Recent third-party investments or pending transactions are considered to be the best evidence for any change 
in fair value. When these are not available, the following valuation methodologies are used, as appropriate 
and available:

•  Transactions in similar instruments;
•  Discounted cash flow techniques;
•  Third party appraisals; and
•  Industry multiples and public comparables.

Evidence includes recent or pending reorganizations (for example, merger proposals, tender offers and debt 
restructurings) and significant changes in financial metrics, including:

•  Current financial performance as compared to projected performance;
•  Capitalization rates and multiples; and
•  Market yields implied by transactions of similar or related assets.

The tables below present the ranges of significant unobservable inputs used to value the Company’s Level 3 assets and liabilities as of 
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. These ranges represent the significant unobservable inputs that were used in the valuation of 
each type of instrument, but they do not represent a range of values for any one instrument. For example, the lowest yield in 1st 
Lien/Senior Secured is appropriate for valuing that specific debt investment, but may not be appropriate for valuing any other debt 
investments in this asset class. Accordingly, the ranges of inputs presented below do not represent uncertainty in, or possible ranges of, 
fair value measurements of the Company’s Level 3 assets and liabilities. 
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Level 3 Instruments

Level 3 Assets as of

March 31, 2018(1)

Significant Unobservable

Inputs by Valuation

Techniques(2)

Range(3) of Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Weighted Average(4))

as of

March 31, 2018

Bank Loans, Corporate Debt, and Other 
Debt Obligations

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt Discounted cash flows:
$391,288 •  Discount Rate 10.1% - 17.7% (12.5%)

Collateral analysis:
•  Recovery Rate 100.0%

1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche Discounted cash flows:
$237,736 •  Discount Rate 10.8% - 16.5% (12.7%)

Collateral analysis:
•  Recovery Rate 75.8% - 100.0% (88.5%)

Comparable multiples:
•  EV/EBITDA(5) 2.6x - 13.6x (7.0x)

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt Discounted cash flows:
$385,231 •  Discount Rate 10.4% - 16.1% (12.3%)

Unsecured Debt Discounted cash flows:
$3,899 •  Discount Rate 4.7% - 6.2% (12.0%)

Collateral analysis:
•  Recovery Rate 100.0%

Equity Preferred Stock Comparable multiples:
$12,515 •  EV/EBITDA(5) 4.6x - 18.4x (6.8x)

Collateral analysis:
•  Recovery Rate 100.0%

Common Stock Comparable multiples:
$20,769 •  EV/Revenue 0.4x - 1.0x (0.6x)

Comparable multiples:
•  EV/EBITDA(5) 3.5x - 15.6x (6.1x)

Collateral analysis:
•  Recovery Rate 78.8%

(1) Included within Level 3 Assets of $1,085,362 is an amount of $33,924 for which the Investment Adviser did not develop the unobservable inputs (examples 
include single source broker quotations, third party pricing, and prior transactions). 

(2) The fair value of any one instrument may be determined using multiple valuation techniques. For example, market comparable and discounted cash flows may be 
used together to determine fair value. Therefore, the Level 3 balance encompasses both of these techniques. 

(3) The range for an asset category consisting of a single investment represents the relevant market data considered in determining the fair value of the investment. 
(4) Weighted average for an asset category consisting of multiple investments is calculated by weighting the significant unobservable input by the relative fair value of 

the investment. Weighted average for an asset category consisting of a single investment represents the significant unobservable input used in the fair value of the 
investment. 

(5) Enterprise value of portfolio company as a multiple of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”). 

Level 3 Instruments

Level 3 Assets as of

December 31, 2017(1)

Significant Unobservable

Inputs by Valuation

Techniques(2)

Range(3) of Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Weighted

Average(4))

as of

December 31, 2017

Bank Loans, Corporate Debt, and 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt Discounted cash flows:
Other Debt Obligations $331,896 •  Discount Rate 9.4% – 17.3% (12.3%)

Collateral analysis:
•  Recovery Rate 91.8%

1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche Discounted cash flows:
$268,074 •  Discount Rate 10.5% – 15.3% (11.8%)

Comparable multiples:
•  EV/Revenue 0.4x – 0.9x (0.6x)

Comparable multiples:
•  EV/EBITDA(5) 7.0x – 7.0x (7.0x)

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt Discounted cash flows:
$321,986 •  Discount Rate 9.9% – 15.6% (11.6%)
Unsecured Debt Discounted cash flows:
$3,500 •  Discount Rate 4.3% – 5.7% (12.0%)

Equity Preferred Stock Comparable multiples:
$12,836 •  EV/EBITDA(5) 5.1x – 16.6x (6.5x)
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Level 3 Instruments

Level 3 Assets as of

December 31, 2017(1)

Significant Unobservable

Inputs by Valuation

Techniques(2)

Range(3) of Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Weighted

Average(4))

as of

December 31, 2017

Common Stock Collateral analysis:
$22,606 •  Recovery Rate 100.0%

Comparable multiples:
•  EV/Revenue 0.6x  –  2.7x (0.9x)

Comparable multiples:
•  EV/EBITDA(5) 5.8x  –  15.3x (7.0x)

Collateral analysis:
•  Recovery Rate 81.9%

(1) Included within Level 3 Assets of $1,075,695 is an amount of $114,797 for which the Investment Adviser did not develop the unobservable inputs (examples 
include single source broker quotations, third party pricing, and prior transactions). 

(2) The fair value of any one instrument may be determined using multiple valuation techniques. For example, market comparable and discounted cash flows may be 
used together to determine fair value. Therefore, the Level 3 balance encompasses both of these techniques. 

(3) The range for an asset category consisting of a single investment represents the relevant market data considered in determining the fair value of the investment. 
(4) Weighted average for an asset category consisting of multiple investments is calculated by weighting the significant unobservable input by the relative fair value of 

the investment. Weighted average for an asset category consisting of a single investment represents the significant unobservable input used in the fair value of the 
investment. 

(5) Enterprise value of portfolio company as a multiple of EBITDA. 

As noted above, the income and market approaches were used in the determination of fair value of certain Level 3 assets as of 
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. The significant unobservable inputs used in the income approach are the discount rate or 
market yield used to discount the estimated future cash flows expected to be received from the underlying investment, which include 
both future principal and interest payments. An increase in the discount rate or market yield would result in a decrease in the fair value. 
Included in the consideration and selection of discount rates is risk of default, rating of the investment, call provisions and comparable 
company investments. The significant unobservable inputs used in the market approach are based on market comparable transactions 
and market multiples of publicly traded comparable companies. Increases or decreases in market comparable transactions or market 
multiples would result in an increase or decrease, respectively, in the fair value. 

The following is a summary of the Company’s assets categorized within the fair value hierarchy as of March 31, 2018: 

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt $ – $19,500 $ 400,641 $ 420,141
1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche – – 237,736 237,736
2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt – 57,520 406,944 464,464
Unsecured Debt – – 5,457 5,457
Preferred Stock – – 12,515 12,515
Common Stock – 1,198 22,069 23,267
Affiliated Money Market Fund 2 – – 2
Subtotal $ 2 $78,218 $1,085,362 $1,163,582
Investments measured at NAV(1) 93,100
Total assets $1,256,682
(1) Includes equity investment in the Senior Credit Fund. 

The following is a summary of the Company’s assets categorized within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2017: 

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt $ – $19,600 $ 387,473 $ 407,073
1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche – – 273,965 273,965
2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt – 69,688 374,915 444,603
Unsecured Debt – – 3,900 3,900
Preferred Stock – – 12,836 12,836
Common Stock – 1,233 22,606 23,839
Affiliated Money Market Fund 11,539 – – 11,539
Subtotal $11,539 $90,521 $1,075,695 $1,177,755
Investments measured at NAV(1) 92,097
Total assets $1,269,852
(1) Includes equity investment in the Senior Credit Fund. 
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The following is a reconciliation of Level 3 assets for the three months ended March 31, 2018: 

Level 3

Beginning

Balance

as of

January 1,

2018 Purchases(1)

Net

Realized

Gain (Loss)

Net Change in

Unrealized

Appreciation

(Depreciation)(2)

Sales and

Settlements(1)

Net

Amortization

of Premium/

Discount

Transfers

In

Transfers

Out

Ending

Balance

as of

March 31,

2018

1st Lien/Senior Secured 

Debt $ 387,473 $ 17,368 $ 4 $ (311) $ (4,342) $ 449 $ – $ – $ 400,641

1st Lien/Last-Out 

Unitranche 273,965 14,979 – (1,054) (51,380) 1,226 – – 237,736

2nd Lien/Senior Secured 

Debt 374,915 39,687 – 357 (8,330) 315 – – 406,944

Unsecured Debt 3,900 1,557 – – – – – – 5,457

Preferred Stock 12,836 – – (321) – – – – 12,515

Common Stock 22,606 1,300 1,550 (1,237) (2,150) – – – 22,069

Total assets $1,075,695 $ 74,891 $ 1,554 $ (2,566) $ (66,202) $ 1,990 $ – $ – $1,085,362

(1) Purchases may include PIK and securities received in corporate actions and restructurings. Sales and Settlements may include securities delivered in corporate 

actions and restructuring of investments. 

(2) Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) relating to assets still held at March 31, 2018 totaled $(2,376) consisting of the following: 1st Lien/Senior 

Secured Debt $(311), 1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche $(921), 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt $414, Unsecured Debt $0, Preferred Stock $(321) and Common Stock 

$(1,237). 

The following is a reconciliation of Level 3 assets for the three months ended March 31, 2017: 

Level 3

Beginning

Balance

as of

January 1,

2017 Purchases(1)

Net

Realized

Gain (Loss)

Net Change in

Unrealized

Appreciation

(Depreciation)(2)

Sales and

Settlements(1)

Net

Amortization

of Premium/

Discount

Transfers

In

Transfers

Out

Ending

Balance

as of

March 31,

2017

1st Lien/Senior 

Secured Debt $ 379,181 $ 16,789 $ – $ 291 $ (9,535) $ 548 $ – $ – $ 387,274

1st Lien/Last-Out 

Unitranche 310,254 11,092 – (4,095) (713) 546 – – 317,084

2nd Lien/Senior 

Secured Debt 269,018 66,309 – (3,746) (71,250) 602 – – 260,933

Unsecured Debt 3,115 – – – – – – – 3,115

Preferred Stock 11,833 13 – (276) – – – – 11,570

Common Stock 4,312 1,450 – 390 – – – – 6,152

Total assets $ 977,713 $ 95,653 $ – $ (7,436) $ (81,498) $ 1,696 $ – $ – $ 986,128

(1) Purchases may include PIK and securities received in corporate actions and restructurings. Sales and Settlements may include securities delivered in corporate 

actions and restructuring of investments. 

(2) Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) relating to assets still held at March 31, 2017 totaled $(6,376) consisting of the following: 1st Lien/Senior 

Secured Debt $291, 1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche $(4,095), 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt $(2,686), Unsecured Debt $0, Preferred Stock $(276), and Common 

Stock $390. 

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are reported at the beginning of the reporting period in which they occur. For the 

three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between levels. 

Debt Not Carried at Fair Value 

The fair value of the Revolving Credit Facility, which would be categorized as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy as of March 31, 

2018 and December 31, 2017, approximates its carrying value. The fair value of the Company’s Convertible Notes, which would be 

categorized as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy, as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 was $117,404 and $119,959, 

respectively, based on broker quotes received by the Company. 

6. DEBT 

In accordance with the Investment Company Act, with certain exceptions, the Company is currently allowed to borrow amounts such 

that its asset coverage ratio, as defined in the Investment Company Act, is at least 200% after such borrowing (or 150% if certain 

requirements are met). As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company’s asset coverage ratio based on aggregate 

borrowings outstanding was 237% and 233%, respectively. 
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The Company’s outstanding debt as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 was as follows: 

As of

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Aggregate

Borrowing

Amount

Committed

Outstanding

Borrowing

Amount

Available

Carrying

Value

Aggregate

Borrowing

Amount

Committed

Outstanding

Borrowing

Amount

Available

Carrying

Value

Revolving Credit Facility(1) $ 695,000 $ 415,000 $ 280,000 $ 415,000 $ 620,000 $ 431,250 $ 188,750 $ 431,250

Convertible Notes(2) 115,000 115,000 – 111,493 115,000 115,000 – 111,276

Total Debt $ 810,000 $ 530,000 $ 280,000 $ 526,493 $ 735,000 $ 546,250 $ 188,750 $ 542,526

(1) Provides, under certain circumstances, a total borrowing capacity of $1,000,000. 

(2) The carrying value of the Company’s Convertible Notes is presented net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $2,948 and OID net of accretion of $559 as of 

March 31, 2018, and net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $3,133 and OID net of accretion of $591 as of December 31, 2017. 

The combined weighted average interest rate of the aggregate borrowings outstanding for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 

the year ended December 31, 2017 was 3.83% and 3.47%, respectively. 

Revolving Credit Facility 

On September 19, 2013, the Company entered into a Revolving Credit Facility with various lenders. SunTrust Bank serves as 

administrative agent and Bank of America N.A. serves as syndication agent under the Revolving Credit Facility. 

On October 3, 2014, the Company amended and restated the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: increase the aggregate 

borrowing amount on a committed basis, increase the total borrowing capacity, extend the maturity date, and reduce the applicable 

margin of borrowings. 

On January 16, 2015, the Company exercised the right under the accordion feature and increased the size of the Revolving Credit 

Facility to $535,000, on a committed basis. 

On March 27, 2015, the Company exercised the right under the accordion feature and increased the size of the Revolving Credit Facility 

to $560,000, on a committed basis. 

On November 3, 2015, the Company amended the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: 

• increase the aggregate borrowing amount to $570,000 on a committed basis; 

• increase the total borrowing capacity to a maximum of $1,000,000; 

• extend the final maturity date to November 4, 2020; and 

• reduce the applicable margin of borrowings with respect to (i) any loan bearing interest at a rate determined by 

reference to the alternate base rate from 1.25% to 0.75% or 1.00%, subject to borrowing base conditions and (ii) any 

loan bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to the adjusted LIBOR rate from 2.25% to 1.75% or 2.00%, 

subject to borrowing base conditions. 

On December 16, 2016, the Company further amended the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: 

• increase aggregate borrowing amount to $605,000 on a committed basis; and 

• extend the final maturity date to December 16, 2021. 

On November 14, 2017, the Company exercised the right under the accordion feature and increased the size of the Revolving Credit 

Facility to $620,000, on a committed basis. 

On February 21, 2018, the Company further amended the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: 

• increase aggregate borrowing amount to $695,000 on a committed basis; 

• extend the final maturity date to February 21, 2023; and 

• revise the financial covenants to require that the Company maintain a minimum stockholder’s equity of $500,000 plus 

25% of the net proceeds from any sale of the Company’s equity securities. 



Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility, including amounts drawn in respect of letters of credit, bear interest (at the Company’s 

election) of either LIBOR plus an applicable margin or an applicable margin plus the higher of the Prime Rate, Federal Funds Rate plus 

0.5% or overnight LIBOR plus 1.0%. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears. The Company pays a fee of 0.375% per annum on 

committed but undrawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility, payable quarterly in arrears. Any amounts borrowed under the 

Revolving Credit Facility will mature, and all accrued and unpaid interest will be due and payable, on February 21, 2023. 
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The Revolving Credit Facility may be guaranteed by certain of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries that are formed or acquired by the 

Company in the future (collectively, the “Guarantors”). The Senior Credit Fund is not a Guarantor of the Revolving Credit Facility. 

Proceeds from borrowings may be used for general corporate purposes, including the funding of portfolio investments. 

The Company’s obligations to the lenders under the Revolving Credit Facility are secured by a first priority security interest in 

substantially all of the Company’s portfolio of investments and cash, with certain exceptions. The Revolving Credit Facility contains 

certain covenants, including: (i) maintaining a minimum stockholder’s equity of $500,000, subject to increase pending certain equity 

sales, (ii) maintaining an asset coverage ratio of at least 2 to 1, (iii) maintaining a minimum liquidity test of at least 10% of the covered 

debt amount during any period when the adjusted covered debt balance is greater than 90% of the adjusted borrowing base, as defined 

in the Revolving Credit Facility, and (iv) complying with restrictions on industry concentrations in the Company’s investment portfolio. 

The Company is in compliance with these covenants. 

Costs of $11,568 were incurred in connection with obtaining and amending the Revolving Credit Facility, which have been recorded as 

deferred financing costs on the Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities and are being amortized over the life of the Revolving 

Credit Facility using the straight-line method. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, deferred financing costs were $6,332 and 

$4,847, respectively. 

The summary information of the Revolving Credit Facility for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2018

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2017

Borrowing interest expense $ 3,671 $ 2,458

Facility fees 227 241

Amortization of financing costs 314 304

Total $ 4,212 $ 3,003

Weighted average interest rate 3.63% 2.83%

Average outstanding balance $ 410,408 $ 351,847

Convertible Notes 

On October 3, 2016, the Company closed an offering of $115,000 aggregate principal amount of unsecured Convertible Notes, which 

includes $15,000 aggregate principal amount issued pursuant to the initial purchasers’ exercise in full of an over-allotment option. The 

Convertible Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee. 

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and/or its affiliates provide bank lending and distribution services to certain Goldman Sachs 

funds. The Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 4.50% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 of 

each year, commencing on April 1, 2017. The Convertible Notes will mature on April 1, 2022, unless repurchased or converted in 

accordance with their terms prior to such date. In certain circumstances, the Convertible Notes will be convertible into cash, shares of 

the Company’s common stock or a combination of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock, based on an initial conversion rate 

of 40.8397 shares of the Company’s common stock per one thousand dollars principal amount of Convertible Notes, which is 

equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $24.49 per share of common stock, subject to customary anti-dilution 

adjustments and the other terms of the indenture governing the Convertible Notes. The conversion price is approximately 10.0% above 

the $22.26 per share closing price of the Company’s common stock on September 27, 2016. The Company will not have the right to 

redeem the Convertible Notes prior to maturity. The sale of the Convertible Notes generated net proceeds of approximately $110,900. 

The Company used the net proceeds of the offering to pay down debt under the Revolving Credit Facility. 

Holders may convert their notes at their option at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding 

October 1, 2021 only under the following circumstances: (1) during any calendar quarter commencing after December 31, 2016, if the 

last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30 

consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% 

of the conversion price on each applicable trading day; (2) during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day 

period (the “measurement period”) in which the trading price per one thousand dollars principal amount of notes for each trading day of 

the measurement period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock and the 

conversion rate on each such trading day; or (3) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events. On or after October 1, 2021, until 

the close of business on the scheduled trading day immediately preceding the maturity date, holders may convert their notes at any time, 

regardless of the occurrence or nonoccurrence of any of the foregoing circumstances. 
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The Convertible Notes are accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options. Upon 

conversion of any of the Convertible Notes, the Company intends to pay the outstanding principal amount in cash and, to the extent that 

the conversion value exceeds the principal amount, has the option to pay the excess amount in cash or shares of the Company’s 

common stock (or a combination of cash and shares), subject to the requirements of the indenture governing the Convertible Notes. The 

Company has determined that the embedded conversion options in the Convertible Notes are not required to be separately accounted for 

as derivatives under ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. At the time of issuance the values of the debt and equity components of 

the Convertible Notes were approximately 99.4% and 0.6%, respectively. 

The OID equal to the equity component of the Convertible Notes was recorded in “paid-in capital in excess of par” in the accompanying 

Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities. The Company records interest expense comprised of both stated interest and 

amortization of the OID. At the time of issuance, the equity component of the Convertible Notes was $743. Additionally, the issuance 

costs associated with the Convertible Notes were allocated to the debt and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the 

values at the time of issuance and accounted for as debt issuance costs and equity issuance costs, respectively. 

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the components of the carrying value of the Convertible Notes were as follows: 

March 31,

2018

December 31,

2017

Principal amount of debt $ 115,000 $ 115,000

OID, net of accretion 559 591

Unamortized debt issuance costs 2,948 3,133

Carrying value $ 111,493 $ 111,276

Stated interest rate 4.50% 4.50%

Effective interest rate (stated interest rate plus accretion of OID) 4.61% 4.60%

For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the components of interest and other debt expenses related to the Convertible 

Notes were as follows: 

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2018

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2017

Borrowing interest expense $ 1,294 $ 1,294  

Accretion of OID 32 30  

Amortization of debt issuance costs 185 185  

Total $ 1,511 $ 1,509  

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commitments 

The Company may enter into commitments to fund investments. As of March 31, 2018, the Company believed that it had adequate 

financial resources to satisfy its unfunded commitments. The Company had the following unfunded commitments by investment types 

as of the dates indicated: 

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Commitment

Expiration

Date (1)

Unfunded

Commitment

Fair

Value(2)

Commitment

Expiration

Date (1)

Unfunded

Commitment

Fair

Value(2)

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt

Continuum Managed Services LLC 06/08/2019 $ 1,800 $ (41) 06/08/2019 $ 1,800 $ (45) 

Legacy Buyer Corp. 10/24/2019 2,500 (38) 10/24/2019 2,500 (37) 

Elemica, Inc. 07/07/2021 6,000 (105) 07/07/2021 6,000 (105) 

Netvoyage Corporation 03/24/2022 654 (11) 03/24/2022 654 (11) 

Continuum Managed Services LLC 06/08/2022 2,220 (50) 06/08/2022 2,220 (56) 

Xactly Corporation 07/29/2022 1,697 (34) 07/29/2022 1,697 (34) 

Lithium Technologies, Inc. 10/03/2022 1,544 (31) 10/03/2022 1,544 (35) 

Datto, Inc. 12/07/2022 2,406 (48) 12/07/2022 2,406 (48) 

Total 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt 18,821 (358) 18,821 (371) 

1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche

Bolttech Mannings, Inc. 12/21/2018 1,500 – 12/21/2018 1,500 –

Total 1st Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 1,500 – 1,500 –

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt

Pathway Partners Vet Management Company, LLC 10/10/2019 $ 4,366 $ (44) 10/10/2019 $ 6,111 $ (61) 

ICP Industrial, Inc. – – – 11/04/2019 3,800 (95) 

Total 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 4,366 (44) 9,911 (156) 

Total $ 24,687 $ (402) $ 30,232 $ (527) 



(1) Commitments are generally subject to borrowers meeting certain criteria such as compliance with covenants and certain operational metrics. These amounts may 

remain outstanding until the commitment period of an applicable loan expires, which may be shorter than its maturity. 

(2) A negative fair value was reflected as investments, at fair value in the Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities. The negative fair value is the result of the 

capitalized discount on the loan. 
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Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts that provide a variety of general indemnifications. Any exposure to 

the Company under these arrangements could involve future claims that may be made against the Company. Currently, no such claims 

exist or are expected to arise and, accordingly, the Company has not accrued any liability in connection with such indemnifications. 

8. NET ASSETS 

Equity Issuances 

There were no sales of the Company’s common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017. 

Distributions 

The following table reflects the distributions declared on shares of the Company’s common stock during the three months ended 

March 31, 2018: 

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Amount Per Share

February 21, 2018 March 30, 2018 April 16, 2018 $0.45

The following table reflects the distributions declared on shares of the Company’s common stock during the three months ended 

March 31, 2017: 

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Amount Per Share

February 22, 2017 March 31, 2017 April 17, 2017 $0.45

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

Concurrent with the IPO, the Company adopted a dividend reinvestment plan that provides for reinvestment of all cash distributions 

declared by the Board of Directors, unless a stockholder elects to “opt out” of the plan. As a result, if the Board of Directors declares a 

cash distribution, then the stockholders who have not “opted out” of the dividend reinvestment plan will have their cash distributions 

automatically reinvested in additional shares of common stock, rather than receiving the cash distribution. 
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The following table summarizes shares distributed pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan during the three months ended March 31, 

2018 to stockholders who had not opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan: 

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Shares

October 31, 2017 December 29, 2017 January 16, 2018 23,824

The following table summarizes shares distributed pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan during the three months ended March 31, 

2017 to stockholders who had not opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan: 

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Shares

November 1, 2016 December 31, 2016 January 17, 2017 11,124

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following information sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2018 

and 2017: 

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2018

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2017

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share - increase in net assets resulting from 

operations $ 18,451 $ 14,565

Denominator for basic and diluted earnings per share - weighted average shares outstanding 40,150,518 36,340,808

Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 0.46 $ 0.40

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per common share, the average closing price of the Company’s common stock for the 

three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 was less than the conversion price for the Convertible Notes outstanding as of March 31, 

2018 and 2017. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, diluted earnings per share equals basic earnings per share 

because the underlying shares for the intrinsic value of the embedded options in the Convertible Notes were not dilutive. 

10. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Below is the schedule of financial highlights of the Company for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017: 

Three Months

Ended

March 31, 2018

Three Months

Ended

March 31, 2017

Per Share Data:(1)

NAV, beginning of period $ 18.09 $ 18.31

Net investment income (loss) 0.47 0.49

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) – (0.09) 

Income tax provision, realized gain (0.01) –

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations 0.46 0.40

Distributions declared from net investment income(2) (0.45) (0.45) 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 0.01 (0.05) 

NAV, end of period $ 18.10 $ 18.26

Market price, end of period $ 19.13 $ 24.64

Shares outstanding, end of period 40,154,489 36,342,786

Weighted average shares outstanding 40,150,518 36,340,808

Total return based on NAV
(3)

2.49% 1.61%

Total return based on market value
(4)

(11.65)% 6.75%

Ratio/Supplemental Data (all amounts in thousands except ratios):

Net assets, end of period $ 726,711 $ 663,600

Ratio of net expenses to average net assets
(5)

9.25% 8.61%

Ratio of expenses (without incentive fees and interest and other debt expenses) to average net assets
(5)

3.44% 3.58%

Ratio of interest and other debt expenses to average net assets
(6)

3.20% 2.75%

Ratio of incentive fees to average net assets
(6)

2.61% 2.28%

Ratio of total expenses to average net assets
(5)

9.25% 8.61%

Ratio of net investment income (loss) to average net assets
(5)(7)

10.59% 11.04%

Average debt outstanding $ 525,408 $ 466,847

Average debt per share(8) $ 13.09 $ 12.85

Portfolio turnover 6% 9%

(1) The per share data was derived by using the weighted average shares outstanding during the applicable period. 



39 



(2) The per share data for distributions declared reflects the actual amount of distributions declared per share for the applicable period. 

(3) Total return based on NAV is calculated as the change in NAV per share during the respective periods, assuming dividends and distributions, if any, are reinvested 

in accordance with the Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. 

(4) Total return based on market value is calculated as the change in market value per share during the respective periods, assuming dividends and distributions, if any, 

are reinvested in accordance with the Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. 

(5) Annualized except for certain operating expenses. 

(6) Annualized. 

(7) For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, annualized except for certain components of other income. 

(8) Average debt per share is calculated as average debt outstanding divided by the weighted average shares outstanding during the applicable period. 

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events after the Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities date have been evaluated through the date the unaudited 

consolidated financial statements were issued. Other than the items discussed below, the Company has concluded that there is no impact 

requiring adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 

On May 1, 2018, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly distribution of $0.45 per share payable on July 16, 2018 to holders of 

record as of June 29, 2018. 
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS 

The following discussion and other parts of this report contain forward-looking information that involves risks and uncertainties. 

References to “we,” “us,” “our,” and the “Company,” mean Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. or Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. together with its 

consolidated subsidiaries, as the context may require. The terms “GSAM,” our “Adviser” or our “Investment Adviser” refer to 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership. The term “Group Inc.” refers to The Goldman Sachs Group, 

Inc. “GS & Co.” refers to Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC and its predecessors. The term “Goldman Sachs” refers to Group Inc., together 

with GS & Co., GSAM and its other subsidiaries and affiliates. The discussion and analysis contained in this section refers to our 

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. The information contained in this section should be read in conjunction with 

the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report. Please see “Cautionary Statement 

Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” for a discussion of the uncertainties, risks and assumptions associated with this discussion 

and analysis. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated by such forward-looking information due to factors 

discussed under “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” appearing elsewhere in this report. 

OVERVIEW 

We are a specialty finance company focused on lending to middle-market companies. We are a closed-end management 

investment company that has elected to be regulated as a business development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act 

of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”). In addition, we have elected to be treated, and expect to qualify annually, as a 

regulated investment company (“RIC”) under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), 

commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 2013. From our formation in 2012 through March 31, 2018, we originated 

more than $2.64 billion in aggregate principal amount of debt and equity investments prior to any subsequent exits and repayments. We 

seek to generate current income and, to a lesser extent, capital appreciation primarily through direct originations of secured debt, 

including first lien, unitranche, including last-out portions of such loans, and second lien debt, and unsecured debt, including mezzanine 

debt, as well as through select equity investments. 

“Unitranche” loans are first lien loans that may extend deeper in a company’s capital structure than traditional first lien debt and 

may provide for a waterfall of cash flow priority between different lenders in the unitranche loan. In a number of instances, we may find 

another lender to provide the “first-out” portion of such loan and retain the “last-out” portion of such loan, in which case, the “first-out” 

portion of the loan would generally receive priority with respect to payment of principal, interest and any other amounts due thereunder 

over the “last-out” portion that we would continue to hold. In exchange for the greater risk of loss, the “last-out” portion generally earns 

a higher interest rate than the “first-out” portion. We use the term “mezzanine” to refer to debt that ranks senior only to a borrower’s 

equity securities and ranks junior in right of payment to all of such borrower’s other indebtedness. We may make multiple investments 

in the same portfolio company. 

We invest primarily in U.S. middle-market companies, which we believe are underserved by traditional providers of capital such 

as banks and the public debt markets. In this report, we generally use the term “middle market companies” to refer to companies with 

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) of between $5 million and $75 million annually. However, 

we may from time to time invest in larger or smaller companies. We generate revenues primarily through receipt of interest income 

from the investments we hold. In addition, we may generate income from various loan origination and other fees, dividends on direct 

equity investments and capital gains on the sales of investments. Fees received from portfolio companies (directors’ fees, consulting 

fees, administrative fees, tax advisory fees and other similar compensation) are paid to us, unless, to the extent required by applicable 

law or exemptive relief therefrom, we only receive our allocable portion of such fees when invested in the same portfolio company as 

another client account managed by our Investment Adviser (including Goldman Sachs Private Middle Market Credit LLC (“GS 

PMMC”) and Goldman Sachs Middle Market Lending Corp. (“GS MMLC”), collectively with other client accounts managed by our 

Investment Adviser, the “Accounts”). The companies in which we invest use our capital for a variety of purposes, including to support 

organic growth, fund acquisitions, make capital investments or refinance indebtedness. 

Our origination strategy focuses on leading the negotiation and structuring of the loans or securities in which we invest and 

holding the investments in our portfolio to maturity. In many cases, we are the sole investor in the loan or security in our portfolio. 

Where there are multiple investors, we generally seek to control or obtain significant influence over the rights of investors in the loan or 

security. We generally seek to make investments that have maturities between three and ten years and range in size between $10 million 

and $75 million, although we may make larger or smaller investments on occasion. In addition, part of our strategy involves a joint 

venture with the Regents of the University of California (“Cal Regents”, and collectively with us, the “Members”) through the Senior 

Credit Fund, LLC (the “Senior Credit Fund”). The Senior Credit Fund’s principal purpose is to make investments, either directly or 

indirectly through its wholly owned subsidiary, Senior Credit Fund SPV I, LLC (“SPV I”), primarily in senior secured loans to middle-

market companies. 



For a discussion of the competitive landscape we face, please see “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our Business and 

Structure — We operate in a highly competitive market for investment opportunities” and “Item 1. Business — Competitive 

Advantages” in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
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KEY COMPONENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Investments 

Our level of investment activity can and does vary substantially from period to period depending on many factors, including the 

amount of debt and equity capital available to middle-market companies, the level of merger and acquisition activity for such 

companies, the general economic environment, the amount of capital we have available to us and the competitive environment for the 

type of investments we make. 

As a BDC, we may not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” specified in the Investment Company Act, unless, at the 

time the acquisition is made, at least 70% of our total assets are qualifying assets (with certain limited exceptions). Qualifying assets 

include investments in “eligible portfolio companies.” Pursuant to rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 

“SEC”), “eligible portfolio companies” include certain companies that do not have any securities listed on a national securities 

exchange and public companies whose securities are listed on a national securities exchange but whose market capitalization is less than 

$250 million. 

Revenues 

We generate revenues in the form of interest income on debt investments and, to a lesser extent, capital gains and distributions, if 

any, on equity securities that we may acquire in portfolio companies. Some of our investments may provide for deferred interest 

payments or payment-in-kind (“PIK”) income. The principal amount of the debt investments and any accrued but unpaid interest 

generally becomes due at the maturity date. 

We generate revenues primarily through receipt of interest income from the investments we hold. In addition, we may generate 

revenue in the form of commitment, origination, structuring, syndication or diligence fees, fees for providing managerial assistance and 

consulting fees. Portfolio company fees (directors’ fees, consulting fees, administrative fees, tax advisory fees and other similar 

compensation) will be paid to us, unless, to the extent required by applicable law or exemptive relief, if any, therefrom, we receive our 

allocable portion of such fees when invested in the same portfolio company as other Accounts, which other Accounts could receive 

their allocable portion of such fee. We do not expect to receive material fees as it is not our principal investment strategy. We record 

contractual prepayment premiums on loans and debt securities as interest income. 

Dividend income on preferred equity investments is recorded on an accrual basis to the extent that such amounts are payable by 

the portfolio company and are expected to be collected. Dividend income on common equity investments is recorded on the record date 

for private portfolio companies and on the ex-dividend date for publicly traded portfolio companies. Interest and dividend income are 

presented net of withholding tax, if any. 

Expenses 

Our primary operating expenses include the payment of the Management Fee and the Incentive Fee to the Investment Adviser, 

legal and professional fees, interest and other debt expenses and other operating and overhead related expenses. The Management Fee 

and Incentive Fee compensate our Investment Adviser for its work in identifying, evaluating, negotiating, closing and monitoring our 

investments. We bear all other costs and expenses of our operations and transactions in accordance with our investment management 

agreement (as amended and restated as of January 1, 2015, the “Investment Management Agreement”) and administration agreement 

(“Administration Agreement”), including those relating to: 

• our operational and organizational expenses; 

• fees and expenses, including travel expenses, incurred by our Investment Adviser or payable to third parties related to 

our investments, including, among others, professional fees (including the fees and expenses of consultants and 

experts) and fees and expenses from evaluating, monitoring, researching and performing due diligence on investments 

and prospective investments; 

• interest payable on debt, if any, incurred to finance our investments; 

• fees and expenses incurred by us in connection with membership in investment company organizations; 

• brokers’ commissions; 

• the expenses of and fees for registering or qualifying our shares for sale and of maintaining our registration and 

registering us as a broker or a dealer; 

• fees and expenses associated with calculating our net asset value (“NAV”) (including the costs and expenses of any 

independent valuation firm); 



• legal, auditing or accounting expenses; 

• taxes or governmental fees; 

• the fees and expenses of our administrator, transfer agent or sub-transfer agent; 
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• the cost of preparing stock certificates or any other expenses, including clerical expenses of issue, redemption or 

repurchase of our shares; 

• the fees and expenses of our directors who are not affiliated with our Investment Adviser; 

• the cost of preparing and distributing reports, proxy statements and notices to our stockholders, the SEC and other 

regulatory authorities; 

• costs of holding stockholder meetings; 

• listing fees; 

• the fees or disbursements of custodians of our assets, including expenses incurred in the performance of any 

obligations enumerated by our certificate of incorporation or bylaws insofar as they govern agreements with any such 

custodian; 

• insurance premiums; and 

• costs incurred in connection with any claim, litigation, arbitration, mediation, government investigation or dispute in 

connection with our business and the amount of any judgment or settlement paid in connection therewith, or the 

enforcement of our rights against any person and indemnification or contribution expenses payable by us to any 

person and other extraordinary expenses not incurred in the ordinary course of our business. 

We expect our general and administrative expenses to be relatively stable or decline as a percentage of total assets during periods 

of asset growth and to increase during periods of asset declines. Costs relating to future offerings of securities would be incremental. 

Leverage 

Our senior secured revolving credit agreement (as amended, the “Revolving Credit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank, as 

administrative agent, and Bank of America, N.A., as syndication agent, and our 4.50% Convertible Notes due 2022 (the “Convertible 

Notes”) allow us to borrow money and lever our investment portfolio, subject to the limitations of the Investment Company Act, with 

the objective of increasing our yield. This is known as “leverage” and could increase or decrease returns to our stockholders. The use of 

leverage involves significant risks. As a BDC, with certain limited exceptions, we are only permitted to borrow amounts such that our 

asset coverage ratio, as defined in the Investment Company Act, equals at least 200% after such borrowing (or 150% if certain 

requirements are met). As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company’s asset coverage ratio based on aggregate 

borrowings outstanding was 237% and 233%, respectively. The recently passed Small Business Credit Availability Act modified the 

applicable provisions of the Investment Company Act to reduce the required asset coverage ratio applicable to BDCs to 150%, subject 

to certain approval and disclosure requirements. Under the legislation, BDCs are able to increase their leverage capacity if shareholders 

approve a proposal to do so. If a BDC receives shareholder approval, it would be allowed to increase its leverage capacity on the first 

day after such approval. Alternatively, the legislation allows the majority of the directors who are not “interested persons,” as defined in 

the Investment Company Act, of the BDC to approve an increase in its leverage capacity, and such approval would become effective 

after one year. See “—Recent Developments.” 

Certain trading practices and investments, such as reverse repurchase agreements, may be considered borrowings or involve 

leverage and thus may be subject to Investment Company Act restrictions. In accordance with applicable SEC staff guidance and 

interpretations, when we engage in such transactions, instead of maintaining an asset coverage ratio of at least 200% (or 150% if certain 

requirements are met), we may segregate or earmark liquid assets, or enter into an offsetting position, in an amount at least equal to our 

exposure, on a mark-to-market basis, to such transactions (as calculated pursuant to requirements of the SEC). Short-term credits 

necessary for the settlement of securities transactions and arrangements with respect to securities lending will not be considered 

borrowings for these purposes. Practices and investments that may involve leverage but are not considered borrowings are not subject to 

the Investment Company Act’s asset coverage requirement, and we will not otherwise segregate or earmark liquid assets or enter into 

offsetting positions for such transactions. The amount of leverage that we employ will depend on our Investment Adviser’s and our 

Board of Directors’ assessment of market conditions and other factors at the time of any proposed borrowing. 

PORTFOLIO AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our portfolio (excluding our investment in a money market fund managed by an 

affiliate of Group, Inc. of $0.00 million and $11.54 million, respectively) consisted of the following: 

As of

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017



Amortized

Cost

Fair

Value

Percentage

of Total

Portfolio at

Fair Value

Amortized

Cost

Fair

Value

Percentage

of Total

Portfolio at

Fair Value

(in millions) (in millions)

First Lien/Senior Secured Debt $ 426.01 $ 420.14 33.4% $ 412.53 $ 407.07 32.4% 

First Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 243.86 237.74 18.9 279.03 273.96 21.8

Second Lien/Senior Secured Debt 462.71 464.46 37.0 443.39 444.60 35.3

Unsecured Debt 5.46 5.46 0.4 3.90 3.90 0.3

Preferred Stock 11.75 12.51 1.0 11.75 12.84 1.0

Common Stock 33.42 23.27 1.9 32.72 23.84 1.9

Investment Funds & Vehicles 94.34 93.10 7.4 94.34 92.10 7.3

Total Investments $ 1,277.55 $1,256.68 100.0% $ 1,277.66 $1,258.31 100.0% 
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As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the weighted average yield by asset type of our total portfolio (excluding our 

investment in a money market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc.), at amortized cost and fair value, was as follows: 

As of

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Amortized

Cost

Fair

Value

Amortized

Cost

Fair

Value

Weighted Average Yield(1)

First Lien/Senior Secured Debt(2) 11.2% 11.8% 10.9% 11.8% 

First Lien/Last-Out Unitranche(2) (3) 12.4% 14.6% 11.7% 13.1% 

Second Lien/Senior Secured Debt(2) 11.2% 11.1% 10.5% 10.5% 

Unsecured Debt(2) 11.8% 11.8% 11.8% 11.8% 

Preferred Stock(4) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Common Stock(4) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Investment Funds & Vehicles(5) 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 11.9% 

Total Portfolio 11.1% 11.7% 10.6% 11.3% 

(1) The weighted average yield of our portfolio does not represent the total return to our stockholders. 

(2) Computed based on (a) the annual actual interest rate or yield earned plus amortization of fees and discounts on the performing debt and other income producing 

investments as of the reporting date, divided by (b) the total investments (including investments on non-accrual and non-income producing investments) at 

amortized cost or fair value, respectively. 

(3) The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion of the unitranche loan investments. 

(4) Computed based on (a) the stated coupon rate, if any, for each income-producing investment, divided by (b) the total investments (including investments on 

non-accrual and non-income producing investments) at amortized cost or fair value, respectively. 

(5) Computed based on (a) the net investment income earned from the Senior Credit Fund for the respective trailing twelve months ended on the measurement date, 

which may include dividend income and loan origination and structuring fees, divided by (b) our average member’s equity at cost and fair value, adjusted for 

equity contributions. 

As of March 31, 2018 the total portfolio weighted average yield measured at amortized cost and fair value was 11.1% and 11.7%, 

respectively, which increased from 10.6% and 11.3%, respectively, at December 31, 2017. The increase was primarily due to the 

increase in London InterBank Offering Rate on our variable rate first and second lien secured debt investments. 

The following table presents certain selected information regarding our investment portfolio (excluding our investment in a money 

market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc.) as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017: 

As of

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Number of portfolio companies(1)
56 56

Percentage of performing debt bearing a floating rate(2) 96.2% 96.4%

Percentage of performing debt bearing a fixed rate(2)(3) 3.8% 3.6%

Weighted average yield on debt and income producing investments, at amortized cost(4) 11.5% 11.0%

Weighted average yield on debt and income producing investments, at fair value(4) 12.1% 11.6%

Weighted average leverage (net debt/EBITDA)(5) 5.1x 5.3x

Weighted average interest coverage(5) 2.3x 2.3x

Median EBITDA(5) 39.68 million $ 40.06 million

(1) Includes the Senior Credit Fund as a single portfolio company. For details on the portfolio companies held within the Senior Credit Fund, refer to “Senior Credit 

Fund, LLC – Selected Financial Data.” 

(2) Measured on a fair value basis. Excludes investments, if any, placed on non-accrual. 

(3) Includes income producing preferred stock investments. 

(4) Computed based on (a) the annual actual interest rate or yield earned plus amortization of fees and discounts on the performing debt and other income producing 

investments as of the reporting date, divided by (b) the total performing debt and other income producing investments (excluding investments on non-accrual). 

(5) For a particular portfolio company, EBITDA typically represents net income before net interest expense, income tax expense, depreciation and amortization. The 

net debt to EBITDA represents the ratio of a portfolio company’s total debt (net of cash) and excluding debt subordinated to our investment in a portfolio 

company, to a portfolio company’s EBITDA. The interest coverage ratio represents the ratio of a portfolio company’s EBITDA as a multiple of a portfolio 

company’s interest expense. Weighted average net debt to EBITDA is weighted based on the fair value of our debt investments, including our exposure to 

underlying debt investments in the Senior Credit Fund and excluding investments where net debt to EBITDA may not be the appropriate measure of credit risk, 

such as cash collateralized loans and investments that are underwritten and covenanted based on recurring revenue. Weighted average interest coverage is weighted 

based on the fair value of our performing debt investments, including our exposure to underlying debt investments in the Senior Credit Fund and excluding 

investments where interest coverage may not be the appropriate measure of credit risk, such as cash collateralized loans and investments that are underwritten and 

covenanted based on recurring revenue. Median EBITDA is based on our debt investments, including our exposure to underlying debt investments in the Senior 

Credit Fund and excluding investments where net debt to EBITDA may not be the appropriate measure of credit risk, such as cash collateralized loans and 

investments that are underwritten and covenanted based on recurring revenue. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, investments where net debt to 

EBITDA may not be the appropriate measure of credit risk represented 11.1% and 11.3%, respectively, of total debt investments, including our investment in the 

Senior Credit Fund, at fair value. Portfolio company statistics are derived from the most recently available financial statements of each portfolio company as of the 

respective reported end date. Portfolio company statistics have not been independently verified by us and may reflect a normalized or adjusted amount. 

44 



Floating rates are primarily London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a spread. 

Our Investment Adviser monitors our portfolio companies on an ongoing basis. It monitors the financial trends of each portfolio 

company to determine if it is meeting its respective business plan and to assess the appropriate course of action for each company. Our 

Investment Adviser has several methods of evaluating and monitoring the performance and fair value of our investments, which may 

include the following: 

• assessment of success in adhering to the portfolio company’s business plan and compliance with covenants; 

• periodic or regular contact with portfolio company management and, if appropriate, the financial or strategic sponsor 

to discuss financial position, requirements and accomplishments; 

• comparisons to our other portfolio companies in the industry, if any; 

• attendance at and participation in board meetings or presentations by portfolio companies; and 

• review of monthly and quarterly financial statements and financial projections of portfolio companies. 

As part of the monitoring process, our Investment Adviser also employs an investment rating system to categorize our 

investments. In addition to various risk management and monitoring tools, our Investment Adviser grades the credit risk of all 

investments on a scale of 1 to 4 no less frequently than quarterly. This system is intended primarily to reflect the underlying risk of a 

portfolio investment relative to our initial cost basis in respect of such portfolio investment (e.g., at the time of origination or 

acquisition), although it may also take into account under certain circumstances the performance of the portfolio company’s business, 

the collateral coverage of the investment and other relevant factors. The grading system is as follows: 

• investments with a grade of 1 involve the least amount of risk to our initial cost basis. The trends and risk factors for 

this investment since origination or acquisition are generally favorable, which may include the performance of the 

portfolio company or a potential exit; 

• investments with a grade of 2 involve a level of risk to our initial cost basis that is similar to the risk to our initial cost 

basis at the time of origination or acquisition. This portfolio company is generally performing as expected and the risk 

factors to our ability to ultimately recoup the cost of our investment are neutral to favorable. All investments or 

acquired investments in new portfolio companies are initially assessed a grade of 2; 

• investments with a grade of 3 indicate that the risk to our ability to recoup the initial cost basis of such investment has 

increased materially since origination or acquisition, including as a result of factors such as declining performance and 

non-compliance with debt covenants; however, payments are generally not more than 120 days past due; and 

• investments with a grade of 4 indicate that the risk to our ability to recoup the initial cost basis of such investment has 

substantially increased since origination or acquisition, and the portfolio company likely has materially declining 

performance. For debt investments with an investment grade of 4, most or all of the debt covenants are out of 

compliance and payments are substantially delinquent. For investments graded 4, it is anticipated that we will not 

recoup our initial cost basis and may realize a substantial loss of our initial cost basis upon exit. 

Our Investment Adviser grades the investments in our portfolio at least quarterly and it is possible that the grade of a portfolio 

investment may be reduced or increased over time. For investments graded 3 or 4, our Investment Adviser enhances its level of scrutiny 

over the monitoring of such portfolio company. The following table shows the composition of our portfolio (excluding our investment 

in a money market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc.) on the 1 to 4 grading scale as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 

2017: 

As of

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Investment

Performance Rating Fair Value

Percentage

of Total

Portfolio

at Fair

Value Fair Value

Percentage

of Total

Portfolio

at Fair

Value

(in millions) (in millions)

Grade 1 $ - -% $ 31.28 2.5% 

Grade 2 1,164.23 92.6 1,135.48 90.2

Grade 3 92.45 7.4 91.55 7.3

Grade 4 - - – –

Total Investments $ 1,256.68 100.0% $ 1,258.31 100.0% 



The decrease in investments with a grade 1 investment performance rating as of March 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017 

was driven by the repayment of an investment with a fair value of $31.28 million as of December 31, 2017. 
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The following table shows the amortized cost of our performing and non-accrual investments (excluding our investment in a 

money market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc.) as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017: 

As of

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Amortized

Cost

Percentage

of Total

Portfolio

at

Amortized

Cost

Amortized

Cost

Percentage

of Total

Portfolio

at

Amortized

Cost

(in millions) (in millions)

Performing $ 1,276.77 99.9% $ 1,276.88 99.9% 

Non-accrual 0.78 0.1 0.78 0.1

Total Investments $ 1,277.55 100.0% $ 1,277.66 100.0% 

Loans or debt securities are placed on non-accrual status when it is probable that principal or interest will not be collected 

according to the contractual terms. Accrued interest generally is reversed when a loan or debt security is placed on non-accrual status. 

Interest payments received on non-accrual loans or debt securities may be recognized as income or applied to principal depending upon 

management’s judgment. Non-accrual loans and debt securities are restored to accrual status when past due principal and interest is paid 

and, in management’s judgment, principal and interest payments are likely to remain current. We may make exceptions to this treatment 

if the loan has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of collection. 

The following table shows our investment activity for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 by investment type: 

For the Three Months Ended

  March 31,  

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

New investment commitments at cost:

Gross originations $ 67.23 $ 112.56

Less: Syndications(1) – –

Net amount of new investments committed at cost: $ 67.23 $ 112.56

Amount of investments committed at cost(2):

First Lien/Senior Secured Debt $ 17.22 $ 20.44

First Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 13.01 10.96

Second Lien/Senior Secured Debt 34.14 66.31

Unsecured Debt 1.56 –

Preferred Stock – –

Common Stock 1.30 1.45

Investment Funds & Vehicles – 13.40

Total $ 67.23 $ 112.56

Proceeds from investments sold or repaid:

First Lien/Senior Secured Debt $ 4.34 $ 33.54

First Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 51.38 0.71

Second Lien/Senior Secured Debt 20.84 76.05

Unsecured Debt – –

Preferred Stock – –

Common Stock 2.15 –

Investment Funds & Vehicles – –

Total $ 78.71 $ 110.30

Net increase (decrease) in portfolio $ (11.48) $ 2.26

Number of new portfolio companies with new investment commitments(3) 2 6

Total new investment commitment amount in new portfolio companies(3) $ 10.74 $ 78.81

Average new investment commitment amount in new portfolio companies(3) $ 5.37 $ 13.14

Number of existing portfolio companies with new investment commitments(3) 9 4

Total new investment commitment amount in existing portfolio companies(3) $ 56.49 $ 33.75

Weighted average remaining term for new investment commitments (in years)(3)(4) 5.4 6.4

Percentage of new debt investment commitments at floating interest rates(3) 83.3% 100.0%

Percentage of new debt investment commitments at fixed interest rates(3)(5) 16.7% –%

Weighted average yield on new debt and income producing investment commitments(2)(3) 12.1%(6) 10.8%(10)

Weighted average yield on new investment commitments(2)(3) 11.9%(7) 10.6%(11)

Weighted average yield on debt and income producing investments sold or paid down 10.1%(8) 12.6%(12)

Weighted average yield on investments sold or paid down 9.8%(9) 12.6%(13)
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(1) Only includes syndications that occurred at the initial close of the investment. 

(2) Net of capitalized fees, expenses and original issue discount (“OID”). 

(3) May include positions originated during the period but not held at the reporting date. 

(4) Calculated as of the end of the relevant period and the maturity date of the individual investments. 

(5) May include preferred stock investments. 

(6) Computed based on (a) the annual actual interest rate on new debt and income producing investment commitments as of the reporting date, divided by (b) the total 

new debt and income producing investment commitments. The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion of the unitranche loan 

investments and excludes investments that are non-accrual. 

(7) Computed based on (a) the annual actual interest rate on new investment commitments as of the reporting date, divided by (b) the total new investment 

commitments (including investments on non-accrual and non-income producing investments). The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” 

portion of the unitranche loan investments. 

(8) Computed based on (a) the annual actual interest rate on debt and income producing investments sold or paid down as of the reporting date, divided by (b) the total 

debt and income producing investments sold or paid down. The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion of the unitranche loan 

investments and excludes prepayment premiums earned on exited investments and investments that are on non-accrual. 

(9) Computed based on (a) the annual actual interest rate on investments sold or paid down as of the reporting date, divided by (b) the total investments sold or paid 

down (including investments on non-accrual and non-income producing investments). The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion 

of the unitranche loan investments and excludes prepayment premiums earned on exited investments 

(10) Computed based on (a) the annual stated interest rate on new debt and income producing investment commitments, divided by (b) the total new debt and income 

producing investment commitments. The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion of the unitranche loan investments and excludes 

investments that are non-accrual. For investments that are subject to a LIBOR floor, the calculation assumes the greater of the applicable LIBOR floor or 3 month 

LIBOR as of the respective period end date. The actual interest rate may vary. 

(11) Computed based on (a) the annual stated interest rate on new investment commitments, divided by (b) the total new investment commitments (including 

investments on non-accrual and non-income producing investments). The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion of the unitranche 

loan investments. For investments that are subject to a LIBOR floor, the calculation assumes the greater of the applicable LIBOR floor or 3 month LIBOR as of the 

respective period end date. The actual interest rate may vary. 

(12) Computed based on (a) the annual stated interest rate on debt and income producing investments sold or paid down, divided by (b) the total debt and income 

producing investments sold or paid down. The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion of the unitranche loan investments and 

excludes prepayment premiums earned on exited investments and investments that are non-accrual. For investments that are subject to a LIBOR floor, the 

calculation assumes the greater of the applicable LIBOR floor or 3 month LIBOR as of the respective period end date. The actual interest rate may vary. 

(13) Computed based on (a) the annual stated interest rate on investments sold or paid down, divided by (b) the total investments sold or paid down (including 

investments on non-accrual and non-income producing investments). The calculation includes incremental yield earned on the “last-out” portion of the unitranche 

loan investments and excludes prepayment premiums earned on exited investments. For investments that are subject to a LIBOR floor, the calculation assumes the 

greater of the applicable LIBOR floor or 3 month LIBOR as of the respective period end date. The actual interest rate may vary. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Our operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows: 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

Total investment income $ 35.54 $ 32.19

Net expenses (16.52) (13.87) 

Net investment income (loss) before taxes 19.02 18.32

Excise tax (0.28) (0.37) 

Net investment income (loss) after taxes 18.74 17.95

Net realized gain (loss) on investments 1.67 (0.17) 

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments (1.51) (3.22) 

Income tax provision, realized gain (0.45) –

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations $ 18.45 $ 14.56

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations can vary from period to period as a result of various factors, including 

acquisitions, the level of new investment commitments, the recognition of realized gains and losses and changes in unrealized 

appreciation and depreciation on the investment portfolio. As a result, comparisons may not be meaningful. 

Investment Income 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

Interest $ 30.18 $ 27.51

Dividend income 2.81 2.47

Payment-in-kind 2.31 1.67

Other income 0.24 0.54

Total investment income $ 35.54 $ 32.19

Interest 



Interest from investments, which includes prepayment premiums and accelerated accretion of upfront loan origination fees and 

unamortized discounts, increased from $27.51 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 to $30.18 million for the three 

months ended March 31, 2018. The increase is primarily driven by the increase in LIBOR on our variable rate first and second lien 

secured debt investments and the increase in total investments. Included in interest for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 

is $0.48 million and $1.33 million, respectively, in prepayment premiums and $0.83 million and $0.29 million, respectively, in 

accelerated accretion of upfront loan origination fees and unamortized discounts. 
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Dividend income 

Dividend income for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively consistent as compared to the three months 

ended March 31, 2017. Included in dividend income is income earned from the Senior Credit of $2.80 million for the three months 

ended March 31, 2018 and $2.45 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. 

Payment-in-kind 

Payment-in-kind income from investments increased from $1.67 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 to 

$2.31 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 primarily as a result of an increase in the number of investments earning PIK 

income for the three months ended March 31, 2018. 

Other income 

Other income for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively consistent as compared to the three months ended 

March 31, 2017. 

Expenses 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

Interest and other debt expenses $ 5.72 $ 4.51

Management fees 4.80 4.46

Incentive fees 4.68 3.73

Professional fees 0.67 0.46

Administration, custodian and transfer agent fees 0.23 0.19

Directors’ fees 0.10 0.17

Other expenses 0.32 0.35

Total Expenses $ 16.52 $ 13.87

Interest and other debt expenses 

Interest and other debt expenses increased from $4.51 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 to $5.72 million for the 

three months ended March 31, 2018 primarily due to the increase in weighted average interest rate for the Revolving Credit Facility 

from 2.83% to 3.63% and the increase in average daily borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility from $351.85 million to 

$410.41 million. Included in interest and other debt expenses is the cost of the Convertible Notes of $1.51 million for each of the three 

months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017. 

Management Fees and Incentive Fees 

Management Fees remained relatively unchanged from $4.46 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 to $4.80 million 

for the three months ended March 31, 2018. Incentive Fees increased from $3.73 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 to 

$4.68 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 as a result of an increase in the Incentive Fee Cap which is primarily due to a 

decrease in the net capital loss on our portfolio for the period. 

Professional fees and other general and administrative expenses 

Professional fees and other general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively 

consistent as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2017. 

Net Realized Gains (Losses) and Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation) on Investments 

The realized gains and losses on fully exited and partially exited portfolio companies during the three months ended March 31, 

2018 and 2017 consisted of the following: 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

myON, LLC $ 1.55 $ –

P2 Upstream Acquisition Co. – (0.17) 

Global Tel*Link Corporation 0.14 –

Other, net (0.02) –

Net realized gain (loss) $ 1.67 $ (0.17) 
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In connection with the proceeds received from the exit of our equity investment in myON, LLC, we recorded an income tax 

provision on realized gains of $0.45 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. 

Any changes in fair value are recorded as a change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments. For further details on 

the valuation process, refer to “Critical Accounting Policies – Valuation of Portfolio Investments.” Net change in unrealized 

appreciation (depreciation) on investments for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows: 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

Change in unrealized appreciation $ 3.97 $ 6.87

Change in unrealized depreciation (5.48) (10.09) 

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments $ (1.51) $ (3.22) 

The change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 

consisted of the following: 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

Portfolio Company:

Artesyn Embedded Technologies, Inc. $ (0.10) $ 1.18

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC 0.22 (0.02) 

Associations, Inc. 0.08 (0.05) 

Avenue Stores, LLC (0.49) (0.04) 

Bolttech Mannings, Inc. (1.23) (1.83) 

CB-HDT Holdings, Inc. (0.45) 0.80

Collaborative Imaging, LLC (0.09) –

Conergy Asia & ME Pte. LTD. 0.87 –

Conergy Asia Holdings, Ltd. (1.00) –

Continuum Managed Services LLC – Class B 0.23 –

Country Fresh Holdings, LLC (0.10) –

Data Driven Delivery Systems, LLC – (0.08) 

DiscoverOrg, LLC 0.12 (0.03) 

Dispensing Dynamics International – 0.84

DiversiTech Corporation – 0.10

DuBois Chemicals, Inc. (0.01) 0.26

Global Tel*Link Corporation (0.10) 0.65

Heligear Acquisition Co. (0.23) (0.03) 

Highwinds Capital, Inc. – (1.05) 

IHS Intermediate Inc. 0.09 –

Infinity Sales Group 0.25 0.22

Intelligent Document Solutions, Inc. (0.11) –

Kawa Solar Holdings Limited 0.15 (0.77) 

Legacy Buyer Corp. (0.03) 0.23

Mervin Manufacturing, Inc. (0.01) 0.10

NTS Communications, Inc. (0.43) (2.37) 

Odyssey Logistics & Technology Corporation 0.09 –

P2 Upstream Acquisition Co. 0.14 0.67

Prairie Provident Resources, Inc. (0.03) (0.52) 

Pro-Pet, LLC (0.03) 0.12

Reddy Ice Corporation – 0.43

Securus Technologies Holdings, Inc. – 0.54

Senior Credit Fund, LLC 1.00 0.43

SF Home Décor, LLC 0.18 –

The Merit Distribution Group, LLC (0.03) (0.10) 

US Med Acquisition, Inc. (0.55) (0.03) 

Vexos, Inc. 0.15 0.07

Washington Inventory Service – (2.98) 

Yasso, Inc. (0.14) –

Other, net(1) 0.08 0.04

Total $ (1.51) $ (3.22) 

(1) For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 other, net includes gross unrealized appreciation of $0.40 million and $0.22 million, respectively, and gross 

unrealized depreciation of $0.32 million and $0.18 million, respectively. 
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SENIOR CREDIT FUND, LLC 

Overview 

The Senior Credit Fund, an unconsolidated Delaware limited liability company, was formed on May 7, 2014 and commenced 

operations on October 1, 2014. We invest together with Cal Regents through the Senior Credit Fund. The Senior Credit Fund’s principal 

purpose is to make investments, either directly or indirectly through SPV I, primarily in senior secured loans to middle-market 

companies. Each of us and Cal Regents has a 50% economic ownership in the Senior Credit Fund and each has subscribed to fund 

$100.00 million. Except under certain circumstances, contributions to the Senior Credit Fund cannot be redeemed. The Senior Credit 

Fund is managed by a six member board of managers, on which we and Cal Regents have equal representation. Investment decisions 

generally must be unanimously approved by a quorum of the board of managers. Establishing a quorum for the Senior Credit Fund’s 

board of managers requires at least four members to be present at a meeting, including at least two of our representatives and two of Cal 

Regents’ representatives. If there are five members present at a meeting, all three representatives of Cal Regents must be present to 

constitute a quorum. On March 2, 2018, we and Cal Regents, as the Members of the Senior Credit Fund, entered into an amendment to 

the amended and restated limited liability company agreement of the Senior Credit Fund to extend the investment period to 

September 3, 2018. 

We and Cal Regents are each responsible for sourcing the Senior Credit Fund’s investments. If the loan origination and structuring 

fees earned by the Senior Credit Fund (including directly or indirectly through SPV I or another vehicle) during a period exceed the 

Senior Credit Fund’s expenses (excluding interest and other debt expenses), such excess is paid as a fee to the Member(s) responsible 

for the origination of the loans pro rata in accordance with the total loan origination and structuring fees earned by the Senior Credit 

Fund with respect to the loans originated by such Member. 

Selected Financial Data 

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we and Cal Regents had subscribed to fund and contributed the following in the 

Senior Credit Fund: 

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Subscribed to

fund Contributed

Subscribed to

fund Contributed

(in millions) (in millions)

Company $ 100.00 $ 94.34 $ 100.00 $ 94.34

Cal Regents 100.00 94.34 100.00 94.34

Total $ 200.00 $ 188.68 $ 200.00 $ 188.68

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Senior Credit Fund had total investments in senior secured debt at fair value of 

$448.80 million and $467.07 million, respectively. As of each of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Senior Credit Fund had 

no investments on non-accrual status. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Senior Credit Fund had an investment in a 

money market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc. with a total fair value of $6.56 million and $5.84 million, respectively. In 

addition, the Senior Credit Fund had nine portfolio companies with unfunded commitments totaling $17.98 million as of March 31, 

2018 and eight portfolio companies with unfunded commitments totaling $17.14 million as of December 31, 2017. 

Below is a summary of the Senior Credit Fund’s portfolio (excluding an investment in a money market fund managed by an 

affiliate of Group Inc.) followed by a listing of the individual loans in the Senior Credit Fund’s portfolio as of March 31, 2018 and 

December 31, 2017: 

As of

March 31,

2018

December 31,

2017

Number of portfolio companies 32 34

Total senior secured debt(1) $477.44 million $496.58 million

Largest loan to a single borrower(1) $ 28.98 million $ 29.04 million

Weighted average current interest rate on senior secured debt(2) 7.4% 7.3%

Percentage of performing debt bearing a floating rate(3) 100.0% 100.0%

Percentage of performing debt bearing a fixed rate(3) –% –%

Weighted average leverage (net debt/EBITDA)(4) 4.6x 4.5x

Weighted average interest coverage(4) 2.6x 2.7x

Median EBITDA(4) $ 45.73 million $ 45.53 million

(1) At par amount, including fully unfunded commitments. 

(2) Computed as (a) the annual stated interest rate on accruing senior secured debt divided by (b) total senior secured debt at par amount, excluding fully unfunded 

commitments. 

(3) Measured on a fair value basis. 



(4) For a particular portfolio company of the Senior Credit Fund, EBITDA typically represents net income before net interest expense, income tax expense, 

depreciation and amortization. The net debt to EBITDA represents the ratio of a portfolio company’s total debt (net of cash) and excluding debt subordinated to the 

Senior Credit Fund’s investment in a portfolio company, to a portfolio company’s EBITDA. The interest coverage ratio represents the ratio of a portfolio 

company’s EBITDA as a multiple of interest expense. Weighted average net debt to EBITDA is weighted based on the fair value of the Senior Credit Fund’s debt 

investments. Weighted average interest coverage is weighted based on the fair value of the Senior Credit Fund’s performing debt investments. Median EBITDA is 

based on the Senior Credit Fund’s debt investments. Portfolio company statistics are derived from the most recently available financial statements of each portfolio 

company of the Senior Credit Fund as of the respective reported end date. Statistics of the Senior Credit Fund’s portfolio companies have not been independently 

verified by us and may reflect a normalized or adjusted amount. 
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Senior Credit Fund Portfolio as of March 31, 2018 

Portfolio Company Industry

Interest

Rate (+)

Reference Rate

and Spread (++) Maturity

Par

Amount Cost

Fair

Value

(in millions)

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt

3SI Security Systems, Inc. Commercial Services & 

Supplies 7.87% L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor 06/16/2023 $ 14.92 $14.72 $14.78

A Place For Mom, Inc.(1) Diversified Consumer 

Services 5.88% L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor 08/10/2024 17.97 17.95 17.94

Ansira Partners, Inc. Media 8.80% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/20/2022 8.62 8.55 8.55

Ansira Partners, Inc.(2) Media 8.80% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/20/2022 1.27 0.69 0.69

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC(3) Distributors 9.28% L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/15/2021 8.06 8.00 7.94

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC(2) (3) (4) Distributors L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 12/15/2021 3.75 (0.04) (0.06) 

ATX Networks Corp.

Communications Equipment

9.31% (8.31%

Cash and 1.00% PIK)

L + 7.00% (Incl. 1.00% 

PIK); 1.00% Floor 06/11/2021 16.31 16.19 14.68

Badger Sportswear, Inc. Textiles, Apparel & Luxury 

Goods 6.80% L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor 09/11/2023 14.77 14.65 14.48

Barbri, Inc. Media 5.91% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 12/01/2023 14.00 13.93 13.96

CST Buyer Company Diversified Consumer 

Services 7.45% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 03/01/2023 19.61 19.15 19.22

CST Buyer Company(2) (4) Diversified Consumer 

Services L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 03/01/2023 1.80 (0.04) (0.04) 

DBRS Limited Capital Markets 7.23% L + 5.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/04/2022 11.64 11.57 11.71

DiscoverOrg, LLC(3) Software 6.38% L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor 08/25/2023 7.96 7.92 7.92

FWR Holding Corporation Hotels, Restaurants & 

Leisure 7.66% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 08/21/2023 9.08 8.87 8.88

FWR Holding Corporation(2) Hotels, Restaurants & 

Leisure 7.62% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 08/21/2023 2.94 1.08 1.08

FWR Holding Corporation(2) Hotels, Restaurants & 

Leisure 9.24% P + 5.00% 08/21/2023 1.17 0.50 0.50

GH Holding Company Real Estate Management & 

Development 6.48% L + 4.50% 02/28/2023 15.00 14.93 14.92

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 8.30% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 01/20/2021 17.41 17.35 15.41

HC Group Holdings III, Inc. Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.88% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 04/07/2022 8.77 8.75 8.87

Hygiena Borrower LLC Life Sciences Tools & 

Services 7.05% L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor 08/26/2022 15.84 15.71 15.52

Hygiena Borrower LLC(2) (4) Life Sciences Tools & 

Services L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor 08/26/2022 1.67 (0.02) (0.03) 

Jill Acquisition LLC Textiles, Apparel & Luxury 

Goods 6.78% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 05/08/2022 13.96 13.88 13.43

Lattice Semiconductor Corporation Semiconductors & 

Semiconductor Equipment 5.95% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/10/2021 10.71 10.59 10.80

Liquidnet Holdings, Inc. Capital Markets 5.63% L + 3.75%; 1.00% Floor 07/15/2024 9.63 9.54 9.65

Netsmart Technologies, Inc. Health Care Technology 6.38% L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor 04/19/2023 18.70 18.65 18.89

Output Services Group, Inc.(1) Diversified Consumer 

Services 6.56% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/27/2024 4.97 4.95 4.99

Output Services Group, Inc.(1) (2) Diversified Consumer 

Services L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 03/27/2024 1.03 – 0.00

Pathway Partners Vet Management 

Company, LLC(3)

Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.13% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 10/10/2024 6.95 6.91 6.95

Pathway Partners Vet Management 

Company, LLC(2) (3)

Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.13% L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor 10/10/2024 3.02 1.86 1.88
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Portfolio Company Industry

Interest

Rate (+)

Reference Rate and

Spread (++) Maturity

Par

Amount Cost

Fair

Value

Pomeroy Group LLC IT Services 7.88% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 11/30/2021 15.72 15.37 15.62

Professional Physical Therapy Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.70% L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/16/2022 10.37 10.28 9.36

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.59% L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor 12/04/2023 13.86 13.73 13.85

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC(2) Health Care Providers & 

Services 8.05% L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor 12/04/2023 6.11 2.00 2.06

RealD, Inc. Media 9.29% L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/22/2021 16.58 16.46 16.37

SciQuest, Inc. Internet Software & Services 5.88% L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/28/2024 20.00 19.90 20.00

SMS Systems Maintenance Services, Inc. IT Services 6.88% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 10/30/2023 14.81 14.75 13.58

Stackpath, LLC Internet Software & Services 6.79% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 02/03/2023 16.83 16.69 16.66

Tronair Parent Inc. Air Freight & Logistics 6.56% L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor 09/08/2023 13.79 13.68 13.51

U.S. Acute Care Solutions, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.30% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 05/14/2021 12.84 12.74 12.71

VRC Companies, LLC Commercial Services & 

Supplies 8.38% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/31/2023 26.85 26.41 26.59

VRC Companies, LLC(2) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 8.38% L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/31/2022 1.41 0.55 0.56

VRC Companies, LLC(2) (4) Commercial Services & 

Supplies L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor 03/31/2023 0.71 (0.01) (0.01) 

Total 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt 429.34 424.37

1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche

Infogix, Inc. Software 7.30% L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor 12/31/2021 9.53 9.47 9.51

Total 1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche 9.47 9.51

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt

DiscoverOrg, LLC(3) Software 10.39% L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor 02/23/2024 10.50 10.36 10.42

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 12.55% L + 10.25%; 1.00% Floor 01/20/2022 6.00 5.92 4.50

Total 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 16.28 14.92

Total Corporate Debt 455.09 448.80

(+) The terms in the Consolidated Schedule of Investments disclose the actual interest rate for partially or fully funded debt in effect as of the reporting date. For 

investments with multiple interest rate contracts, the interest rate shown is the weighted average interest rate in effect at March 31, 2018. 

(++) Variable rate loans bear interest at a rate that may be determined by reference to either LIBOR (“L”) or alternate base rate (commonly based on the Prime Rate 

(“P”)), at the borrower’s option. L loans are typically indexed to 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month or 1 week L rates. As of March 31, 2018, rates for 

the 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month and 1 week L are 2.66%, 2.45%, 2.31%, 2.00%, 1.88% and 1.75%, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, P was 

4.75%. 

(1) Position or portion thereof unsettled as of March 31, 2018. 

(2) Position or portion thereof is an unfunded loan commitment, and no interest is being earned on the unfunded portion. The unfunded loan commitment may be 

subject to a commitment termination date that may expire prior to the maturity date stated. 

(3) The Company also holds a portion of the 2nd lien/senior secured debt in this portfolio company. 

(4) The negative cost is the result of the capitalized discount being greater than the principal amount outstanding on the loan. The negative fair value is the result of the 

capitalized discount on the loan. 
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Senior Credit Fund Portfolio as of December 31, 2017 

Portfolio Company Industry Interest (+) Maturity

Par

Amount Cost

Fair

Value

(in millions)

1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt

3SI Security Systems, Inc. Commercial Services & 

Supplies 7.87% (L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor) 06/16/2023 $ 14.96 $14.75 $14.74

A Place For Mom, Inc. Diversified Consumer Services 5.69% (L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/10/2024 3.99 3.97 3.99

Ansira Partners, Inc. Media 8.19% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/20/2022 8.64 8.56 8.57

Ansira Partners, Inc.(1) Media 8.19% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/20/2022 1.27 0.69 0.69

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC (2) Distributors 8.89% (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/15/2021 10.69 10.60 10.47

ASC Acquisition Holdings, LLC(1)(2)(3) Distributors (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/15/2021 3.75 (0.04) (0.08) 

ATX Networks Corp.

Communications Equipment

8.69% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor)

(7.69% Cash and 1.00% PIK) 06/11/2021 16.42 16.30 16.18

Badger Sportswear, Inc. Textiles, Apparel & Luxury 

Goods 6.07% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 09/11/2023 14.81 14.69 14.54

Barbri, Inc. Media 5.73% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 12/01/2023 14.00 13.93 13.97

Crowne Group, LLC Auto Components 10.73% (L + 9.25%; 1.00% Floor) 05/26/2021 16.36 16.24 16.53

CST Buyer Company Diversified Consumer Services 7.75% (L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/01/2023 19.66 19.18 19.27

CST Buyer Company(1)(3) Diversified Consumer Services (L + 6.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/01/2023 1.80 (0.04) (0.04) 

DBRS Limited Capital Markets 6.73% (L + 5.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/04/2022 11.67 11.59 11.67

DiscoverOrg, LLC(2) Software 6.07% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 08/25/2023 7.98 7.94 7.90

FWR Holding Corporation Hotels, Restaurants & Leisure 7.66% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/21/2023 9.08 8.86 8.85

FWR Holding Corporation(1) Hotels, Restaurants & Leisure 7.57% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/21/2023 1.18 0.12 0.12

FWR Holding Corporation(1) Hotels, Restaurants & Leisure 7.60% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 08/21/2023 2.93 0.40 0.40

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 7.69% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 01/20/2021 17.46 17.39 13.63

HC Group Holdings III, Inc. Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.57% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 04/07/2022 8.80 8.77 8.87

Help/Systems, LLC Software 6.19% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 10/08/2021 17.72 17.30 17.77

Hygiena Borrower LLC Life Sciences Tools & Services 6.44% (L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor) 08/26/2022 15.88 15.74 15.56

Hygiena Borrower LLC(1)(3) Life Sciences Tools & Services (L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor) 08/26/2022 1.67 (0.02) (0.03) 

Jill Acquisition LLC Textiles, Apparel & Luxury 

Goods 6.38% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 05/08/2022 14.00 13.91 13.18

Lattice Semiconductor Corporation Semiconductors & 

Semiconductor Equipment 5.65% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 03/10/2021 10.75 10.61 10.85

Liquidnet Holdings, Inc. Capital Markets 5.82% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 07/15/2024 9.75 9.66 9.77

MB Aerospace Holdings Inc. Aerospace & Defense 7.13% (L + 5.50%; 1.00% Floor) 12/15/2022 15.69 15.57 15.65

Netsmart Technologies, Inc. Health Care Technology 6.19% (L + 4.50%; 1.00% Floor) 04/19/2023 18.75 18.70 18.94

Pathway Partners Vet Management Company, LLC(2) Health Care Providers & 

Services 5.82% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 10/10/2024 6.96 6.93 6.96

Pathway Partners Vet Management Company, LLC(1)(2) Health Care Providers & 

Services 5.82% (L + 4.25%; 1.00% Floor) 10/10/2024 3.02 0.28 0.29

Pomeroy Group LLC IT Services 7.51% (L + 6.00%; 1.00% Floor) 11/30/2021 15.76 15.39 15.40

Professional Physical Therapy Health Care Providers & 

Services 9.50% (P + 5.00%) 12/16/2022 10.40 10.31 10.19

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.59% (L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor) 12/04/2023 7.71 7.63 7.71

Radiology Partners Holdings, LLC (1) Health Care Providers & 

Services 7.59% (L + 5.75%; 1.00% Floor) 12/04/2023 2.29 1.39 1.41

RealD, Inc. Media 8.98% (L + 7.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/22/2021 16.64 16.52 16.43

SciQuest, Inc.(4) Internet Software & Services 5.56% (L + 4.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/28/2024 20.00 19.90 19.90

Smarte Carte, Inc. Air Freight & Logistics 7.20% (L + 5.50%; 1.00% Floor) 08/30/2021 10.56 10.48 10.48

SMS Systems Maintenance Services, Inc. IT Services 6.57% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 10/30/2023 14.85 14.78 12.47

Stackpath, LLC Internet Software & Services 6.38% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 02/03/2023 16.91 16.77 16.75

Tronair Parent Inc. Air Freight & Logistics 6.16% (L + 4.75%; 1.00% Floor) 09/08/2023 13.82 13.71 13.65

U.S. Acute Care Solutions, LLC Health Care Providers & 

Services 6.69% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 05/14/2021 12.87 12.76 12.74
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Senior Credit Fund Portfolio as of December 31, 2017 

Portfolio Company Industry Interest (+) Maturity

Par

Amount Cost

Fair

Value

VRC Companies, LLC Commercial Services & 

Supplies 8.12% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/31/2023 19.91 19.50 19.66

VRC Companies, LLC Commercial Services & 

Supplies 7.85% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/31/2023 3.52 3.45 3.48

VRC Companies, LLC (1) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 7.97% (L + 6.50%; 1.00% Floor) 03/31/2023 4.20 2.18 2.18

VRC Companies, LLC (1) Commercial Services & 

Supplies 10.00% (P + 5.50%) 03/31/2022 1.41 1.10 1.11

Total 1st Lien/Senior Secured Debt 448.45 442.77

1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche

Infogix, Inc. Software 6.69% (L + 5.00%; 1.00% Floor) 12/31/2021 9.59 9.52 9.57

Total 1st Lien/First-Out Unitranche 9.52 9.57

2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt

DiscoverOrg, LLC (2) Software 10.07% (L + 8.50%; 1.00% Floor) 02/23/2024 10.50 10.35 10.39

GK Holdings, Inc. IT Services 11.94% (L + 10.25%; 1.00% Floor) 01/20/2022 6.00 5.92 4.34

Total 2nd Lien/Senior Secured Debt 16.27 14.73

Total Corporate Debt $474.24 $467.07

(+) Variable rate loans bear interest at a rate that may be determined by reference to either LIBOR (“L”) or alternate base rate (commonly based on the Prime Rate 

(“P”)), at the borrower’s option. L loans are typically indexed to 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month or 1 week L rates. The terms in the Schedule of 

Investments disclose the actual interest rate in effect as of the reporting date. For investments with multiple interest rate contracts, the interest rate shown is the 

weighted average interest rate in effect at December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, rates for the 12 month, 6 month, 3 month, 2 month, 1 month and 1 week 

LIBOR were 2.11%, 1.84%, 1.69%, 1.62%, 1.56% and 1.48%, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, P was 4.50%. 

(1) Position or portion thereof is an unfunded loan commitment, and no interest is being earned on the unfunded portion. The unfunded loan commitment may be 

subject to a commitment termination date that may expire prior to the maturity date stated. 

(2) We also hold a portion of the 2nd lien/senior secured debt in this portfolio company. 

(3) The negative cost is the result of the capitalized discount being greater than the principal amount outstanding on the loan. The negative fair value is the result of the 

capitalized discount on the loan. 

(4) Position or portion thereof unsettled as of December 31, 2017. 

(5) The rate shown is the annualized seven-day yield as of December 31, 2017. 
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Below is certain summarized balance sheet information for the Senior Credit Fund as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017: 

As of

March 31,

2018

December 31,

2017

(in millions)

Selected Balance Sheet Information

Total investments, at fair value $ 455.36 $ 472.91

Cash and other assets 39.07 31.83

Total assets $ 494.43 $ 504.74

Debt(1) $ 280.59 $ 291.52

Other liabilities 27.64 29.03

Total liabilities $ 308.23 $ 320.55

Members’ equity $ 186.20 $ 184.19

Total liabilities and members’ equity $ 494.43 $ 504.74

(1) Net of deferred financing costs for the SPV I Term Loan Facility (as defined below) as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, which were in the amount of 

$2.41 million and $2.49 million, respectively. 

Below is certain summarized Statement of Operations information for the Senior Credit Fund for the three months ended 

March 31, 2018 and 2017: 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

Selected Statement of Operations Information

Total investment income $ 10.33 $ 8.43

Expenses

Interest and other debt expenses 3.38 3.10

Professional fees 0.11 0.18

Administration and custodian fees 0.10 0.10

Other expenses 0.02 0.03

Total expenses 3.61 3.41

Net investment income (loss) 6.72 5.02

Net realized gain (loss) on investments – 0.08

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments 0.88 0.66

Net increase (decrease) in members’ equity $ 7.60 $ 5.76

Debt 

On December 19, 2016, SPV I entered into an amended and restated credit facility (as amended, the “Asset Based Facility”), 

which consists of a revolving credit facility (the “SPV I Revolving Credit Facility”), a term loan facility (the “SPV I Term Loan 

Facility”) and a Class B loan facility (the “SPV I Class B Facility”), with various lenders. For the Asset Based Facility, Natixis, New 

York Branch (“Natixis”) serves as the facility agent, and State Street Bank and Trust Company serves as the collateral agent. The Asset 

Based Facility includes a maximum borrowing capacity of $400.00 million. The SPV I Revolving Credit Facility provided for 

borrowings in an aggregate amount up to $120.00 million on a committed basis as of March 31, 2018. Borrowings under the SPV I 

Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.30%. As of March 31, 2018, the SPV I Term Loan Facility consisted of a 

$240.00 million fully drawn term loan and the SPV I Class B Facility consisted of a $40.00 million fully drawn Class B loan. 

Borrowings under the SPV I Term Loan Facility and SPV I Class B Facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.30% and LIBOR plus 3.50%, 

respectively. Any amounts borrowed under the Asset Based Facility will mature, and all accrued and unpaid interest will be due and 

payable, on December 19, 2025. 
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As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the SPV I’s outstanding borrowings under the Asset Based Facility were 

$283.00 million and $294.00 million, respectively. The summary information of the Asset Based Facility for the three months ended 

March 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

For the Three Months Ended

March 31,

2018

March 31,

2017

(in millions)

Borrowing interest expense $ 2.93 $ 2.74

Facility fees 0.26 0.17

Amortization of financing costs 0.19 0.19

Total $ 3.38 $ 3.10

Weighted average interest rate 4.16% 3.40% 

Average outstanding balance $ 285.08 $ 322.00

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The primary use of existing funds and any funds raised in the future is expected to be for our investments in portfolio companies, 

cash distributions to our stockholders or for other general corporate purposes, including paying for operating expenses or debt service to 

the extent we borrow or issue senior securities. 

We expect to generate cash primarily from the net proceeds of any future offerings of securities, future borrowings and cash flows 

from operations. To the extent we determine that additional capital would allow us to take advantage of additional investment 

opportunities, if the market for debt financing presents attractively priced debt financing opportunities, or if our Board of Directors 

otherwise determines that leveraging our portfolio would be in our best interest and the best interests of our stockholders, we may enter 

into credit facilities in addition to our existing credit facilities as discussed below, or issue other senior securities. We would expect any 

such credit facilities may be secured by certain of our assets and may contain advance rates based upon pledged collateral. The pricing 

and other terms of any such facilities would depend upon market conditions when we enter into any such facilities as well as the 

performance of our business, among other factors. As a BDC, with certain limited exceptions, we are only permitted to borrow amounts 

such that our asset coverage ratio, as defined in the Investment Company Act, is at least 200% after such borrowing (or 150% if certain 

requirements are met). See “—Key Components of Operations—Leverage.” As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our asset 

coverage ratio based on aggregate borrowings outstanding was 237% and 233%, respectively. We may also refinance or repay any of 

our indebtedness at any time based on our financial condition and market conditions. 

As of March 31, 2018, we had cash of approximately $6.93 million, a decrease of $4.68 million from December 31, 2017. Cash 

provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2018 was approximately $31.01 million, primarily driven by an 

increase in net assets resulting from operations of $18.45 million, proceeds from sales and principal repayments of $78.71 million and 

net proceeds from investment in affiliated money market of $11.54 million, offset by purchases of investments of $72.78 million and 

cash used for other operating activities of $4.91 million. Cash used for financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2018 

was approximately $35.69 million, primarily driven by repayments on debt of $74.75 million, distributions paid of $17.56 million and 

other financing activities of $1.88 million, offset by borrowings on debt of $58.50 million. 

As of March 31, 2017, we had cash of approximately $8.93 million, an increase of $4.37 million from December 31, 2016. Cash 

provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was approximately $17.86 million, primarily driven by an 

increase in net assets resulting from operations of $14.56 million, proceeds from sales and principal repayments of $110.30 million and 

proceeds from other operating activities of $0.46 million, partially offset by purchases of investments of $107.46 million. Cash used by 

financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was approximately $13.50 million, primarily driven by repayments on 

debt of $95.00 million, distributions paid of $16.10 million, and other financing activities of $0.65 million, partially offset by proceeds 

from the borrowings on debt of $98.25 million. 
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To the extent permissible under the risk retention rules and applicable provisions of the 1940 Act, we may raise capital by 

securitizing certain of our investments, including through the formation of one or more CLOs or asset based facilities, while retaining 

all or most of the exposure to the performance of these investments. This would involve contributing a pool of assets to a special 

purpose entity, and selling debt interests in such entity on a non-recourse or limited-recourse basis to purchasers. We may also pursue 

other forms of debt financing, including potentially from the Small Business Administration through a future small business investment 

company subsidiary (subject to regulatory approvals). 

Equity Issuances 

There were no sales of our common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017. 

Common Stock Repurchase Plan 

In February 2016, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to $25.00 million of our common stock if the stock trades 

below the most recently announced NAV per share (including any updates, corrections or adjustments publicly announced by us to any 

previously announced NAV per share), from March 18, 2016 to March 18, 2017, subject to certain limitations. In February 2017, our 

Board of Directors renewed its authorization of the stock repurchase plan to extend the expiration to March 18, 2018 and, in February 

2018, again renewed its authorization of the stock repurchase plan to extend the expiration to March 18, 2019. 

In connection with this authorization, we entered into a 10b5-1 plan (the “Company 10b5-1 Plan”). The Company 10b5-1 Plan 

provides that purchases will be conducted on the open market on a programmatic basis in accordance with Rules 10b5-1 and 10b-18 

under the Exchange Act and will otherwise be subject to applicable law, including Regulation M, which may prohibit purchases under 

certain circumstances. No purchases will be effected pursuant to the Company 10b5-1 Plan if such purchase would (i) cause the 

aggregate ownership of our outstanding stock by Group Inc. and GS & Co. to equal or exceed 25.0% (due to the reduction in 

outstanding shares of stock as a result of purchase) or (ii) cause our debt/equity ratio to exceed 0.75. The Company 10b5-1 Plan initially 

took effect on March 18, 2016 (with any purchases to commence after the opening of NYSE trading on March 21, 2016), was 

subsequently renewed and expired on March 18, 2018. As noted above, our Board of Directors approved the renewal of the Company 

10b5-1 Plan. Once we enter into the agreement for the Company 10b5-1 Plan, we expect the Company 10b5-1 Plan will be in effect 

through March 18, 2019. Further, no purchases will be effected during the applicable restricted period under Regulation M as a result of 

an offering of securities by us or for a period of 60 days after the expiration of any overallotment option included in any common equity 

offering. 

Repurchases of our common stock under the Company 10b5-1 Plan or otherwise may result in the price of our common stock 

being higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 we did 

not repurchase any of our common stock pursuant to the Company 10b5-1 Plan or otherwise. 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

Concurrent with the IPO, we adopted a dividend reinvestment plan that provides for reinvestment of all cash distributions declared 

by the Board of Directors unless a stockholder elects to “opt out” of the plan. As a result, if the Board of Directors declares a cash 

distribution, then the stockholders who have not “opted out” of the dividend reinvestment plan will have their cash distributions 

automatically reinvested in additional shares of common stock, rather than receiving the cash distribution. Due to regulatory 

considerations, Group Inc. has opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan, and GS & Co. has opted out of the dividend reinvestment 

plan in respect of any shares of our common stock acquired through the GS 10b5-1 Plan. 

The following table summarizes shares distributed pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan during the three months ended 

March 31, 2018 to stockholders who had not opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan. 

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Shares

October 31, 2017 December 29, 2017 January 16, 2018 23,824

The following table summarizes shares distributed pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan during the three months ended 

March 31, 2017 to stockholders who had not opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan. 

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Shares

November 1, 2016 December 31, 2016 January 17, 2017 11,124

Contractual Obligations 

We have entered into certain contracts under which we have future commitments. Payments under the Investment Management 

Agreement, pursuant to which GSAM has agreed to serve as our Investment Adviser, are equal to (1) a percentage of value of our 

average gross assets and (2) a two-part Incentive Fee. Under the Administration Agreement, pursuant to which State Street Bank and 



Trust Company has agreed to furnish us with the administrative services necessary to conduct our day-to-day operations, we pay our 

administrator such fees as may be agreed between us and our administrator that we determine are commercially reasonable in our sole 

discretion. Either party or the stockholders, by a vote of a majority of our outstanding voting securities, may terminate the Investment 

Management Agreement without penalty on at least 60 days’ written notice to the other party. Either party may terminate the 

Administration Agreement without penalty upon at least 30 days’ written notice to the other party. 
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The following table shows our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2018: 

Payments Due by Period (in millions)

Total

Less Than

1 Year 1 – 3 Years 3 – 5 Years

More Than

5 Years

Revolving Credit Facility $415.00 $ – $ – $ 415.00 $ –

Convertible Notes $115.00 $ – $ – $ 115.00 $ –

Revolving Credit Facility 

On September 19, 2013, we entered into the Revolving Credit Facility with various lenders. SunTrust Bank serves as 

administrative agent and Bank of America N.A. serves as syndication agent. 

On October 3, 2014, we amended and restated the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: increase the aggregate 

borrowing amount on a committed basis, increase the total borrowing capacity, extend the maturity date, and reduce the applicable 

margin of borrowings. 

On January 16, 2015, we exercised the right under the accordion feature and increased the size of the Revolving Credit Facility to 

$535.00 million, on a committed basis. 

On March 27, 2015, we exercised the right under the accordion feature and increased the size of the Revolving Credit Facility to 

$560.00 million, on a committed basis. 

On November 3, 2015, we amended the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: 

• increase the aggregate borrowing amount to $570.00 million on a committed basis; 

• increase the total borrowing capacity to a maximum of $1,000.00 million; 

• extend the final maturity date to November 4, 2020; and 

• reduce the applicable margin of borrowings with respect to (i) any loan bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to 

the alternate base rate from 1.25% to 0.75% or 1.00%, subject to borrowing base conditions and (ii) any loan bearing interest 

at a rate determined by reference to the adjusted LIBOR rate from 2.25% to 1.75% or 2.00%, subject to borrowing base 

conditions. 

On December 16, 2016, we further amended the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: 

• increase aggregate borrowing amount to $605.00 million on a committed basis; and 

• extend the final maturity date to December 16, 2021. 

On November 14, 2017, we exercised the right under the accordion feature and increased the size of the Revolving Credit Facility 

to $620.00 million, on a committed basis. 

On February 21, 2018, we further amended the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things: 

• increase aggregate borrowing amount to $695.00 million on a committed basis; 

• extend the final maturity date to February 21, 2023; and 

• revise the financial covenants to require that we maintain a minimum stockholder’s equity of $500.00 million plus 25% of 

the net proceeds from any sale of our equity securities. 

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility, including amounts drawn in respect of letters of credit, bear interest (at the 

Company’s election) of either LIBOR plus an applicable margin or applicable margin plus the higher of the Prime Rate, Federal Funds 

Rate plus 0.5% or overnight LIBOR plus 1.0%. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears. We pay a fee of 0.375% per annum on 

committed but undrawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility, payable quarterly in arrears. Any amounts borrowed under the 

Revolving Credit Facility will mature, and all accrued and unpaid interest will be due and payable, on February 21, 2023. 

The Revolving Credit Facility may be guaranteed by certain of our domestic subsidiaries that are formed or acquired by us in the 

future (collectively, the “Guarantors”). The Senior Credit Fund is not a Guarantor of the Revolving Credit Facility. Proceeds from 

borrowings may be used for general corporate purposes, including the funding of portfolio investments. 
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Our obligations to the lenders under the Revolving Credit Facility are secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all 

of our portfolio of investments and cash, with certain exceptions. The Revolving Credit Facility contains certain customary covenants, 

including: (i) maintaining a minimum shareholder’s equity of $500 million, subject to increase from certain equity sales, 

(ii) maintaining an asset coverage ratio of at least 2 to 1, (iii) maintaining a minimum liquidity test of at least 10% of the “covered debt 

amount” during any period when the “adjusted covered debt balance” is greater than 90% of the “adjusted borrowing base,” as such 

quoted terms are defined in the Revolving Credit Facility and (iv) restrictions on industry concentrations in our investment portfolio. 

We are in compliance with these covenants. 

The Revolving Credit Facility also includes customary representations and warranties, conditions precedent to funding of draws 

and events of default. 

Convertible Notes 

On October 3, 2016, we closed an offering of $115.00 million aggregate principal amount of unsecured Convertible Notes, which 

included $15.00 million aggregate principal amount issued pursuant to the initial purchasers’ exercise in full of an over-allotment 

option. The Convertible Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture between us and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 

Trustee. Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and/or its affiliates provide bank lending and distribution services to certain Goldman 

Sachs funds. The Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 4.50% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 

of each year, commencing on April 1, 2017. The Convertible Notes will mature on April 1, 2022, unless repurchased or converted in 

accordance with their terms prior to such date. In certain circumstances, the Convertible Notes will be convertible into cash, shares of 

our common stock or a combination of cash and shares of our common stock, based on an initial conversion rate of 40.8397 shares of 

our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of Convertible Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of 

approximately $24.49 per share of common stock, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments and the other terms of the indenture 

governing the Convertible Notes. The conversion price is approximately 10.0% above the $22.26 per share closing price of our common 

stock on September 27, 2016. We will not have the right to redeem the Convertible Notes prior to maturity. The sale of the Convertible 

Notes generated net proceeds of approximately $110.90 million. We used the net proceeds of the offering to pay down debt under the 

Revolving Credit Facility. 

Holders may convert their notes at their option at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately 

preceding October 1, 2021 only under the following circumstances: (1) during any calendar quarter commencing after December 31, 

2016, if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30 

consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% 

of the conversion price on each applicable trading day; (2) during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day 

period (the “measurement period”) in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of notes for each trading day of the 

measurement period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate on 

each such trading day; or (3) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events. On or after October 1, 2021, until the close of business 

on the scheduled trading day immediately preceding the maturity date, holders may convert their notes at any time, regardless of the 

occurrence or nonoccurrence of any of the foregoing circumstances. 

The Convertible Notes are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 470-20, Debt with 

Conversion and Other Options. Upon conversion of any of the Convertible Notes, we intend to pay the outstanding principal amount in 

cash and, to the extent that the conversion value exceeds the principal amount, we have the option to pay the excess amount in cash or 

shares of our common stock (or a combination of cash and shares), subject to the requirements of the indenture governing the 

Convertible Notes. We have determined that the embedded conversion options in the Convertible Notes are not required to be 

separately accounted for as derivatives under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. At the time of issuance the values of the debt and 

equity components of the Convertible Notes were approximately 99.4% and 0.6%, respectively. 

The OID equal to the equity component of the Convertible Notes was recorded in “paid-in capital in excess of par” in the 

accompanying Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities. We record interest expense comprised of both stated interest and 

amortization of the OID. At the time of issuance, the equity component of the Convertible Notes was $0.74 million. Additionally, the 

issuance costs associated with the Convertible Notes were allocated to the debt and equity components in proportion to the allocation of 

the values at the time of issuance and accounted for as debt issuance costs and equity issuance costs, respectively. 

HEDGING 

Subject to applicable provisions of the Investment Company Act and applicable Commodity Futures Trading Commission 

(“CFTC”) regulations, we may enter into hedging transactions in a manner consistent with SEC guidance. To the extent that any of our 

loans are denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars, we may enter into currency hedging contracts to reduce our exposure to 

fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We may also enter into interest rate hedging agreements. Such hedging activities, which will be 

subject to compliance with applicable legal requirements, may include the use of futures, options, swaps and forward contracts. Costs 



incurred in entering into such contracts or in settling them, if any, will be borne by us. The Investment Adviser has claimed no-action 

relief from CFTC registration and regulation as a commodity pool operator pursuant to a CFTC staff no-action letter (the “BDC CFTC 

No-Action Letter”) with respect to our operations, with the result that we will be limited in our ability to use futures contracts or options 

on futures contracts or engage in swap transactions. Specifically, the BDC CFTC No-Action Letter imposes strict limitations on using 

such derivatives other than for hedging purposes, whereby the use of derivatives not used solely for hedging purposes is generally 

limited to situations where (i) the aggregate initial margin and premiums required to establish such positions does not exceed five 

percent of the liquidation value of our portfolio, after taking into account unrealized profits and unrealized losses on any such contracts 

it has entered into; or (ii) the aggregate net notional value of such derivatives does not exceed 100% of the liquidation value of our 

portfolio. Moreover, we anticipate entering into transactions involving such derivatives to a very limited extent solely for hedging 

purposes or otherwise within the limitations of the BDC CFTC No-Action Letter. As of March 31, 2018, no hedging arrangements were 

used. 
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

We may become a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of our business to fund 

investments and to meet the financial needs of our portfolio companies. These instruments may include commitments to extend credit 

and involve, to varying degrees, elements of liquidity and credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. As of 

March 31, 2018, we believed that we had adequate financial resources to satisfy our unfunded commitments. As of March 31, 2018 and 

December 31, 2017, our unfunded commitments to provide funds to portfolio companies were as follows: 

As of

March 31,

2018

December 31,

2017

(in millions)

Unfunded Commitments

First Lien/Senior Secured Debt $ 18.82 $ 18.82

First Lien/Last-Out Unitranche 1.50 1.50

Second Lien/Senior Secured Debt 4.37 9.91

Total $ 24.69 $ 30.23

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 

On May 1, 2018, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly distribution of $0.45 per share payable on July 16, 2018 to holders of 

record as of June 29, 2018. 

On May 1, 2018, the Board of Directors elected Susan B. McGee as a director of the Company effective June 1, 2018. Ms. McGee 

has also been appointed to serve on the Company’s audit committee, governance and nominating committee, compensation committee, 

compliance committee and contract review committee. As previously disclosed, in connection with Ms. McGee’s election, Janet Clark 

resigned from the Board of Directors effective at the conclusion of the meeting held on May 1, 2018. 

Historically, as a BDC, with certain limited exceptions, we are only permitted to borrow amounts such that our asset coverage 

ratio, as defined in the Investment Company Act, equals at least 200% after such borrowing. The recently passed Small Business Credit 

Availability Act modified Section 61(a) of the Investment Company Act to reduce the required asset coverage ratio applicable to BDCs 

to 150%, subject to certain approval and disclosure requirements. Under the legislation, BDCs are able to increase their leverage 

capacity if stockholders approve a proposal to do so. If a BDC receives stockholder approval, it would be allowed to increase its 

leverage capacity on the first day after such approval. Alternatively, the legislation allows the majority of the directors who are not 

“interested persons,” as defined in the Investment Company Act, of the BDC to approve an increase in its leverage capacity, and such 

approval would become effective after one year. On May 1, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the submission of a 

proposal to stockholders to approve the application of the modified asset coverage requirements set forth in Section 61(a)(2) of the 1940 

Act at the Company’s 2018 annual meeting of stockholders to be held on June 15, 2018. If the proposal is approved, beginning 

immediately upon receipt of stockholder approval, (a) the Company will be required to maintain asset coverage for its senior securities 

of 150% rather than 200% and (b) the Company and GSAM will reduce the Management Fee from 1.50% (0.375% per quarter) on 

gross assets to 1.00% (0.25% per quarter) on gross assets (in each case, excluding cash and cash equivalents, but including assets 

purchased with borrowed amounts). Considerations and risks related to increased leverage include: (a) the potential for magnified gains 

and losses on amounts invested, (b) increased debt service, (c) the potential for increased Incentive Fees for GSAM and (d) fewer 

proceeds remaining for distributions for stockholders in the case of a liquidation event. In addition, the Company may not be able to 

amend, or amend on favorable terms, its Revolving Credit Facility, even if the proposal is approved by stockholders. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial 

statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

(“GAAP”). The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Changes in the economic environment, financial markets and 

any other parameters used in determining such estimates could cause actual results to differ materially. In addition to the discussion 

below, our critical accounting policies are further described in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Valuation of Portfolio Investments 

As a BDC, we conduct the valuation of our assets, pursuant to which our NAV is determined, consistent with GAAP and the 

Investment Company Act. Our Board of Directors, with the assistance of our Audit Committee, determines the fair value of our assets 

within the meaning of the Investment Company Act, on at least a quarterly basis, in accordance with the terms of Financial Accounting 

Standards Board ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures (“ASC 820”). 



ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific 

measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets 

and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value 

measurement in both cases is the same—to estimate the price when an orderly transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability would 

take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (that is, an exit price at the 

measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability). 

ASC 820 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework which ranks the observability of inputs used in measuring financial 

instruments at fair value. The observability of inputs is impacted by a number of factors, including the type of financial instruments and 

their specific characteristics. Financial instruments with readily available quoted prices, or for which fair value can be measured from 

quoted prices in active markets, generally will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment 

applied in determining fair value. The levels used for classifying investments are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated 

with investing in these securities. 
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The three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement is defined as follows: 

Level 1 – inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active markets for identical instruments as of the 

reporting date. The types of financial instruments included in Level 1 include unrestricted securities, including equities and derivatives, 

listed in active markets. 

Level 2 – inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly 

observable as of the reporting date. The type of financial instruments in this category includes less liquid and restricted securities listed 

in active markets, securities traded in other than active markets, government and agency securities, and certain over-the-counter 

derivatives where the fair value is based on observable inputs. 

Level 3 – inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to overall fair value measurement. The inputs into 

the determination of fair value require significant management judgment or estimation. Financial instruments that are included in this 

category include investments in privately held entities and certain over-the-counter derivatives where the fair value is based on 

unobservable inputs. 

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the 

determination of which category within the fair value hierarchy is appropriate for any given financial instrument is based on the lowest 

level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value 

measurement requires judgment and considers factors specific to the financial instrument. 

Currently, the majority of our investments fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. We do not expect that there will be 

readily available market values for most of the investments which are in our portfolio, and we value such investments at fair value as 

determined in good faith by or under the direction of our Board of Directors using a documented valuation policy, described below, and 

a consistently applied valuation process. The factors that may be taken into account in pricing our investments at fair value include, as 

relevant, the nature and realizable value of any collateral, the portfolio company’s ability to make payments and its earnings and 

discounted cash flow, and the markets in which the portfolio company does business, comparison to publicly traded securities and other 

relevant factors. Available current market data are considered such as applicable market yields and multiples of publicly traded 

securities, comparison of financial ratios of peer companies, and changes in the interest rate environment and the credit markets that 

may affect the price at which similar investments would trade in their principal market, and other relevant factors. When an external 

event such as a purchase transaction, public offering or subsequent equity sale occurs, we consider the pricing indicated by the external 

event to corroborate or revise our valuation. 
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With respect to investments for which market quotations are not readily available, or for which market quotations are deemed not 

reflective of the fair value, the valuation procedures adopted by our Board of Directors contemplates a multi-step valuation process each 

quarter, as described below: 

(1) Our quarterly valuation process begins with each portfolio company or investment being initially valued by the investment 

professionals of our Investment Adviser responsible for the portfolio investment; 

(2) Our Board of Directors also engages independent valuation firms (the “Independent Valuation Advisors”) to provide 

independent valuations of the investments for which market quotations are not readily available, or are readily available 

but deemed not reflective of the fair value of an investment. The Independent Valuation Advisors independently value 

such investments using quantitative and qualitative information provided by the investment professionals of the 

Investment Adviser as well as any market quotations obtained from independent pricing services, brokers, dealers or 

market dealers. The Independent Valuation Advisors also provide analyses to support their valuation methodology and 

calculations. The Independent Valuation Advisors provide an opinion on a final range of values on such investments to 

our Board of Directors or the Audit Committee. The Independent Valuation Advisors define fair value in accordance with 

ASC 820 and utilize valuation approaches including the market approach, the income approach or both. A portion of the 

portfolio is reviewed on a quarterly basis, and all investments in the portfolio for which market quotations are not readily 

available, or are readily available, but deemed not reflective of the fair value of an investment, are reviewed at least 

annually by an Independent Valuation Advisor; 

(3) The Independent Valuation Advisors’ preliminary valuations are reviewed by our Investment Adviser and the Valuation 

Oversight Group (“VOG”), a team that is part of the Controllers Department within the Finance Division of Goldman 

Sachs. The Independent Valuation Advisors’ ranges are compared to our Investment Adviser’s valuations to ensure our 

Investment Adviser’s valuations are reasonable. VOG presents the valuations to the Private Investment Valuation and 

Side Pocket Sub-Committee of the Investment Management Division Valuation Committee, which is comprised of 

representatives from GSAM who are independent of the investment making decision process; 

(4) The Investment Management Division Valuation Committee ratifies fair valuations and makes recommendations to the 

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors; 

(5) The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors reviews valuation information provided by the Investment Management 

Division Valuation Committee, our Investment Adviser and the Independent Valuation Advisors. The Audit Committee 

then assesses such valuation recommendations; and 

(6) Our Board of Directors discusses the valuations and, within the meaning of the Investment Company Act, determines the 

fair value of our investments in good faith, based on the input of our Investment Adviser, the Independent Valuation 

Advisors and the Audit Committee. 

Investment Transactions and Related Investment Income 

We record our investment transactions on a trade date basis. Realized gains and losses are based on the specific identification 

method. Dividend income on common equity investments is recorded on the record date for private portfolio companies or on the 

ex-dividend date for publicly traded portfolio companies. Interest income and dividend income are presented net of withholding tax, if 

any. Accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums, which are included in interest income and expense, are recorded over the life 

of the underlying instrument using the effective interest method. 

Fair value generally is based on quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative price sources. In the absence of 

quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative price sources, investments in securities are measured at fair value as 

determined by our Investment Adviser and/or by one or more independent third parties. 

Due to the inherent uncertainties of valuation, certain estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would 

have been realized had a ready market for these investments existed, and these differences could be material. For additional 

information, see Note 2 “Significant Accounting Policies” to our consolidated financial statements included in this report. 
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Non-Accrual Status 

Loans or debt securities are placed on non-accrual status when it is probable that principal or interest will not be collected 

according to the contractual terms. Accrued interest generally is reversed when a loan or debt security is placed on non-accrual status. 

Interest payments received on non-accrual loans or debt securities may be recognized as income or applied to principal depending upon 

management’s judgment. Non-accrual loans and debt securities are restored to accrual status when past due principal and interest is paid 

and, in management’s judgment, principal and interest payments are likely to remain current. We may make exceptions to this treatment 

if the loan has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of collection. As of March 31, 2018, we had one investment on 

non-accrual status, which represented 0.1% and 0.0% of the total investments (excluding an investment in a money market fund 

managed by an affiliate of Group Inc. of $0.00 million) at amortized cost and at fair value, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, we 

had one investment on non-accrual status, which represented 0.1% and 0.0% of the total investments (excluding an investment in a 

money market fund managed by an affiliate of Group Inc. of $11.54 million) at amortized cost and at fair value, respectively. 

Distribution Policy 

We intend to pay quarterly distributions to our stockholders out of assets legally available for distribution. Future quarterly 

distributions, if any, will be determined by our Board of Directors. All distributions will be subject to lawfully available funds therefor, 

and no assurance can be given that we will be able to declare distributions in future periods. 

We have elected to be treated, and expect to qualify annually, as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code, commencing with our 

taxable year ended December 31, 2013. To obtain and maintain RIC status, we must, among other things, timely distribute to our 

stockholders at least 90% of our investment company taxable income for each taxable year. We intend to timely distribute to our 

stockholders substantially all of our annual taxable income for each year, except that we may retain certain net capital gains for 

reinvestment and, depending upon the level of taxable income earned in a year, we may choose to carry forward taxable income for 

distribution in the following year and pay any applicable U.S. federal excise tax. The distributions we pay to our stockholders in a year 

may exceed our net ordinary income and capital gains for that year and, accordingly, a portion of such distributions may constitute a 

return of capital for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The specific tax characteristics of our distributions will be reported to 

stockholders after the end of the calendar year. Stockholders should read carefully any written disclosure regarding a distribution from 

us and should not assume that the source of any distribution is our net ordinary income or capital gains. 

We have adopted an “opt out” dividend reinvestment plan for our common stockholders. As a result, if our Board of Directors 

declares a cash distribution, each stockholder that has not “opted out” of our dividend reinvestment plan will have its distribution 

automatically reinvested in additional shares of our common stock rather than receiving the cash distribution. Stockholders who receive 

distributions in the form of shares of common stock will generally be subject to the same U.S. federal, state and local tax consequences 

as if they received cash distributions; however, since their cash distributions will be reinvested, those stockholders will not receive cash 

with which to pay any applicable taxes. Due to regulatory considerations, Group Inc. has opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan, 

and GS & Co. has opted out of the dividend reinvestment plan in respect of any shares of our common stock acquired through the GS 

10b5-1 Plan. 

Federal Income Taxes 

As a RIC, we generally will not pay corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes on any net ordinary income or capital gains that we 

timely distribute to our stockholders as dividends. To maintain our RIC status, we must meet specified source-of-income and asset 

diversification requirements and timely distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our investment company taxable income for each 

year. Depending upon the level of taxable income earned in a year, we may choose to carry forward taxable income for distribution in 

the following year and pay any applicable U.S. federal excise tax. We generally will be required to pay such U.S. federal excise tax if 

our distributions during a calendar year do not exceed the sum of (1) 98% of our net ordinary income (taking into account certain 

deferrals and elections) for the calendar year, (2) 98.2% of our capital gains in excess of capital losses for the one-year period ending on 

October 31 of the calendar year and (3) any net ordinary income and capital gains in excess of capital losses for preceding years that 

were not distributed during such years. 

Because federal income tax regulations differ from GAAP, distributions in accordance with tax regulations may differ from net 

investment income and realized gains recognized for financial reporting purposes. Differences may be permanent or temporary. 

Permanent differences are reclassified among capital accounts in the consolidated financial statements to reflect their tax character. 

Temporary differences arise when certain items of income, expense, gain or loss are recognized at some time in the future. Differences 

in classification may also result from the treatment of short-term gains as ordinary income for tax purposes. 
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

We are subject to financial market risks, most significantly changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity refers to the change in 

our earnings that may result from changes in the level of interest rates. Because we expect to fund a portion of our investments with 

borrowings, our net investment income is expected to be affected by the difference between the rate at which we invest and the rate at 

which we borrow. As a result, we can offer no assurance that a significant change in market interest rates will not have a material 

adverse effect on our net investment income. 

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, on a fair value basis, approximately 3.8% and 3.6%, respectively, of our 

performing debt investments bore interest at a fixed rate (including income producing preferred stock investments), and approximately 

96.2% and 96.4%, respectively, of our performing debt investments bore interest at a floating rate. Our borrowings under the Revolving 

Credit Facility bear interest at a floating rate and the Convertible Notes bear interest at a fixed rate. 

We regularly measure our exposure to interest rate risk. We assess interest rate risk and manage our interest rate exposure on an 

ongoing basis by comparing our interest rate sensitive assets to our interest rate sensitive liabilities. 

Based on our March 31, 2018 balance sheet, the following table shows the annual impact on net income of base rate changes in 

interest rates (considering interest rate floors for variable rate instruments) assuming no changes in our investment and borrowing 

structure: 

As of March 31, 2018

Basis Point Change

Interest

Income

Interest

Expense

Net

Income

(in millions)

Up 300 basis points $ 29.57 $ (11.52) $ 18.05

Up 200 basis points 19.71 (7.68) 12.03

Up 100 basis points 9.86 (3.84) 6.02

Up 75 basis points 7.39 (2.88) 4.51

Up 50 basis points 4.93 (1.92) 3.01

Up 25 basis points 2.46 (0.96) 1.50

Down 25 basis points (2.46) 0.96 (1.50) 

Down 50 basis points (4.93) 1.92 (3.01) 

Down 75 basis points (7.39) 2.88 (4.51) 

Down 100 basis points (9.30) 3.84 (5.46) 

Down 200 basis points (10.91) 7.23 (3.68) 

Down 300 basis points (10.92) 7.23 (3.69) 

We may, in the future, hedge against interest rate fluctuations by using standard hedging instruments such as futures, options and 

forward contracts subject to the requirements of the Investment Company Act, applicable CFTC regulations and in a manner consistent 

with SEC guidance. While hedging activities may insulate us against adverse changes in interest rates, they may also limit our ability to 

participate in benefits of lower interest rates with respect to our portfolio of investments with fixed interest rates. 

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of the end of the period covered by this report, our management carried out 

an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the 

effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under 

the Exchange Act). Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our 

disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2018. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and 

procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only 

reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the benefits of 

possible controls and procedures relative to their costs. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting 

that occurred during our most recently completed fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2018 that have materially affected, or are reasonably 

likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings. 

From time to time, we may be a party to certain legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business, including proceedings 

relating to the enforcement of our rights under loans to or other contracts with our portfolio companies. We are not currently subject to 

any material legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any material legal proceeding threatened against us. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors. 

An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Except as set forth below, there have been no material changes to 

the risk factors previously reported under Item 1A: “Risk Factors” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 

December 31, 2017, which was filed with the SEC on February 22, 2018. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us 

or that we currently deem to be immaterial may materially affect our business, financial condition and/or operating results. 

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affect our ability to, and the way in which we, raise additional capital. These 

constraints may hinder our Investment Adviser’s ability to take advantage of attractive investment opportunities and to achieve our 

investment objective. 

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affect our ability to raise additional capital, and the ways in which we can do so. 

Raising additional capital may expose us to risks, including the typical risks associated with leverage, and may result in dilution to our 

current stockholders. The Investment Company Act limits our ability to borrow amounts or issue debt securities or preferred stock, 

which we refer to collectively as “senior securities,” to amounts such that our asset coverage ratio, as defined under the Investment 

Company Act, equals at least 200% immediately after such borrowing or issuance (except in connection with certain trading practices 

or investments) or 150% if certain requirements are met, as described below. Consequently, if the value of our assets declines, we may 

be required to sell a portion of our investments and, depending on the nature of our leverage, repay a portion of our indebtedness at a 

time when this may be disadvantageous to us and, as a result, our stockholders. The recently passed Small Business Credit Availability 

Act modified the applicable provisions of the Investment Company Act to reduce the required asset coverage ratio applicable to BDCs 

to 150%, subject to certain approval and disclosure requirements. Under the legislation, BDCs are able to increase their leverage 

capacity if stockholders representing at least a majority of the votes cast, when quorum is met, approve a proposal to do so. If a BDC 

receives stockholder approval, it would be allowed to increase its leverage capacity on the first day after such approval. Alternatively, 

the legislation allows the majority of the directors who are not “interested persons,” as defined in the Investment Company Act, of the 

BDC to approve an increase in its leverage capacity, and such approval would become effective after one year. As a result, BDCs may 

be able to incur additional leverage in the future, and the risks associated with an investment in BDCs may increase. On May 1, 2018, 

the Board of Directors of the Company approved the submission of a proposal to stockholders to approve the application of the 

modified asset coverage requirements set forth in Section 61(a)(2) of the Investment Company Act at the Company’s 2018 annual 

meeting of stockholders to be held on June 15, 2018. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 

of Operations—Recent Developments.” 

We are generally not able to issue and sell our common stock at a price per share below NAV per share. We may, however, sell 

our common stock, or warrants, options or rights to acquire our common stock, at a price below the then-current NAV per share of our 

common stock (i) with the consent of a majority of our common stockholders (and a majority of our common stockholders who are not 

affiliates of ours) and (ii) if, among other things, a majority of our Independent Directors and a majority of our directors who have no 

financial interest in the transaction determine that a sale is in the best interests of us and our stockholders. If our common stock trades at 

a discount to NAV, this restriction could adversely affect our ability to raise capital. 

Changes in laws or regulations governing our operations or the operations of our portfolio companies, changes in the interpretation 

thereof or newly enacted laws or regulations, or any failure by us or our portfolio companies to comply with these laws or 

regulations, could require changes to certain of our or our portfolio companies’ business practices, negatively impact our or our 

portfolio companies’ operations, cash flows or financial condition, impose additional costs on us or our portfolio companies or 

otherwise adversely affect our business or the business of our portfolio companies. 

We and our portfolio companies are subject to regulation at the local, state, federal and, in some cases, foreign levels. These laws 

and regulations, as well as their interpretation, are likely to change from time to time, and new laws and regulations may be enacted. 

Accordingly, any change in these laws or regulations, changes in their interpretation, or newly enacted laws or regulations, or any 

failure by us or our portfolio companies to comply with these laws or regulations, could require changes to certain of our or our 

portfolio companies’ business practices, negatively impact our or our portfolio companies’ operations, cash flows or financial condition, 

impose additional costs on us or our portfolio companies or otherwise adversely affect our business or the business of our portfolio 

companies. In addition to the legal, tax and regulatory changes that are expected to occur, there may be unanticipated changes and 

uncertainty regarding any such changes. The legal, tax and regulatory environment for BDCs, investment advisers and the instruments 

that they utilize (including derivative instruments) is continuously evolving. In addition, there is significant uncertainty regarding 



certain legislation and the regulations that have been adopted and future regulations that will need to be adopted pursuant to such 

legislation) and, consequently, the full impact that such legislation will ultimately have on us and the markets in which we trade and 

invest is not fully known. Such uncertainty and any resulting confusion may itself be detrimental to the efficient functioning of the 

markets and the success of certain investment strategies. 
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On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the 

“Dodd-Frank Act”), which impacts many aspects of the financial services industry. Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act have 

been implemented, while others will still require final rulemaking by regulatory authorities. While the full impact of the Dodd-Frank 

Act on us and our portfolio companies may not be known for an extended period of time, the Dodd-Frank Act, including current rules 

and regulations and proposed rules implementing its provisions and the interpretation of those rules, along with other legislative and 

regulatory proposals directed at the financial services industry that are proposed or pending in the U.S. Congress, may negatively 

impact the operations, cash flows or financial condition of us and our portfolio companies, impose additional costs on us and our 

portfolio companies, intensify the regulatory supervision of us and our portfolio companies or otherwise adversely affect our business 

or the business of our portfolio companies. 

Over the last several years, there also has been an increase in regulatory attention to the extension of credit outside of the 

traditional banking sector, raising the possibility that some portion of the non-bank financial sector will be subject to new regulation. 

While it cannot be known at this time whether any regulation will be implemented or what form it will take, increased regulation 

of non-bank credit extension could negatively impact our operations, cash flows or financial condition, impose additional costs on us, 

intensify the regulatory supervision of us or otherwise adversely affect our business. 

On March 23, 2018, President Trump signed into law the Small Business Credit Availability Act, which modified the applicable 

provisions of the Investment Company Act to reduce the required asset coverage ratio applicable to BDCs from 200% to 150%, subject 

to certain approval and disclosure requirements (including either stockholder approval or approval of both a majority of the directors 

who have no financial interest in the matter and a majority of the directors who are not “interested persons,” as defined in the 

Investment Company Act, of the BDC). On May 1, 2018, our Board of Directors approved the submission to stockholders of a proposal 

to approve the application of the modified asset coverage requirements at the Company’s 2018 annual meeting of stockholders to be 

held on June 15, 2018. See “—Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affect our ability to, and the way in which we, raise 

additional capital. These constraints may hinder our Investment Adviser’s ability to take advantage of attractive investment 

opportunities and to achieve our investment objective.” 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds. 

None. 

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities. 

Not applicable. 

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures. 

Not applicable. 

Item 5. Other Information. 

On May 1, 2018, the Board of Directors elected Susan B. McGee as a director of the Company effective June 1, 2018. Ms. McGee 

has also been appointed to serve on the Company’s audit committee, governance and nominating committee, compensation committee, 

compliance committee and contract review committee. As previously disclosed, in connection with Ms. McGee’s election, Janet Clark 

resigned from the Board of Directors at the conclusion of the meeting held on May 1, 2018. Ms. McGee was not appointed to the Board 

of Directors pursuant to any arrangement or understanding with any other person. Ms. McGee has no family relationships with any 

director or executive officer of the Company and there are no transactions in which Ms. McGee has an interest requiring disclosure 

under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC. Ms. McGee is an independent director under NYSE standards because 

she is not an “interested person” of the Company, as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the Investment Company Act. Ms. McGee will be 

entitled to receive compensation for her service on the Board consistent with our director compensation program for independent 

directors. 

Item 6. Exhibits. 

The exhibits filed as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are set forth on the Index to Exhibits, which is incorporated 

herein by reference. 
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS 

Exhibit

No Description of Exhibits

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (a) to pre-effective Amendment No. 7 to the 

Company’s Registration Statement on Form N-2 (file no. 333-187642), filed on March 3, 2015). 

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (b) to pre-effective Amendment No. 7 to the Company’s Registration 

Statement on Form N-2 (file no. 333-187642), filed on March 3, 2015). 

10.1 Fourth Amendment to Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of February 21, 2018, among Goldman 

Sachs BDC. Inc., as Borrower, the Lenders party thereto, and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent and as Collateral 

Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (file no. 814-00998), 

filed on February 22, 2018). 

10.2 Fourth Amendment to Senior Credit Fund, LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement dated as of January 2, 2018, 

between Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. and Regents of University of California (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to 

the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (file no. 814-00998), filed on January 3, 2018). 

10.3 Fifth Amendment to Senior Credit Fund, LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement dated as of March 3, 2018, 

between Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. and Regents of University of California (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to 

the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (file no. 814-00998), filed on March 6, 2018). 

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to 

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to 

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its 

behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

GOLDMAN SACHS BDC, INC.

Date: May 3, 2018 /s/ Brendan McGovern

Brendan McGovern

Chief Executive Officer and President

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 3, 2018 /s/ Jonathan Lamm

Jonathan Lamm

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I, Brendan McGovern, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 

presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 

consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 

which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting 

to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered 

by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 

during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual 

report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 

over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 

performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize 

and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in 

the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: May 3, 2018 

/s/ Brendan McGovern

Brendan McGovern

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I, Jonathan Lamm, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 

presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 

consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 

which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting 

to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered 

by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 

during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual 

report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 

over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 

performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize 

and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in 

the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: May 3, 2018 

/s/ Jonathan Lamm

Jonathan Lamm

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to 

18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Goldman Sachs BDC, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarter ended March 31, 

2018 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Brendan McGovern, as Chief Executive 

Officer of the Company, and Jonathan Lamm, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge: 

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 

of the Company. 

Date: May 3, 2018

/s/ Brendan McGovern

Brendan McGovern

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 3, 2018

/s/ Jonathan Lamm

Jonathan Lamm

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.3
  /CompressObjects /Off
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams true
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings false
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Preserve
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 100
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.00000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages false
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 100
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.00000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages false
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 150
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 2.00000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (RRD Low Resolution \(Letter Page Size\))
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


